
 

 

 

 
Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair  Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair  Kelli Tunnicliff (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 

Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 
 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · Huntington Park 
· La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Pico Water District ·  

Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill · South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 
 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County 

 16401 Paramount Boulevard  
Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax  

 
 

www.gatewaywater.org 

 
 

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management Joint 

Powers Authority 
 

AGENDA 
 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
Thursday, November 9, 2017 at 12:00 p.m. 

Progress Park Plaza, 15500 Downey Avenue, Paramount, CA 
 

 

1. Roll Call 
 

2. Determination of a Quorum 

 
3. Additions to Agenda (Govt. Code Sec. 54954.2(b)) 

 
4. Oral Communications to the Board 

This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on any item under the jurisdiction of the agency.  Depending upon the subject matter, t
he Board may be unable to respond until the item can be posted on the agenda at a future meeting in accordance with provisions of the Brown Act. 

  
5. PRESENTATION:  Lower LA River Revitalization Plan (Mark Stanley) (Enclosure) 

 
6. Consent Calendar: (Acted as one item unless withdrawn by request) 

a. Minutes of the Board Meeting of October 12, 2017 (Enclosure) 
b. Approve the Warrant Register for November 2017(Enclosure) 
 

7. Discussion/Action Regarding Changing the Regularly Scheduled Board Meeting Date to a Bi-
Monthly Schedule (Enclosure) 

a. Adopt Resolution No. 2017-6 changing the meeting date of GWMA’s Regular Board 
Meetings from the second Thursday of each month to the second Thursday every other 
month at 12:00 p.m. beginning on January 1, 2018; OR 

b. No action to change current monthly GWMA Regular Board Meeting schedule 
 

8. Discussion/Action Regarding Approval of GWMA’s Updated On-Call Consultant Services List 
(Enclosure) 

a. Approve GWMA’s Updated On-Call Consultant Services List as presented. 
b. Approval of On-Call Consultant Professional Services Agreements with: 

1. Tetra Tech 
2. Geosyntec Consultants 
3. GEI Consultants 
4. Atkins Global 



 

 

 

 
Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair  Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair  Kelli Tunnicliff (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 

Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 
 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · Huntington Park 
· La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Pico Water District ·  

Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill · South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 
 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County 

 16401 Paramount Boulevard  
Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax  

 
 

www.gatewaywater.org 

 
 

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management Joint 

Powers Authority 
 

c. Authorize the Chair to execute the On-Call Professional Services Agreements in a form 
approved by Legal Counsel 
 

9. Discussion/Action Regarding Request for Proposal for Catch Basin Cleaning (Enclosure) 
a. Receive and file Proposals and direct staff to distribute the complete Request for Proposal 

Package to each of the Gateway Region Cities with no proposal recommendation  
 

10. Gateway Region Watershed Management Groups Oral Report 
 

a. Lower Los Angeles River Upper Reach 2 Watershed Group 
 

b. Lower Los Angeles River Watershed Group 
 
c. Los Cerritos Channel Watershed Group 
 
d. Lower San Gabriel River Watershed Group 
 

11. Executive Officer’s Comments 
 

12. Directors’ Comments 
 

13. Adjournment  



Bringing the Lower 
LA River to Life!

PROJECT INFORMATION

The  Lower Los Angeles River is an important 
part of many communities in Southeast Los 
Angeles County.  Today, it mainly serves 
as a flood control channel to protect our 
communities.  Yet many residents also enjoy 
walking, biking, horse riding, recreation and 
wildlife viewing in and near the river.

The Lower LA River Revitalization Plan will 
identify ways to maintain the flood control 
features, restore natural features where 
possible, and create opportunities for recreation 

SPRING 2017

POTENTIAL REVITALIZATION 
OPPORTUNITIES
Revitalization efforts may include many  
opportunities in varying locations along the 
Lower LA River. These opportunities include  
but are not limited to the following:

nature

history

community
recreation

And  multi-use 
trails, and open 
spaces

HABITAT  
Restoration Bikeways, 

walkways, & street 
improvements

And  other 
economic 

Environmental 
and public health 
improvements

Quality and 
treatment

PUBLIC 
SAFETY 

TOURISM

WATERPARKS

HEALTH

MOBILITY

JOBS & 
HOUSING

LowerLARiver.org/contact-us

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5



in Southeast LA County.  The “Working 
Group” of community members and 
civic leaders was established by the 
Governor’s authorization of Assembly 
Bill 530 (Assembly Speaker Rendon) 
to provide input and direction to the 
formulation of a revitalization plan for 
the Lower LA River.  

The  Working Group also directs 
community outreach activities for the 
planning process in all Southeast LA 
communities.  The plan is scheduled to 
be completed in 2018. In the future, the 
Plan will be included in an update to a 
Master Plan for the full 51-mile LA River.

GET INVOLVED
Your  input is important to improving 
the Lower LA River! There are many ways 
to provide input and be involved in the 
process. Working Group meetings occur 
monthly and are open to the public. 
Public input activities occur throughout 
the corridor’s communities. Visit the 
project website to sign-up for email 
notifications, and to learn about events 
throughout the community.   
LowerLARiver.org

WHERE IS THE PLAN AREA 
FOR THE LOWER LA RIVER? 
The  Lower LA River includes the County of Los 
Angeles, unincorporated areas, and Southeast 
LA County cities, including: Vernon, Commerce, 
Downey, Maywood, Bell, Bell Gardens, Cudahy, 
Huntington Park, South Gate, Lynwood, Compton, 
Paramount, and Long Beach.

PROJECT PARTNERS
• Office of Los Angeles County,                                               

Supervisor Hilda Solis, 1st District

• Office of Los Angeles County,                                            

Supervisor Mark Ridley-Thomas, 2nd District

• Office of Los Angeles County,                                           

Supervisor Janice Hahn, 4th District

• Office Speaker Anthony Rendon, 63rd Assembly District

• San Gabriel and Lower L.A. Rivers and Mountains 

Conservancy

LEGEND

CITY BOUNDARIES

STUDY AREA



AGENDA ITEM NO. 6A 

MINUTES OF THE GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
LOS ANGELES GATEWAY REGION 

INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
BOARD  

AT PARAMOUNT, CALIFORNIA 
THURSDAY, OCTOBER 12, 2017 

 
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Gateway Water Management 

Authority was held on Thursday, October 12, 2017 at 12:00 p.m. at the Progress Park Plaza, 
15500 Downey Avenue, Paramount, CA 90723. 

 
Chair Christopher Cash called the meeting to order at 12:04 p.m. Roll was called by Ms. 

Weiss and a quorum of the Board was declared. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 
 

 

STAFF AND GUESTS ON SIGN-IN SHEET:  

Grace Kast 
Toni Penn 
Bibi Weiss 
Steve Dorsey 
Bill Minasian 
Desi Alvarez 

Executive Officer 
Admin/Accounting Manager 
Office Assistant 
Legal Counsel 
Downey Resident 
MCM Management Co.  

Charlie Honeycutt 
Mark Moss 
Dan Mueller 

Signal Hill 
Central Basin MWD 
Downey 

Okina Dor 
Bill Pagett 
Chau Vu  
Mike O’Grady  (alternate) 
Gina Nila 
Mohammad Mostahkami 
Christina Dixon (alternate) 
Mark Stowell  
Konya Vivanti (alternate) 
Melissa You 
Sam Kouri (alternate) 
Adriana Figueroa  
Christopher Cash 
Robert Delgadillo (alternate) 
Frank Beach (alternate) 
Kelli Tunnicliff 
Gladis Deras (alternate) 
Claudia Arellano (alternate) 
Dave Schickling 
 

Artesia 
Bell 
Bell Gardens 
Cerritos 
Commerce 
Downey 
Huntington Park 
La Mirada 
Lakewood 
Long Beach 
Montebello 
Norwalk 
Paramount 
Pico Rivera 
Santa Fe Springs 
Signal Hill 
South Gate 
Vernon 
Whittier 
 



Gateway Water Management Authority Board Meeting 
Minutes October 12, 2017 

 
 

Page 2 
 

Russ Bryden LACFCD 
  

ITEM 3 - ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
 None. 
  
ITEM 4 – ORAL COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD 
 
 None. 
 
Director Vu entered the meeting at 12:08 PM. 
 
ITEM 5 – RESILIENCY AND STORM WATER FUNDING UPDATE PRESENTATION 
(RUSS BRYDEN) 
 
 Mr. Russ Bryden, from the Los Angeles County Flood Control District, gave an oral 
presentation on the Resiliency and Storm Water Funding Plan.  He updated the Board on the 
County’s effort to reach out to the public and their anticipation of having the draft framework by 
March 2018 and a draft final plan within a year.   
 
 Mr. Bryden said he would like to come back to the GWMA Board and give periodic 
updates.  
 
ITEM 6 – CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 Director Nila motioned to approve the consent calendar as presented. The motion was 
seconded by Director Delgadillo and was approved by the following voice vote: 
 

AYES: VU, O’GRADY, NILA, DIXON, STOWELL, VIVANTI, YOU, 
KOURI, CASH, DELGADILLO, BEACH, TUNNICLIFF, 
ARELLANO, SCHICKLING  

 
 NOES: NONE 
 
 ABSTAIN:  DOR, MOSTAHKAMI, PAGETT  
   FIGUEROA (MINUTES ONLY) 
 
ITEM 7 – DISCUSSION GWMA’S DRAFT RESERVE POLICY  
 
 Ms. Kast reported that the Reserve Policy had been presented at the September Board 
Meeting to solicit any input or questions from the Board.    
 



Gateway Water Management Authority Board Meeting 
Minutes October 12, 2017 

 
 

Page 3 
 

 Ms. Kast stated that it was now the recommendation of the staff that the Board approve 
GWMA’s Reserve Policy as presented. 
 
  Director Nila motioned to approve GWMA’s Reserve Policy as presented.  The motion 
was seconded by Director Figueroa and was approved by the following voice vote: 
 

AYES: DOR, PAGETT, VU, O’GRADY, NILA, MOSTAHKAMI, DIXON, 
STOWELL, VIVANTI, YOU, KOURI, FIGUEROA, CASH, 
DELGADILLO, BEACH, TUNNICLIFF, ARELLANO, 
SCHICKLING  

 
 NOES: NONE 
 
 ABSTAIN: NONE 
   
ITEM 8 – GWMA’S UPDATED ON-CALL CONSULTANT SERVICES LIST 
 
 Ms. Kast reported that an ad hoc Committee consisting of Directors Stowell, Grajeda, and 
Vu along with GWMA staff, held a conference call on September 26th to discuss, rank, select and 
recommend consultants for GWMA’s updated list of pre-qualified consultants.  She stated that 
the committee selected the top four (4) firms based upon specific skillsets and experience needed 
for the unique regional, multi-party needs of GWMA.  She indicated that the four (4) selected 
firms were: Tetra Tech, Geosyntec Consultants, GEI Consultants, and Atkins Global.  
 
 Director Figueroa moved to approve GWMA’s updated On-Call Consultant List as 
directed, contingent upon Legal Counsel’s review of any requested changes on PSA.  The motion 
was seconded by Director Cash.  This motion failed due to lack of support. 
 
 Director Mostahkami motioned to move the vote to the next scheduled GWMA Board 
meeting in November and include the SOQ’s received along with the PSA as attachments in the 
agenda packet.  The motion was seconded by Director Schickling and was approved by the 
following voice vote: 
 

AYES: VU, MOSTAHKAMI, DIXON, YOU, KOURI, DELGADILLO, 
BEACH, ARELLANO, SCHICKLING 

 
 NOES: PAGETT, O’GRADY, NILA, STOWELL, VIVANTI, FIGUEROA,  
   CASH, TUNNICLIFF 
 
 ABSTAIN: DOR 
 
 
 



Gateway Water Management Authority Board Meeting 
Minutes October 12, 2017 

 
 

Page 4 
 

ITEM 9 –CATCH BASIN CLEANING/MAINTENANCE BID PROCESS 
 
 Ms. Kast reported that on August 28, 2017, GWMA released a Notice Inviting Bids for 
Catch Basin Cleaning/Maintenance Services.  She stated that the deadline to receive bids was set 
for September 21, 2017 at 12:00 PM.  Ms. Kast stated that these sealed bids were opened at 
GWMA headquarters and that subsequent to the bid opening, GWMA received a bid protest 
letter from United Storm Water, Inc.  Ms. Kast reported that this bid protest letter was regarding 
the types of licenses to conduct the work. 
  
 Ms. Kast stated that after thorough review by staff, legal counsel and engineers, staff was 
now recommending that all of the bids be rejected in order to conduct the entire process again.  
Ms. Kast stated that rather than a Notice Inviting Bids, staff was recommending a Request for 
Proposal process instead, since this work was for cleanup services only and would not require 
repair work.  Ms. Kast requested that she be authorized to issue a 10-day Request for Proposal 
for catch basin cleaning. 
  
 Director Stowell motioned to authorize the Executive Officer to issue a 10-day Request 
for Proposal for catch basin cleaning.  The motion was seconded by Director Schickling and was 
approved by the following voice vote: 
 

AYES: DOR, PAGETT, VU, O’GRADY, NILA, MOSTAHKAMI, DIXON, 
STOWELL, VIVANTI, YOU, KOURI, FIGUEROA, CASH, BEACH, 
TUNNICLIFF, ARELLANO, SCHICKLING  

 
 NOES: NONE 
 
 ABSTAIN: DELGADILLO 
 
ITEM 10 – GATEWAY IRWMP PLAN ORAL UPDATE 
 
 Director Deras entered the meeting at 12:50 PM. 
 
 Ms. Kast reported that the request to incorporate the Gateway IRWM Plan into the 
GLAC IRWM Plan and to expand the GLAC Boundary to include Catalina Island was approved 
on August 22, 2017 by the Department of Water Resources.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Gateway Water Management Authority Board Meeting 
Minutes October 12, 2017 

 
 

Page 5 
 

ITEM 11 – GATEWAY REGION WATERSHED MANAGEMENT GROUPS ORAL 
UPDATES 
 
Lower Los Angeles River Upper Reach 2 Watershed Group 
 

Director Nila reported that the Prop 1 draft grant agreement had been sent back to the 
State Water Board with comments and they were now waiting on a response. 

 
Steve Dorsey, legal counsel for GWMA, stated that he was working on the subrecipient 

agreements.   
   

Lower Los Angeles River Watershed Group 
  

Director Deras reported that they would be having their bi-monthly meeting on October 
23, 2017. 
 
Los Cerritos Channel Watershed Group 
 
 Director Vivanti reported that they were collecting data for their annual report. 
     
Lower San Gabriel River Watershed Group 
 
 Director Figueroa stated that there was nothing to report and they would be meeting next 
week. 
 
 Director Figueroa left the meeting at 1:08 PM. 
 
ITEM 12 – EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 

  Ms. Kast reported that there were still two cities that had not turned in their Resolutions 
for Appointing Board Members but were expected soon.  Ms. Kast also informed all new Board 
Members/Alternates that they would be receiving an email from the Board of Supervisors to fill 
out Form 700’s for Assuming Office. 
 
  Ms. Kast updated the Board on the status of the GWMA Annual Membership Dues for 
FY2017/18, stating that two invoices were still outstanding.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Gateway Water Management Authority Board Meeting 
Minutes October 12, 2017 

 
 

Page 6 
 

ITEM 13 – DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS/REPORT 
 
 Director Cash welcomed GWMA’s new Secretary/Treasurer Kelli Tunnicliff, from the 
City of Signal Hill.  
 
 Director Schickling recommended that GWMA Board Meetings be changed to meet bi-
monthly instead of monthly.  This was discussed among the Board and Director Mostahkami 
recommended that the item be agendized and brought back to the board in November for 
consideration. 
 
 Director Vivanti invited the board to a Sewer Summit in the City of Lakewood on 
November 1, 2017. 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 1:16 PM. 
 
 
___________________________________    ______________________ 
Kelli Tunnicliff, Secretary/Treasurer      Date 



 

 
16401 Paramount Boulevard  
Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax  

www.gatewaywater.org

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 

November 9, 2017 

SECTION NO. 6(b) Approve the Warrant Register for November 2017 

SUMMARY: 

The Warrant Register is a listing of general checks issued since the last warrant 
register.  Warrants will be signed by 2 of the 3 Board Officers and released by Toni 
Penn, serving as the Administrative/Accounting Manager of the Gateway Water 
Management Authority, upon Board Approval. 

DISCUSSION: 

The Warrant Register for expenditures dated November 2017 in the amount of 
$318,672.26 is submitted for approval.  Invoices and supporting documentation are 
available for review at the office of the GWMA. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The Warrant Registers totals $318,672.26.  Funds to cover payment are available in the 
Gateway Authority budget. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the Warrant Register for November as presented. 

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair • Kelli Tunnicliff (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Pico 

Water District · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6B





 

 
16401 Paramount Boulevard 
Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax  

www.gatewaywater.org

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 

November 9, 2017 

SECTION NO. 7 Discussion/Action Regarding Changing the Regularly 
Scheduled Board Meeting Date to a Bi-Monthly Schedule (Enclosure) 

SUMMARY: 

Currently, GWMA’s regularly scheduled board meetings are held the second Thursday 
of each month at 12:00 p.m.  Last month, a Board Member requested consideration to 
change the GWMA regularly scheduled board meetings from monthly to bi-monthly.  As 
a public agency, this change can only be done by a resolution adopted by the Board. 

The benefits of changing the meetings to bi-monthly include the potential cost and time 
savings of preparing and holding meetings which includes staff and legal time, supplies 
and lunch costs.  Conversely, changing to bi-monthly meetings may result in slowing 
down work flow, possibly delaying needed grant or contractual actions, and reducing the 
flow of information amongst Board Members, Staff and Legal Counsel.   

Under the Ralph M. Brown Act, which governs GWMA meetings, agendas for regular 
meetings must be posted at least 72 hours prior to the time the meeting is set to 
convene.  Technically, the only way to cancel a regular meeting is to fail to post an 
agenda 72 hours prior to the time of the meeting.  As a courtesy to the public, many 
agencies post a notice that a meeting is cancelled 72 hours or fewer prior to the 
scheduled meeting time.   If a special meeting is required, defined as a meeting other 
than the regularly scheduled Board meeting, the agenda must be posted at least 24 
hours prior to the scheduled meeting date and notice must be provided to each Board 
Member and any news organizations, other organizations or individuals that have asked 
for copies of such notices  .  An official GWMA Board Meeting requires a quorum of at 
least 16 Board Members in attendance out of 29 Board Members in order to conduct 
business.   

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair • Kelli Tunnicliff (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Pico 

Water District · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7



 

 
 16401 Paramount Boulevard  

Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax  
 
 

www.gatewaywater.org 

 
 

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management  

Joint Powers Authority 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Bi-Monthly Meetings:  Potential fifty percent cost savings associated with holding only 6 
meetings per year rather than 12 meetings per year.  Board Meeting costs include staff 
and legal time, supplies and lunch with beverages. The exact cost savings is difficult to 
estimate which depends on the content of the agenda.  Lunch costs are approximately 
$400 to $450 per meeting. Special meetings, if needed will reduce the cost savings.   
 
Monthly Meetings:  No cost savings except if a regular board meeting is cancelled due 
to lack of an expected quorum or lack of substantive agenda items. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

a) Adopt Resolution No. 2017-6 changing the meeting date of GWMA’s Regularly 
Scheduled Board Meetings from the second Thursday of each month at 12:00 
pm. to the second Thursday every other month at 12:00 p.m. beginning on 
January 1, 2018; 

 
OR 
 

b) No action to change current monthly GWMA Regular Board Meeting schedule. 
 
 
 

 
      
 
 
 

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair • Kelli Tunnicliff (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Pico 

Water District · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 
 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County 
 



AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 

RESOLUTION NO. 17-6 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY JOINT 

POWERS AUTHORITY DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:  
 
 WHEREAS, the Gateway Water Management Authority (“GWMA JPA”) holds its regularly 
scheduled Board meetings on the second Thursday of every month at 12:00 p.m. 
 
 WHEREAS, the GWMA Board and staff desire to change the date of GWMA JPA’s Regularly 
Scheduled Board Meeting from the second Thursday of each month to the second Thursday of every 
other month at 12:00 p.m. beginning on January 1, 2018.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the GWMA JPA does hereby resolve as follows: 
 

1. The regularly scheduled Board meeting of the GWMA JPA shall now be held on the second 
Thursday of every other month at 12:00 p.m. beginning January 1, 2018.  
 

ALL THE FOREGOING, being on motion of _________________________, Director and 
seconded by _____________, Director was authorized by the following voice votes: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
       PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of GWMA JPA this 
____________day of _______________, 2017.   
 
             
      Christopher S. Cash, Chair 
 



 

 
16401 Paramount Boulevard 
Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax

www.gatewaywater.org

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 

November 9, 2017 

SECTION NO. 8: DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING APPROVAL OF GWMA’S 
UPDATED ON-CALL CONSULTANT SERVICES LIST 

SUMMARY: 

At the April 13th GWMA Board Meeting, Ms. Kast announced that GWMA would be sending 
out a Request for Qualifications “RFQ” to update GWMA’s On-Call List of Consultants. 

With the assistance of an Ad Hoc Committee which included Directors Mostahkami and 
Beach, the RFQ was drafted and then issued on July 17, 2017.  The deadline for submittal of 
the Statement of Qualifications “SOQ” was August 21, 2017 at noon.  GWMA received 6 
SOQs (attached) which were from: 1) Atkins Global; 2) GEI Consultants, Inc.; 3) Geosyntec 
Consultants; 4) RRM Design Group; 5) Simplus Management; and 6) Tetra Tech.   

Five consultants currently on GWMA’s On-Call Consultants List were not requested to 
resubmit an SOQ.  This was because there were no team member changes or other factors 
which warranted new SOQs.  The current On-Call Consultants which were not required to 
resubmit an SOQ and are still on GWMA’s On-Call Consultants List include:  Stetson 
Engineers, Inc., Civiltec Engineering, CWE, John L. Hunter & Associates and Richard Watson 
& Associates, Inc. 

At the October 12, 2017 Board Meeting, Ms. Kast announced that the Ad Hoc Committee, 
consisting of Directors Stowell, Grajeda and Vu, along with GWMA staff, held a conference 
call on September 26th to discuss, rank, select and recommend the top four (4) firms based 
upon specific skillsets and experience needed for the unique regional, multi-party needs of 
GWMA.  The four (4) selected firms were:  Tetra Tech, Geosyntec Consultants, GEI 
Consultants and Atkins Global.  After discussion, the board moved to bring this item back to 
the Board at its November meeting and include all the Statement of Qualifications received 
along with their respective Professional Services Agreements in the Agenda Packet.  

RECOMMENDATION: 

a) Approve GWMA’s Updated On-Call Consultant Services List as presented.

b) Approval of On-Call Consultant Professional Services Agreements with:
1. Tetra Tech,
2. Geosyntec Consultants
3. GEI Consultants
4. Atkins Global

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair • Kelli Tunnicliff (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Pico 

Water District · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County

AGENDA PACKET NO. 8



 

 
 16401 Paramount Boulevard  

Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax  
 
 

www.gatewaywater.org 

 
 

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management  

Joint Powers Authority 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c)  Authorize the Chair to execute the On-Call Professional Services Agreements in a form 
     approved by Legal Counsel. 
 

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair • Kelli Tunnicliff (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Pico 

Water District · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 
 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County 
 



 

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair  Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair  Kelli Tunnicliff (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Pico 

Water District · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County

16401 Paramount Boulevard  
Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax

www.gatewaywater.org 

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 

Proposed List - October 2017 

ON-CALL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR GWMA 
(Consultants listed in RED are newly added for board consideration) 

Feasibility Study and Project and/or Program Report Writing 

Stetson Engineers, Inc. – Steve Johnson stevej@stetsonengineers.com 

Civiltec – David Byrum dbyrum@civiltec.com 

CWE – Vik Bapna vbapna@cwe.corp.com 

John L. Hunter & Associates – John Hunter jhunter@jlha.net 

Richard Watson & Associates, Inc. – Rich Watson rwatson@rwaplanning.com 

Tetra Tech – Oliver Galang oliver.galang@tetratech.com 

Geosyntec Consultants – Ken Susilo ksusilo@geosyntec.com 

GEI Consultants – Bill Bennett bbennett@geiconsultants.com 

Atkins Global – Alberto Acevedo alberto.acevedo@atkinsglobal.com 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8A

mailto:stevej@stetsonengineers.com
mailto:dbyrum@civiltec.com
mailto:vbapna@cwe.corp.com
mailto:jhunter@jlkha.net
mailto:rwatson@rwaplanning.com
mailto:oliver.galang@tetratech.com
mailto:ksusilo@geosyntec.com
mailto:bbennett@geiconsultants.com
mailto:alberto.acevedo@atkinsglobal.com


 

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair  Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair  Kelli Tunnicliff (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Pico 

Water District · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County

16401 Paramount Boulevard  
Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax

www.gatewaywater.org 

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 

 
 

(Page 2) 

Project Management (Including but not limited to Construction Management 

and Inspection Services, Plan Checking, Compliance Assurance and Reporting 
Services Associated with Federal, State and Other Grant Funded Projects and 
Programs) 

Stetson Engineers, Inc. – Steve Johnson stevej@stetsonengineers.com 

Civiltec – David Byrum dbyrum@civiltec.com 

CWE – Vik Bapna vbapna@cwe.corp.com 

John L. Hunter & Associates – John Hunter jhunter@jlha.net 

Richard Watson & Associates, Inc. – Rich Watson rwatson@rwaplanning.com 

Tetra Tech - Oliver Galang oliver.galang@tetratech.com 

Geosyntec Consultants – Ken Susilo ksusilo@geosyntec.com    

Atkins Global – Alberto Acevedo alberto.acevedo@atkinsglobal.com 

GEI Consultants – Bill Bennett bbennett@geiconsultants.com 

mailto:stevej@stetsonengineers.com
mailto:dbyrum@civiltec.com
mailto:vbapna@cwe.corp.com
mailto:jhunter@jlkha.net
mailto:rwatson@rwaplanning.com
mailto:oliver.galang@tetratech.com
mailto:ksusilo@geosyntec.com
mailto:alberto.acevedo@atkinsglobal.com
mailto:bbennett@geiconsultants.com


 

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair  Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair  Kelli Tunnicliff (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Pico 

Water District · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County

16401 Paramount Boulevard  
Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax

www.gatewaywater.org 

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 

 

(Page 3) 

Coordinate and Manage Watershed Projects 

Stetson Engineers, Inc. – Steve Johnson stevej@stetsonengineers.com 

Civiltec – David Byrum dbyrum@civiltec.com 

CWE – Vik Bapna vbapna@cwe.corp.com 

John L. Hunter & Associates – John Hunter jhunter@jlha.net 

Richard Watson & Associates, Inc. – Rich Watson rwatson@rwaplanning.com 

Tetra Tech - Oliver Galang oliver.galang@tetratech.com 

Geosyntec Consultants – Ken Susilo ksusilo@geosyntec.com 

GEI Consultants – Bill Bennett bbennett@geiconsultants.com 

Prepare and/or Manage Preparation of Bid Documents, Plans and 
Specifications 

Stetson Engineers, Inc. – Steve Johnson stevej@stetsonengineers.com 

Civiltec – David Byrum dbyrum@civiltec.com 

CWE – Vik Bapna vbapna@cwe.corp.com 

John L. Hunter & Associates – John Hunter jhunter@jlha.net 

Tetra Tech - Oliver Galang oliver.galang@tetratech.com 

Geosyntec Consultants – Ken Susilo ksusilo@geosyntec.com 

Atkins Global – Alberto Acevedo alberto.acevedo@atkinsglobal.com 

mailto:stevej@stetsonengineers.com
mailto:dbyrum@civiltec.com
mailto:vbapna@cwe.corp.com
mailto:jhunter@jlkha.net
mailto:rwatson@rwaplanning.com
mailto:oliver.galang@tetratech.com
mailto:ksusilo@geosyntec.com
mailto:bbennett@geiconsultants.com
mailto:stevej@stetsonengineers.com
mailto:dbyrum@civiltec.com
mailto:vbapna@cwe.corp.com
mailto:jhunter@jlkha.net
mailto:oliver.galang@tetratech.com
mailto:ksusilo@geosyntec.com
mailto:alberto.acevedo@atkinsglobal.com


 

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair  Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair  Kelli Tunnicliff (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Pico 

Water District · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County

16401 Paramount Boulevard  
Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax

www.gatewaywater.org 

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 

 

(Page 4) 

Regional Planning Grant and/or Other Opportunities Including 
Development of Associated Documents 

Stetson Engineers, Inc. – Steve Johnson stevej@stetsonengineers.com 

Civiltec – David Byrum dbyrum@civiltec.com 

CWE – Vik Bapna vbapna@cwe.corp.com 

John L. Hunter & Associates – John Hunter jhunter@jlha.net 

Richard Watson & Associates, Inc. – Rich Watson rwatson@rwaplanning.com 

Tetra Tech - Oliver Galang oliver.galang@tetratech.com 

Geosyntec Consultants – Ken Susilo ksusilo@geosyntec.com 

GEI Consultants – Bill Bennett bbennett@geiconsultants.com 

Grant Writing and/or Grant Implementation Management 

Stetson Engineers, Inc. – Steve Johnson stevej@stetsonengineers.com 

Civiltec – David Byrum dbyrum@civiltec.com  

CWE – Vik Bapna vbapna@cwe.corp.com 

John L. Hunter & Associates – John Hunter jhunter@jlha.net 

Richard Watson & Associates, Inc. – Rich Watson rwatson@rwaplanning.com 

Tetra Tech - Oliver Galang oliver.galang@tetratech.com 

Geosyntec Consultants – Ken Susilo ksusilo@geosyntec.com 

GEI Consultants – Bill Bennett bbennett@geiconsultants.com 

mailto:stevej@stetsonengineers.com
mailto:dbyrum@civiltec.com
mailto:vbapna@cwe.corp.com
mailto:jhunter@jlkha.net
mailto:rwatson@rwaplanning.com
mailto:oliver.galang@tetratech.com
mailto:ksusilo@geosyntec.com
mailto:bbennett@geiconsultants.com
mailto:stevej@stetsonengineers.com
mailto:dbyrum@civiltec.com
mailto:vbapna@cwe.corp.com
mailto:jhunter@jlkha.net
mailto:rwatson@rwaplanning.com
mailto:oliver.galang@tetratech.com
mailto:ksusilo@geosyntec.com
mailto:bbennett@geiconsultants.com


 

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair  Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair  Kelli Tunnicliff (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Pico 

Water District · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County

16401 Paramount Boulevard  
Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax

www.gatewaywater.org 

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 

 

(Page 5) 

Strategic Local and/or Regional Planning Efforts, Including 
Development of Associated Documents 

Civiltec – David Byrum dbyrum@civiltec.com 

CWE – Vik Bapna vbapna@cwe.corp.com 

John L. Hunter & Associates – John Hunter jhunter@jlha.net 

Richard Watson & Associates, Inc. – Rich Watson rwatson@rwaplanning.com 

Tetra Tech - Oliver Galang oliver.galang@tetratech.com 

Geosyntec Consultants – Ken Susilo ksusilo@geosyntec.com 

GEI Consultants – Bill Bennett bbennett@geiconsultants.com 

GIS Mapping/Management 

Stetson Engineers, Inc. – Steve Johnson stevej@stetsonengineers.com 

Civiltec – David Byrum dbyrum@civiltec.com  

CWE – Vik Bapna vbapna@cwe.corp.com 

John L. Hunter & Associates – John Hunter jhunter@jlha.net 

Richard Watson & Associates, Inc. – Rich Watson rwatson@rwaplanning.com 

Geosyntec Consultants – Ken Susilo ksusilo@geosyntec.com 

GEI Consultants – Bill Bennett bbennett@geiconsultants.com 

Atkins Global – Alberto Acevedo alberto.acevedo@atkinsglobal.com 

Tetra Tech - Oliver Galang oliver.galang@tetratech.com 

mailto:dbyrum@civiltec.com
mailto:vbapna@cwe.corp.com
mailto:jhunter@jlkha.net
mailto:rwatson@rwaplanning.com
mailto:oliver.galang@tetratech.com
mailto:ksusilo@geosyntec.com
mailto:bbennett@geiconsultants.com
mailto:stevej@stetsonengineers.com
mailto:dbyrum@civiltec.com
mailto:vbapna@cwe.corp.com
mailto:jhunter@jlkha.net
mailto:rwatson@rwaplanning.com
mailto:ksusilo@geosyntec.com
mailto:bbennett@geiconsultants.com
mailto:alberto.acevedo@atkinsglobal.com
mailto:oliver.galang@tetratech.com


 

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair  Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair  Kelli Tunnicliff (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Pico 

Water District · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County

16401 Paramount Boulevard  
Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax

www.gatewaywater.org 

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 

 

(Page 6) 

CEQA/NEPA Environmental Proceedings (Including but not limited to, 

Preparation, Review and Management of Technical Reports Associated with 
Various Projects and/or Programs (Specialty in the area of 
Water/Watershed/Stormwater)) 

Stetson Engineers, Inc. – Steve Johnson stevej@stetsonengineers.com 

Civiltec – David Byrum dbyrum@civiltec.com 

CWE – Vik Bapna vbapna@cwe.corp.com 

John L. Hunter & Associates – John Hunter jhunter@jlha.net 

Richard Watson & Associates, Inc. – Rich Watson rwatson@rwaplanning.com 

Tetra Tech - Oliver Galang oliver.galang@tetratech.com 

Geosyntec Consultants – Ken Susilo ksusilo@geosyntec.com 

GEI Consultants – Bill Bennett bbennett@geiconsultants.com 

Atkins Global – Alberto Acevedo alberto.acevedo@atkinsglobal.com 

IRWM Related Programs and Activities (Including but not limited to, Plan 

Updates and Project List Updates) 

Tetra Tech - Oliver Galang oliver.galang@tetratech.com 

Geosyntec Consultants – Ken Susilo ksusilo@geosyntec.com 

GEI Consultants – Bill Bennett bbennett@geiconsultants.com 

Note: Consultants listed in RED are newly added for 
Board consideration.  

mailto:stevej@stetsonengineers.com
mailto:dbyrum@civiltec.com
mailto:vbapna@cwe.corp.com
mailto:jhunter@jlkha.net
mailto:rwatson@rwaplanning.com
mailto:oliver.galang@tetratech.com
mailto:ksusilo@geosyntec.com
mailto:bbennett@geiconsultants.com
mailto:alberto.acevedo@atkinsglobal.com
mailto:oliver.galang@tetratech.com
mailto:ksusilo@geosyntec.com
mailto:bbennett@geiconsultants.com


PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated and effective NOVEMBER 9, 
2017and is between the Los Angeles Gateway Region Integrated Regional Water Management 
Authority also referred to as the Gateway Water Management Authority (“GWMA”) and Tetra 
Tech (“Consultant”). 

The parties agree as follows: 

SECTION 1 - SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Consultant shall provide the services (the “Services”) described with each requested scope of 
services upon GWMA’s approval of cost, schedule and any other applicable terms. 

SECTION 2 - TIME FOR PERFORMANCE 

The term of this Agreement shall commence on the effective date of this Agreement and expire 
on November 9, 2022, unless earlier terminated in accordance with the terms of this Agreement 
or extended by the Project Manager or GWMA Chair. 

SECTION 3 - STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE 

Consultant’s services shall be performed in accordance with generally accepted professional 
practices and principles and in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily 
exercised by members of Consultant’s profession currently practicing under similar conditions. 
By delivery of completed work, Consultant certifies that the work conforms to the requirements 
of this Agreement and all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.  Consultant 
shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement all licenses, certifications, registrations or 
other similar requirements necessary for Consultant’s performance of services under this 
Agreement. 

SECTION 4 - OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT 

Upon delivery, the work product, including, without limitation, all original reports, writings, 
recordings, drawings, files, and detailed calculations developed under this Agreement 
(collectively “work product”) are GWMA’s property.  All copyrights that arise from work 
product shall vest in GWMA.  Consultant waives and relinquishes all claims to copyright or 
other intellectual property rights in the work product in favor of GWMA.  GWMA’s use of the 
work product is limited to the purposes contemplated by the  Services and Consultant 
makes no representation of the suitability of the work product for use in or application to 
circumstances not contemplated by this Agreement.  Any alteration or reuse by GWMA of the 
work product on any project other than the Services provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
at GWMA’s sole risk, unless GWMA compensates Consultant for such alteration or reuse. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8B



2 | P a g e  
 

SECTION 5 - COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT 

GWMA shall pay Consultant, for the Services performed based on the proposal/quote received 
and accepted for each scope of work.  

Consultant shall perform the Services for the amount(s) listed for each scope of work.  GWMA 
shall not withhold federal payroll, state payroll and other taxes, or other similar deductions from 
each payment made to Consultant.  Consultant shall pay all applicable federal, state, and local 
excise, sales, consumer use, and other similar taxes required by law.  GWMA shall not allow any 
claims for additional services performed by Consultant, unless the Project Manager or GWMA 
Chair authorizes the additional services in writing prior to Consultant’s performance of the 
additional services or the incurrence of additional expenses.  Any additional services authorized 
by the Project Manager or GWMA Chair shall be compensated at the hourly rates set forth 
above, or, if not specified, at a rate mutually agreed to by the parties.  Consultant shall submit 
invoices to GWMA on a monthly basis for actual work performed and actual expenses incurred 
during the preceding month.  The invoices shall describe in detail the services performed by each 
person for each task, including the days and hours worked.  GWMA shall review the invoices 
and notify Consultant in writing within ten (10) business days of any disputed amounts.  GWMA 
shall pay all undisputed portions of the invoices within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt up 
to the maximum amount of compensation specified above.   GWMA shall make payment 
payable to: Tetra Tech, 3475 East Foothill Blvd., Pasadena, CA 91107.   

SECTION 6 - INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

Consultant is an independent contractor.  Neither Consultant nor any of Consultant’s officers, 
employees, agents or subconsultants, if any, shall be an employee of GWMA or its members by 
virtue of this Agreement or performance of the Services under this Agreement. 

SECTION 7 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Consultant and its officers, employees, associates and sub consultants, if any, shall comply with 
all applicable conflict of interest statutes of the State of California applicable to Consultant’s 
Services under this Agreement, including, the Political Reform Act (Cal. Gov. Code § 81000, et 
seq.) and Government Code Section 1090. 

SECTION 8 - INDEMNIFICATION 

Indemnities.  Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless GWMA, and its officials, 
officers, attorneys, agents, employees, designated volunteers, successors and assigns in 
accordance with the terms of this Section 9.  Consultant’s covenant under this Section 9 shall 
survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant hereby agrees, at its sole cost and expense, to 
protect, defend, hold harmless and indemnify GWMA, its officials, officers, attorneys, agents, 
employees, designated volunteers, successors, assigns and those GWMA agents serving as 
independent contractors in the role of GWMA officials (collectively “Indemnitees”) from and 
against any and all damages, costs, expenses, liabilities, claims, demands, causes of action, 
proceedings, expenses, judgments, penalties, liens, and losses of any nature whatsoever, 



3 | P a g e  
 

including fees of accountants, attorneys, or other professionals and all costs associated therewith 
and the payment of all consequential damages (collectively “Claims”), in law or equity, whether 
actual, alleged or threatened, which arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the acts or omissions of 
Consultant, its officers, agents, servants, employees, subconsultants, suppliers or their officers, 
agents, servants, employees, subconsultants, contractors (or any entity or individual that 
Consultant shall bear the legal liability thereof) in the performance of this Agreement, including 
the Indemnitees’ active or passive negligence, except for Claims arising from the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of Indemnitees, as determined by final arbitration or court decision or by 
the agreement of the parties.  Consultant shall defend Indemnitees in any action or actions filed 
in connection with any Claim with counsel of Indemnitees’ choice, and shall pay all costs and 
expenses, including all attorneys’ fees and experts’ costs actually incurred in connection with 
such defense.  Consultant shall reimburse Indemnitees for any and all legal expenses and costs 
incurred by Indemnitees in connection therewith. 

The indemnity under this Section 9 is effective regardless of any prior, concurrent, or subsequent 
misconduct, negligent acts, errors or omissions of the Indemnitees and without reference to the 
existence or applicability of any insurance coverages that are required under this Agreement or 
any additional insured endorsements that may extend to the Indemnitees.  The indemnity under 
this Section 9 is in addition to any other rights or remedies that the Indemnitees may have under 
the law.  Payment is not required as a condition precedent to the Indemnitees’ right to recover 
under this Section 9, and an entry of judgment against Consultant shall be conclusive in favor of 
the Indemnitees’ right to recover under this Section 9.  Consutltant shall pay Indemnitees for any 
attorneys fees and costs incurred in enforcing these indemnification provisions. 

SECTION 9 - INSURANCE 

Insurance Requirements. 

Consultant shall at all times during the term of this Agreement carry, maintain, and keep in full 
force and effect, the following policies of insurance with minimum limits as indicated below and 
issued by insurers with A.M. Best ratings of no less than A:VII: 

“Occurrence Form” Comprehensive General Liability Insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form 
CG 0001, covering liability on an occurrence basis) providing protection against bodily injury, 
including death, personal injury and property damage.  This insurance shall provide broad form 
contractual liability protection covering the indemnity provisions contained in this Contract, 
underground hazards, products-completed operations. A per occurrence limit of $2,000,000 and 
$4,000,000 in the aggregate, written, with dedicated limits, on a “per project” basis; and a 
products-completed operations aggregate limit of at least $4,000,000. The Contractor’s insurance 
policy shall include or be endorsed to include a “severability of interests” provision ensuring that 
each “additional insured” is treated as if it is the only insured; and “Occurrence Form” 
Automobile Liability Insurance providing protection against bodily injury, including death, and 
property damage.  This insurance shall provide contractual liability by endorsement (ISO Form 
CA 0001, Code 1, “any auto” or equivalent) and shall cover any motor vehicle (or mobile 
equipment, to the extent it may be excluded from general liability insurance) used by the 
Contractor (whether owned, non-owned, hired or scheduled). The Contractor’s insurance policy 



4 | P a g e  
 

shall include or be endorsed to include a “severability of interests” provision ensuring that each 
“additional insured” is treated as if it is the only insured; and  

Professional liability (if Design/Build), with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or 
claim, and $2,000,000 policy aggregate, with a five year tail from the completion of the project; 
and   

Workers’ compensation and Employer’s Liability:  Workers’ Compensation insurance as 
required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and Employers’ Liability insurance 
with a limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

The insurance required by this Section 10 shall apply on a primary non-contributing basis.  Any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by GWMA, its member agencies, officers, employees, 
agents, subcontractors or volunteers, shall be in excess of Consultant’s insurance and shall not 
contribute with it. 

The automobile and comprehensive general liability insurance policies shall contain an 
endorsement naming GWMA and its officers, employees, officials and agents as additional 
insureds.  All insurance policies shall contain an endorsement providing that the policies cannot 
be canceled or reduced except on thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to GWMA.  All insurance 
policies shall be endorsed to delete the subrogation condition as to GWMA, or shall explicitly 
allow Consultant to waive Consultant’s right of recovery prior to loss.  Consultant waives all 
rights of subrogation and contribution against GWMA.  Consultant shall require its insurer to 
modify the certificates of insurance to delete any exculpatory wording stating that failure of the 
insurer to mail written notice of cancellation imposes no obligation, and to delete the word 
“endeavor” with regard to any notice provisions. 

Consultant shall require all subconsultants or other third parties hired to perform services under 
this Agreement, to carry, maintain, and keep in full force and effect, insurance policies that meet 
the requirements of this Section 10, unless otherwise agreed to by GWMA.  The procurement of 
insurance by any subconsultant or other third party hired to perform services under this 
Agreement shall not relieve Consultant from any duties or liability otherwise arising under this 
Section 10. 

Prior to performance of the Services under this Agreement, Consultant shall file a certificate or 
certificates of insurance, together with the required endorsements, with GWMA showing that the 
insurance policies are in effect in the required amounts. 

SECTION 10 - TERMINATION 

Termination by the Parties. 

Termination by GWMA.  The Project Manager or GWMA Chair may terminate this Agreement 
or any portion of this Agreement or the Services required under this Agreement for any reason 
on ten (10) calendar days’ written notice to Consultant.  Upon receipt of a notice of termination, 
Consultant shall perform no further services except as specified in the notice.  Before the date of 
termination, Consultant shall deliver to GWMA all work product, whether complete or 
incomplete, prepared or compiled through the date of termination and not otherwise previously 



5 | P a g e  
 

delivered to GWMA.  GWMA shall pay Consultant for services satisfactorily performed in 
accordance with this Agreement to the date of termination.  GWMA shall reimburse Consultant 
for authorized expenses incurred to the date of termination and not previously reimbursed.  
Consultant shall not have any other claim against GWMA by reason of such termination. 

Termination by Consultant.  Consultant may terminate this Agreement on thirty (30) calendar 
days’ written notice to GWMA only in the event of a material default by GWMA, which default 
GWMA has not been cured within thirty (30) days following receipt by GWMA of written notice 
from Consultant specifying the basis of the alleged default. 

SECTION 11 - ADMINISTRATION 

GWMA’s representative for administration of this Agreement, is the Grace Kast, or such other 
person designated in writing by the Executive Officer (“Project Manager”).  Consultant’s 
representative for administration of this Agreement is Oliver Galang (“Consultant’s 
representative”), unless notified in writing by Consultant that additional representatives are 
authorized. 

SECTION 12 - NOTICES 

Any routine administrative communication between the Project Manager and the Consultant’s 
representative required to be in writing may be made by personal delivery, first class U.S. mail, 
facsimile transmission or electronic mail.  Any other notices, invoices or reports required by this 
Agreement shall be given by first class U.S. mail or by personal service.  Notices shall be 
deemed received on (a) the day of delivery if delivered by hand or overnight courier service 
during Consultant’s and GWMA’s regular business hours or by facsimile before or during 
Consultant’s regular business hours; or (b) on the third business day following deposit in the 
United States mail, postage prepaid, to the addresses below, or to such other addresses as the 
parties may, from time to time, designate in writing pursuant to the provisions of this Section 13.  
All notices shall be delivered to the parties at the following addresses: 

If to GWMA: Gateway Water Management Authority 
 Attn: Toni Penn 
 16401 Paramount Blvd. 
 Paramount, CA 90723 
 Email: tonipenn.gateway@gmail.com  
  

If to Consultant: Tetra Tech 
 Attn:  Oliver Galang 
 3475 East Foothill Blvd. 
 Pasadena, CA 91107 
 Email: oliver.galang@tetratech.com 
 Phone: 626-470-2423 
  

mailto:oliver.galang@tetratech.com


6 | P a g e  
 

SECTION 13 - WAIVER 

No delay or omission to exercise any right, power or remedy accruing to GWMA under this 
Agreement shall impair any right, power, or remedy of GWMA, nor shall it be construed as a 
waiver of, or consent to any breach or default.  No waiver of any breach, any failure of a 
condition, or any right or remedy under this Agreement (1) shall be effective unless it is in 
writing and signed by the party making the waiver; (2) shall be deemed to be a waiver of, or 
consent, to any other breach, failure of a condition, or right or remedy, or (3) shall be deemed to 
constitute a continuing waiver unless the writing expressly so states. 

SECTION 14 - ATTORNEY’S FEES 

In the event that either party to this Agreement shall commence any legal action or proceeding to 
enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party in such action or 
proceeding shall be entitled to recover its costs of suit, including reasonable attorney’s fees. 

SECTION 15 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement constitutes the final, complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the 
agreement between the parties pertaining to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes 
all other prior or contemporaneous oral or written understandings and agreements of the parties. 

SECTION 16 - MODIFICATION 

This Agreement may be supplemented, amended or modified only by a writing signed by 
Consultant and the Project Manager or GWMA Chair. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 



7 | P a g e  
 

The parties are signing this Agreement on the effective date. 

GWMA 

Los Angeles Gateway Region Integrated 
Regional Water Management Authority 

By:   
Name: Christopher Cash 
Title: Chair 

 
 

Consultant 

Tetra Tech 

By:   
Name:   
Title:   

By:   
Name:   
Title:   

(Please note: Two signatures required for 

corporations pursuant to California Corporations 

Code Section 313.) 

 



Statement of Qualifications for
General On-Call Professional 

General, Technical, and/or 
Engineering Services

Submitted To:
Gateway Water Management Authority

16401 Paramount Boulevard
Paramount, CA 90723

August 21, 2017

Submitted by:
Tetra Tech

3475 E. Foothill Blvd
Pasadena, CA 91107



  

 

 
August 21, 2017 

Ms. Bibi Weiss 
Gateway Water Management Authority 
16401 Paramount Boulevard 
Paramount, CA 90723 

Reference: STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR GENERAL ON-CALL PROFESSIONAL GENERAL, 
TECHNICAL, AND/OR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

Dear Ms. Weiss: 

Tetra Tech appreciates the opportunity to submit our Statement of Qualifications to provide engineering and consulting 
services on an “on-call” basis for supporting the regional watershed planning and implementation activities to Gateway Water 
Management Authority (GWMA) for its members, comprised of 25 cities and 4 water agencies.  We understand the GWMA 
primary goals and objectives include addressing water-dependent natural resource needs, protecting and enhancing water 
quality, optimizing water supply reliability, promoting integrated water resource management, and managing flood risk and 
water quality impacts. 

Tetra Tech has assembled a project team of experts to address the various needs for professional engineering services in the 
areas of water resources management, analysis, green infrastructure, and infrastructure design.  Our project team will be led 
by Oliver Galang who will serve as your Program Manager.  Chad Helmle will serve as Principal-in-Charge and also as 
Quality Assurance/Quality Control Manager for all work products. 

Our unique approach will include the following key elements: 

• Experienced Leadership Team. Our Project Manager, Oliver Galang, is a proven leader in planning, design, 
construction, and program management of multi-million dollar municipal capital improvement projects, programs, and 
on-call contracts, specifically in water resources and stormwater infrastructure throughout Los Angeles County.  He is 
leading the development of the Lower Los Angeles River Revitalization Plan, which addresses many of the unique 
challenges of the GWMA member agencies.   

• Unequaled Stormwater Technical Services Capabilities. Tetra Tech is the only team who has modeled and 
designed numerous regional BMPs for our clients throughout the Los Angeles region to make progress towards 
meeting EWMP or WMP goals. No other team in the region has designed more of these types of projects.   

• Local, and Almost Entirely Tetra Tech Staffing. Our proposed team, comprised almost entirely of Tetra Tech staff, 
is able to perform all of the required professional services stated in the request for statement of qualifications. This 
not only demonstrates that our staff have the necessary qualifications and experience to support the GWMA, but it 
allows for unparalleled cost control of technical services, which are always passed on to the benefit our client.  

As Principal-in-Charge, I would like to emphasize the fact that we have assembled this team specifically for this contract 
because they have technical expertise in providing professional, general, technical, and engineering services to your member 
agencies.  I strongly encourage you to contact our project references, including Lisa Rapp at the City of Lakewood and Kristen 
Ruffell at the Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County, for whom we have recently worked on complex regional stormwater 
BMP project designs.  We look forward to demonstrating unmatched professionalism, tested leadership, and superb technical 
fluency as we help this group implement a top-notched program for the GWMA. 

Should you have any questions, please contact our Program Manager, Oliver Galang at 626.470.2423 or 
oliver.galang@tetratech.com. 

Sincerely, 

 

 
Chad S. Helmle, PE     Oliver D. Galang, PE ENV SP, QISP, QSD/P 
Vice President      Project Manager 

Tetra Tech 
3475 East Foothill Boulevard, Pasadena 

Tel 626.351.4664 Fax 626.351.5291 www.tetratech.com 

mailto:oliver.galang@tetratech.com


  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

2. CONTENTS 

1. COVER LETTER .................................................................................................................................................1 
2. CONTENTS..........................................................................................................................................................2 
3. COMPANY QUALIFICATION..............................................................................................................................3 
4. DISCIPLINE SPECIFIC EXPERIENCE ...............................................................................................................6 

Experience in the Scope of Services ...................................................................................................................6 
Demonstrated Project Experience .......................................................................................................................7 

5. CLIENT REFERENCES .................................................................................................................................... 14 
6. PROJECT TEAM STAFF AND PROJECT ORGANIZATION ......................................................................... 15 
7. PROJECT APPROACH AND UNDERSTANDING .......................................................................................... 19 

Task 1. Feasibility Study and Project and/or Program Report Writing.............................................................. 19 
Task 2. Project Management ............................................................................................................................ 19 
Task 3. Watershed Projects .............................................................................................................................. 20 
Task 4. Project Bid Documents, Plans and Specifications ............................................................................... 21 
Task 5. Regional Planning Grant and/or Other Opportunities and  Task 6. Grant Writing and/or Grant 

Implementation Management ..................................................................................................................... 21 
Task 7. Strategic Local and/or Regional Planning Efforts ................................................................................ 22 
Task 8. GIS Mapping/Management .................................................................................................................. 23 
Task 9. CEQA/NEPA Environmental Proceedings ........................................................................................... 23 
Task 10. IRWM Related Programs and Activities ............................................................................................. 24 

8. BILLING RATE SCHEDULE ............................................................................................................................ 25 
9. LIST OF SUB-CONSULTANTS (IF ANY) ........................................................................................................ 25 
 

 2 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

3. COMPANY QUALIFICATION 

Tetra Tech, Inc., established in 1966 and headquartered in 
Pasadena, California, is a leading full service provider of 
consulting, engineering, program management, construction 
management, and technical services focusing on resource 
management, infrastructure, and the environment. Our firm offers 
a wide range of services provided by our 16,000 employees in 
over 300 offices around the world, including 20 offices throughout 
California. We typically begin at the earliest stage of a project, 
bringing a scientific perspective to evaluate problems and 
developing solutions tailored to our clients’ needs and resources. 
Our solutions can span the entire life-cycle of the project and 
include applied science, research and technology, environmental 
compliance, engineering, design, construction management, 
construction, operations and maintenance, and information 
technology.  

Our firm consistently ranks among the top engineering firms 
annually according to Engineering News-Record (ENR), a highly 
regarded industry news magazine. Tetra Tech has been ranked by 
ENR as № 1 in Water for 14 years in a row and the № 5 Design 
Firm (among Top 500 Design Firms). We have achieved our 
success by being selective with the projects we pursue and 
ensuring that our team capabilities meet or exceed the project’s 
requirements.  

As demonstrated throughout the remainder of this proposal, the 
Tetra Tech team has the technical skills, proven experience, and 
staff capacity to successfully support GWMA with any general, 
technical, or engineering service they might need to support their 
regional watershed planning and implementation activities. Tetra 
Tech represents the foremost multidisciplinary group of technical 
and professional staff offering GWMA extensive experience 
working together and a comprehensive knowledge of water 
resources opportunities, water quality analyses, modeling, and designing and executing similar types of projects.  

The Tetra Tech team brings experience with the local water resource environment, supporting multiple 
jurisdictions in Southern California.  Recently, Tetra Tech provided the following services for the GWMA agencies. 

• LA River Upper Reach 2 Watershed Management Program Feasibility Study.  Tetra Tech prepared the 
feasibility study for 6 regional BMP projects for the Cities of Bell, Bell Gardens, Commerce, Huntington 
Park, Maywood, and Vernon.  Tetra Tech’s collaborative approach to the development of this study 
resulted in the developing a significantly more cost effective program of projects for the watershed. 

• AB 530 Lower Los Angeles River Revitalization Plan.  Tetra Tech is developing a visionary community-
based plan for enhancements to the Lower Los Angeles River from the City of Vernon to the river outlet in 
Long Beach.  Tetra Tech’s efforts will result in an innovative strategy focused on addressing multiple 
community priorities including water resources, public recreation, habitat, and community sustainability. 

• Lakewood Stormwater Capture Projects.  Tetra Tech is providing design services to the City of Lakewood 
to develop and implement their two major stormwater BMP projects at Bolivar Park and Mayfair Park.  
With a combined budget of $26 million, Tetra Tech’s innovative approach to addressing multiple project 
benefits include water supply, water quality, and sustainability. 

In addition to the technical skills and experience, Tetra Tech provides a proven track record of success in 
managing on-call contracts, including for several local Southern California agencies. It is our commitment to 
provide the right staff and resources to ensure we can provide excellent support and high-quality products for any 

 3 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

project that might arise, within the required timeframe and budget. We have dedicated a core group of 
professionals who will be available throughout the duration of the contract. Each of these staff members has a 
personal history of providing support on similar projects throughout Southern California. The Tetra Tech team also 
has access to dozens of additional staff to add capacity and specialty skills as needed. 

We have selected the following highly qualified teaming partners who complement Tetra Tech’s skills and 
qualifications with specialized experience and enhance our capabilities to support GWMA across the full Scope of 
Services. Our teaming philosophy is to provide our clients access to staff who are the experts in their fields and to 
partner with firms who share our commitment to high-quality customized support. More details on each of our 
partners is provided in Section 9, as requested in the RFQ.  

MNS Engineers, Inc., will support grant writing and management as well as IRWM-
related programs and activities. With roots dating back well over 100 years, MNS has 
long been a cornerstone of the community in Santa Barbara, CA. Incorporated in 
1962, MNS was formed by the merger of three well-established firms and today is a 

multi-service infrastructure consulting firm, specializing in civil engineering, construction management, and land 
surveying services. MNS has a proven track record and a profound commitment to bettering California's local 
communities and has become an industry leader with an ever-expanding presence in California. To better serve 
its clients, MNS operates branch offices in Buellton, San Luis Obispo, San Jose, Salinas, Westlake Village, 
Pasadena, and Long Beach. MNS fully understands local water issues affecting GWMA, such as groundwater 
adjudication in the Central Basin, IRWM governance and policy, recycled and advanced treatment water projects, 
and the nexus between stormwater capture for water supply and MS4 Permit compliance for GWMA’s municipal 
members. MNS’s Project Manager, Greg Jaquez, once served as Los Angeles County’s legislative program 
manager on water, bringing the team a comprehensive understanding of regional water policy issues. MNS also 
serves as an on call engineering consultant to WRD and part of the GRIP team, providing the ability to draw 
connections between program and project needs and grant opportunities. 

Avant-Garde will provide expert support for grant writing. Located in Pomona, CA, 
Avant-Garde was incorporated in September 2002 and is a 100% woman-owned 
California Corporation and a certified minority business enterprise, women business 
enterprise, disadvantaged business enterprise and small business enterprise. 

(MBE, WBE, DBE, SBE). Their primary staff has more than 60 years of combined experience in grant writing and 
has secured more than $109 million in competitive grant funds for local communities throughout Los Angeles, San 
Bernardino, and Riverside Counties. They have a successful record of achievement in providing grant research, 
grant application development, grant fund administration, project management, and strategic planning to clients 
over the years. Avant-Garde specializes in government funding and grant sources with requirements ranging from 
basic applications and documentation to competitive project submittals. They have extensive experience working 
with regional transportation agencies as well as state and federal agencies administering grant programs. They 
can assist in determining eligible projects, provide advisement of program requirements and are available to 
prepare and administer the program as required by the funding agencies.  Avante-Garde’s extensive Southern 
California experience includes securing more than $23 million in grants for GWMA member cities.  

Richard Watson & Associates, Inc.  Richard Watson will provide leadership for 
Regional Planning Grants and Grant Writing and Implementation support for the GWMA 
member agencies.  Richard Watson is President of Richard Watson & Associates, Inc., an 
urban and regional planning firm based in Mission Viejo. He is a geographer/planner with 

40 years of professional planning experience, including over 23 years in the development and implementation of 
the stormwater quality program in California. 

  

 4 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

 
Value of the Tetra Tech Team to GWMA 

Benefit Approach 
Local Expertise  Our team will leverage our experience with 

and knowledge of water resource 
opportunities, water quality regulations to 
support the needs of the GWMA agencies 

 

Our team has a deep understanding 
of local water quality regulations and 
requirements. 

Unequaled Water Resources Technical Services 
Capabilities 

 Our team understands the water resource 
goals and needs of the GWMA 

 Our team will employ state-of-the-art 
modeling tools to develop the most cost-
effective designs for watershed projects. 

 Our team will also quantify pollutant load 
reductions and effectively communicate 
this progress to the regulators, leveraging a 
long history of trust with the regional board.  

Tetra Tech is the team who 
conducted the analysis for the Los 
Cerritos Channel Watershed and the 
Lower Los Angeles River Watershed.  
We are the only team who have 
successfully designed and 
implemented more regional BMPs 
than any other firm.  

Proven Responsiveness  Tetra Tech will work cooperatively with the 
City to ensure that the project goals and 
objectives are met for the various GWMA 
agencies. 

 Our team will work with the GWMA, its 
member agencies, and staff, to address 
their various needs.  

The Tetra Tech has successfully 
completed the optimization of 6 
regional BMPs identified for the LA 
River Upper Reach 2 Agencies and 
providing design services for projects 
funded through Caltrans Cooperative 
Implementation Agreements. 

Local, and almost entirely Tetra Tech Staffing  Tetra Tech will be responsible and readily 
accessible to meet your water resource 
technical needs from our local Pasadena 
Headquarters. 

 Tetra Tech has built a deep bench of local, 
talented staff who are uniquely experienced 
in development of these types of BMPs.   

The Tetra Tech team has several 
offices to serve GWMA with access to 
multiple resources and extensive 
stormwater experience. 

 5 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

4. DISCIPLINE SPECIFIC EXPERIENCE  

Tetra Tech has experience in all areas of the Scope of Services and is excited to support GWMA with any need 
that might arise. Section 4.1 provides a brief summary of our experience in the scope of services areas, and 
Section 4.2 provides short summaries of similar projects to demonstrate our practical experience across the 
scope of services. Table 4.1 presents a summary of Tetra Tech’s experience in the Scope of Services. Each of 
the projects listed as examples of relevant work are further described in Section 4.2. 

EXPERIENCE IN THE SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Table 4-1 summarizes the Tetra Tech team’s experience relevant to the Scope of Services area, including years 
of experience in each area, examples of related work, and whether work has been provided for municipalities or 
water agencies. All of our team members have multiple years support municipalities and water agencies 
throughout Southern California with similar projects. 

Table 4-1. Summary of Tetra Tech Team Years of Experience in the Scope of Services 

Project Component Te
tr

a 
Te

ch
 

R
ic

ha
rd

 W
at

so
n 

&
 

A
ss

oc
ia

te
s 

M
N

S 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 

A
va

nt
e 

G
ar

de
 

C
om

bi
ne

d 
Ye

ar
s 

of
 E

xp
er

ie
nc

e 

Fo
r a

 M
un

ic
ip

al
ity

 
or

 W
at

er
 A

ge
nc

y?
 

Example Projects 

TASK 1: Feasibility Study and 
Reports 

115       115 Both LA River Upper Reach 2 Feasibility Study 
Lakewood SW Capture Project, Phase 1 
Carson Water Capture Project, Phase 1 

TASK 2: Project Management 100       100 Both LA River Upper Reach 2 Feasibility Study 
Lakewood SW Capture Project, Phase 1 
Carson Water Capture Project, Phase 1 

TASK 3: Watershed Projects 90       90 Both LA River Upper Reach 2 Feasibility Study 
Lakewood SW Capture Project, Phase 1 
Carson Water Capture Project, Phase 1 

TASK 4: Bid Documents and 
Plans 

40       40 Both Bolivar Park Water Capture Project 
Santa Monica CBI Project at Pier and 
Pico-Kenter 

TASK 5: Regional Planning 
Grant 

22 20 25 48 95 Both South Orange County IRWMP 

TASK 6: Grant Writing and 
Implementation 

53 20 35 42 130 Both Bolivar Park Water Capture Project 
Santa Monica CBI Project at Pier and 
Pico-Kenter 

TASK 7: Strategic and Local 
Regional Planning 

30 20 20   50 Both AB 530 Lower LA River Revitalization 
Plan 
South Orange County IRWMP 

TASK 8: GIS Mapping and 
Management 

25       25 Both AB 530 Lower LA River Revitalization 
Plan 
South Orange County IRWMP 

TASK 9: Environmental 
Planning (CEQA/NEPA) 

50       50 Both Carson Water Capture Project 
Bolivar Park Water Capture Project 

TASK 10: IRWMP Updates 
and Listing 

20 20 10   30 Both South Orange County IRWMP 

  

 6 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

DEMONSTRATED PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

Table 4-2 presents select project examples that demonstrate the Tetra Tech team’s experience across the Scope 
of Services. Project summaries following the table provide additional details and highlight the team’s relevant 
experience throughout the Los Angeles Region. The staff who have been committed to working with GWMA have 
been hand-picked based on their experience working on the projects included in this section. 

Table 4-2. Relevance of Tetra Tech’s Project Examples to the Scope of Services 

Project Fo
r a

 M
un

ic
ip

al
ity

 o
r  

W
at

er
 A

ge
nc

y?
 

Fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 S

tu
dy

 a
nd

 
R

ep
or

ts
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

em
en

t 

W
at

er
sh

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

B
id

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 a

nd
 P

la
ns

 

R
eg

io
na

l P
la

nn
in

g 
G

ra
nt

 

G
ra

nt
 W

rit
in

g 
an

d 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
an

d 
Lo

ca
l R

eg
io

na
l 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 

G
IS

 M
ap

pi
ng

 a
nd

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
Pe

rm
itt

in
g 

(C
EQ

A
/N

EP
A

) 

IR
W

M
P 

U
pd

at
es

 a
nd

 L
is

tin
g 

Los Angeles River Upper Reach 2 Watershed 
Management Program Feasibility Study 

Yes           

Water Capture Project at Carriage Crest Park, 
Carson, CA 

Yes 
          

Bolivar Park Stormwater and Runoff Capture 
Project, Lakewood, CA 

Yes           

Mayfair Park Stormwater and Runoff Capture 
Project, Lakewood, CA 

Yes 
          

TMDL Compliance Plan for Los Cerritos 
Watershed Sub-basin 4 Project, Signal Hill, CA 

Yes           

AB 530 Lower LA River Revitalization Plan  Yes           

Los Angeles Area EWMPs and WMPs Yes           

Clean Beaches Initiative Project at the Pier and 
Pico-Kenter Watersheds, Santa Monica, CA 

Yes           

South Orange County Integrated Regional Water 
Management and Floodplain Management Plan 

Yes 
          

Safe Drinking Grant Support, Water Replenishment 
District of Southern California (MNS) 

Yes           

Orange County Stormwater Resources Plan Yes           

 

  

 7 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

Los Angeles River Upper Reach 2 Watershed Management Program Feasibility Study 
Client: City of Commerce, CA, Planning Division 
Project dates: June 2016 – April 2017 
Key staff from proposed team: Oliver Galang, Project Manager; Chad Helmle, Water Resources Manager; 
Jason Wright, Deputy Project Manager; Jason Fussel, Project Engineer 

The Los Angeles River (LAR) Upper Reach 2 (UR2) 
Watershed Management Area (WMA), consisting of the 
Los Angeles County Flood Control District (LACFCD) and 
the Cities of Bell, Bell Gardens, Commerce, Cudahy, 
Huntington Park, Maywood and Vernon, is a highly 
urbanized 14,216 acre watershed. The WMA cities lie 
exclusively within the Los Angeles River Watershed, and 
each agency discharges to Reach 2 of the LAR. Reach 2 is 
a concrete-lined river channel with year-round flows 
comprised primarily of treated wastewater. The Cities of 
Bell Gardens and Commerce also drain southeast to the 
normally dry concrete-lined Rio Hondo tributary channel.  

The LAR UR2 Reasonable Assurance Analysis (RAA) and Watershed Management Program (WMP) identified six 
regional BMP projects, estimated to cost a total of $210 million with an additional $90 million in residential and 
commercial LID street renovations that may need to be implemented over the next two decades to achieve permit 
numeric limits. Tetra Tech conducted a feasibility study for the six structural regional BMP projects to address the 
water quality limits as set forth in the WMP. The project feasibility study consolidates the evaluation and analysis 
of each site with all site investigation, hydrology and water quality analysis and summarizes the process for 
project implementation. The six projects locations are: John Anson Ford Park, Bell Gardens; Randolph Street 
Green Rail Trail, Huntington Park, Maywood, and Bell; LADWP Transmission Easement, Vernon; Rosewood 
Park, Commerce; Lugo Park, Cudahy; and Salt Lake Park, Huntington Park.  

Water Capture Project at Carriage Crest Park, Carson, CA 
Client: Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County 
Project dates: September 2016 – Present 
Key staff from proposed team: Oliver Galang, Project Manager; Chad Helmle, Water Quality Manager; Jason 
Fussel, Design Lead; Merrill Taylor, Water Quality Analysis; Brad Wardynski, Water Resources Lead 

Carriage Crest Park was identified in the Dominguez 
Channel Watershed Management Group EWMP as a high 
priority site for a regional stormwater capture project due to 
its proximity to two large storm drains with a total drainage 
area exceeding 1,100 acres. This area discharges into 
Wilmington Drain which subsequently discharges into 
Machado Lake. The overarching objective of the project is 
to improve the quality of Machado Lake by eliminating dry-
weather runoff and reducing wet-weather pollutant loading. 

The City of Carson entered into a Cooperative 
Implementation Agreement (CIA) with Caltrans to fund the 
Carson Water Capture Project at Carriage Crest Park. The 
City of Carson entered into a subsequent agreement with 
the Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County (LACSD) to manage the project.  

Tetra Tech developed the preliminary engineering design report which included the analysis and developed 
innovative water use and treatment scenarios including (1) diversion to the sanitary sewer for treatment at the 
adjacent Joint Water Pollutant Control Plant (JWPCP), (2) onsite non-potable use to offset potable water demand, 
and (3) onsite filtration using a subsurface filter media bed. The project consists of the following components. 

 8 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

• Storm Drain diversion at a rate of 30 cubic feet per second (cfs), 
• 11 acre-feet of subsurface storage under the existing ballfields, and 
• Pump Station to discharge to the sanitary sewer at a maximum rate of 20 cfs when capacity is available. 

Tetra Tech is also preparing the detailed design drawings, cost estimates, and specifications for the pre-cast 
structures package and for the construction of the regional stormwater BMP facility. 

Bolivar Park Stormwater and Runoff Capture Project 
Client: City of Lakewood, CA, Public Works 
Project dates: September 2015 – Present 
Key staff from proposed team: Oliver Galang, Project Manager; Chad Helmle, Water Resources Leader; Merrill 
Taylor, Water Quality Leader; Jason Fussel, Design Manager; Jeremy Hohnbaum, Civil Designer 

As a major step towards implementing the Los 
Cerritos Watershed Management Plan, the City of 
Lakewood is implementing what is considered the 
first, “smart regional stormwater BMP”. The project 
consists of an air-inflated rubber dam diversion 
system to re-direct all urban runoff and stormwater 
runoff from the Del Amo channel through a pre-
treatment system to remove trash, debris, and 
sediment. A pump station and drainage pipeline will 
convey the water into a large, buried multi-
chambered storage/infiltration facility. The 
stormwater collected in the underground reservoir 
will be treated and used to irrigate the park’s 
landscaped areas. Weather conditions and the 
facility will be monitored through a secured cloud-
based system. 

Tetra Tech developed the Preliminary Engineering 
Design Report in 3 months. Full Design and Bid 
Documents were completed in 8 months. Tetra Tech 
also assisted with the LACFCD Grant of Easement 
and Use Agreement, and all of the regulatory permits 
including the Corps of Engineers, Los Angeles 
Regional Water Quality Control Board, California 
Department of Fish and Game, and Los Angeles 
County Public Health. We are currently providing design support services during construction of the facility. 

This project, at a cost $11 million, is funded through a cooperative implementation agreement between the City of 
Lakewood and the State of California Department of Transportation. 

Mayfair Park Stormwater and Runoff Capture Project 
Client: City of Lakewood, CA, Public Works 
Project dates: September 2015 – Present 
Key staff from proposed team: Oliver Galang, Project Manager; Chad Helmle, Water Resources Leader; Merrill 
Taylor, Water Quality Leader; Jason Fussel, Design Manager; Jeremy Hohnbaum, Civil Designer 

This “smart regional stormwater BMP” is the next major step towards implementing the Los Cerritos Watershed 
Management Plan for the City of Lakewood. The project consists of an air-inflated rubber dam diversion system to 
re-direct all urban runoff and stormwater runoff from the Clark Channel through a pre-treatment system to remove 
trash, debris, and sediment. A drainage pipeline will convey the water into a large, buried multi-chambered 
storage and filtration facility. The stormwater collected in the underground reservoir will be treated and used to 

 9 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

irrigate the park’s landscaped areas. The 
system will monitor the weather conditions 
and the facility through a secured cloud-
based system. 

Tetra Tech conducted the geotechnical 
investigation to evaluate infiltration wells to 
enhance the potential for infiltration to the 
groundwater aquifer. After a detailed 
evaluation of these alternatives, Tetra Tech 
developed an approach that incorporates a 
filtration BMP, stormwater harvesting use, 
and potential for sanitary sewer discharge for 
operating and managing the regional BMP 
facility. Tetra Tech is preparing the detailed 
design drawings, engineers cost estimate, and construction specifications for a 14 acre-foot facility.  

This project, at a cost $14 million, is funded through a cooperative implementation agreement between the City of 
Lakewood and the State of California Department of Transportation. 

TMDL Compliance Plan for Los Cerritos Watershed Sub-basin 4 Project 
Client: City of Signal Hill, CA, Public Works 
Project dates: November 2015 – Present 
Key staff from proposed team: Tim Joyce, Project Manager; Chad Helmle, Water Quality Technical Manager; 
Merrill Taylor, Water Quality Analysis 

The Los Cerritos Channel Watershed is an urbanized 
watershed comprising approximately 17,700 acres. A 
Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) for metals was 
developed for the Los Cerritos Channel watershed, the 
watershed was divided into ten sub-watersheds 
ranging in size from approximately 305 acres to 3,720 
acres. This project addresses the TMDL Compliance 
Plan for Sub-Basin 4 of the Los Cerritos Channel, 
which is an area consisting of 2,200 acres located 
within the northern section of City of Signal Hill (City), 
the City of Long Beach near the airport, and Caltrans I-
405 freeway right-of-way. The City of Signal Hill 
received funding through Caltrans Stormwater 
Program’s Compliance Units Cooperative Implementation Agreement for this project. Tetra Tech is developing a 
comprehensive TMDL Compliance Plan for Los Cerritos Channel Sub-Basin 4 Drainage Area that will consider 
the TMDL wasteload allocations and the NPDES Permit Water Quality Based Effluent Limitations. In addition, 
Tetra Tech is developing a Basis of Design Report to assist with the design-build solicitation package for regional 
project within the sub-basin 4 drainage area adjacent to the Skylinks Golf Course in Long Beach. The Basis of 
Design Report will incorporate BMP optimization tools for diversion rates, BMP dimensions, and estimated 
pollutant load reductions. In addition, Tetra Tech will conduct model simulations to estimate the performance 
improvement of the BMP as a result of incorporating active controls as part of the BMP design. This has the 
potential ultimately reduce the need for additional future capital improvement projects in the upstream watershed 
to meet the remaining pollutant load reduction needs for the City. 

AB 530 Lower LA River Revitalization Plan  
Client: Los Angeles County, CA, Department of Public Works 
Project dates: May 2016 – Present 
Key staff from proposed team: Oliver Galang, Project Manager; Chad Helmle, Water Resources Manager; 
Jaime Sayre, Deputy Project Manager; Brad Wardynski, Water and Environment Lead  

 10 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

Tetra Tech is guiding the development of a revitalization plan for the Lower Los 
Angeles River from near 26th street in Vernon to the outlet in Long Beach, a total 
of river length of 19 miles. The plan is being developed in response to California 
Assembly Bill 530 (AB530), which requires the creation of the Lower Los Angeles 
River Working Group (Working Group) and the development of a community-
based watershed revitalization plan that addresses the unique and diverse needs 
of the Lower Los Angeles River and the communities.   

Tetra Tech is responsible for leading a diverse team of planners, landscape 
architects, scientists, and community organizations to develop an innovative plan 
that is a community-centric, watershed-based revitalization plan.  Such an 
endeavor requires seamless integration of two primary elements of this plan: (1) 
robust community engagement and (2) thorough technical analysis to ensure the 
implementation viability of the Plan. To address the myriad interdependent 
technical challenges, a multi-disciplined team is developing and analyzing the 
impacts of proposed revitalization activities, including river hydraulics, flood 
control, water quality, water supply, environment and habitat, active 
transportation, land use, and others.  It is imperative that these technical analyses 
are designed to serve the Working Group’s objectives by answering key 
questions, helping to align project ideas with watershed-based planning 
objectives, and ensuring that project concepts are packaged into multi-benefit 
bundles that are ideally suited for funding.   

To provide a focused strategy to address the multitude of priorities and needs of 
the river, Tetra Tech is guiding the Working Group members using a matrix approach through participation in the 
Plan Element Committees and the geographic-based River Segment Committees.  This innovative approach to 
address the multitude of issues for revitalization will create the environment for developing a consensus approach 
to watershed-based planning. 

Development of Watershed Management Programs (WMPs) and Enhanced WMPs 
(EWMPs)  
Client contact: Various throughout Los Angeles region 
Project dates: August 2013 – August 2015 
Key staff from proposed team: Chad Helmle, Water Resources Manager; Merrill Taylor, BMP Concepts and 
Modeling; Brad Wardynski, Water Quality Modeling; Jason Wright, BMP Design 

Development of WMPS for East San Gabriel, Lower 
LA River, Lower San Gabriel, Los Cerritos 
Channel, Long Beach Watershed Management 
Groups. Tetra Tech supported these projects that 
involved five watershed management groups and 29 
jurisdictions across greater Los Angeles County. The 
WMPs provide each jurisdiction a prescriptive strategy 
for compliance with multiple TMDLs. Specific efforts 
included innovative watershed-wide representation 
and modeling of potential green infrastructure 
opportunities. Schedules were developed to guide 
compliance with water quality waste load allocations 
under wet- and dry-weather conditions.  

Development of EWMPS for Upper LA River, Upper 
Santa Clara River, Upper San Gabriel River 
Watershed Management Groups. Supporting these 
projects that involve four watershed management 
groups and 30 jurisdictions across greater Los Angeles County. The EWMPs will provide a collaborative and 
prescriptive strategy for compliance with multiple TMDLs while also identifying opportunities for enhanced, 

 11 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

interagency projects promoting water quality improvement, water supply augmentation, and community 
services/co-benefits. Specific efforts include composition of a BMP characterization memo with conceptual BMP 
diagrams and fact sheets for a general audience; compilation, analysis, and geo-referencing of all reported 
existing and planned BMPs across the four watershed management groups; identification, realistic 
characterization, modeling, and optimization of potential network of institutional, regional, and green infrastructure 
projects; prioritization, geotechnical investigation, and conceptual design of multi-benefit regional stormwater 
projects, including options for local water supply augmentation through capture and use; targeted project 
scheduling to meet specific compliance milestones; and development of life-cycle cost estimates for program 
implementation. 

Clean Beaches Initiative Project at the Pier and Pico-Kenter Watersheds,  
Santa Monica, CA 
Client: City of Santa Monica, CA, Public Works, Civil Engineering Department 
Project dates: July 2016 – Present 
Key staff from proposed team: Oliver Galang, Project Manager; Chad Helmle, Water Quality Manager; Jason 
Fussel, Design Lead; Merrill Taylor, Water Quality Analysis 

Tetra Tech designed the Clean Beaches Initiative Project 
for the Pier and Pico-Kenter Drainage Basins. This 
project, on behalf of the City of Santa Monica, is a major 
effort to improve beach water quality from storm water 
runoff and increase the City's drought resiliency. Wet-
weather flows would be treated and diverted from the 
Pier watershed to the Santa Monica Urban Runoff 
Recycling Facility (SMURRF) or the sanitary sewer. This 
project proposes storm drain diversion and runoff storage 
systems at two separate storm drain outfalls. 

At the Santa Monica Pier storm drain, the project 
components consist of a flow diversion structure to direct 
stormwater and urban runoff from the 106-acre Pier watershed into a subsurface facility beneath the Deauville 
parking lot site. The subsurface storage facility will have a storage capacity of 1.6 million gallons. The stored 
water within the facility would be pumped to SMURRF and distributed for non-potable uses or the sanitary sewer. 
Additionally, the Deauville site will be improved with a new parking lot that will be consistent with the City’s Zoning 
and Municipal Code, which may require parking lot lighting, permeable pavement, and landscaping. 

At the Pico-Kenter storm drain, the project components consist of a diversion structure to divert 80,000 gallons of 
the “first flush” stormwater runoff for treatment at SMURRF and distributed for non-potable uses. A portable pump 
will also be provided to drain the post-storm event pond that forms downstream of the outfall at the beach. 

The total cost for design and construction of the regional project is estimated at $8 million. This project is funded 
by the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) Proposition 40 Clean Beaches Program, with a local 
match from the City Clean Beaches and Oceans Parcel Tax Fund. 

South Orange County Integrated Regional Water Management and Floodplain 
Management Plan 
Client: County of Orange, CA, Public Works 
Project dates: June 2012 – October 2013; February 2016 – June 2016 
Key staff from proposed team: Steve Parker, Project Manager 

Tetra Tech supported Orange County in the 2013 update to the Integrated Regional Water Management Plan 
(IRWMP), including the three major tasks of the Plan update, development of the Floodplain Management Plan, 
and the Climate Change Analysis.  

 12 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

Strategies were developed by the local working group to meet the regional priorities of the South Orange County 
Management Plan identified in the IRWMP. Tetra Tech developed a Prioritization Tool so that individual project 
proponents could rate their projects based on the established goals-objectives-strategies. Based on funding 
available through the State Proposition 84 IRWMP Implementation Program, the top rated projects were 
combined into a single portfolio and a grant application was submitted to the state.  

The foundation of the Floodplain Management Plan is an understanding of the flood managers (County and Cities 
in the South Orange County IRWM region) and managers at the water agencies responsible for flood response 
within the South OC IRWM region. Tetra Tech developed a matrix of responsibilities that identified points of 
integration and/or collaboration and supported workshops with the flood managers to present an overall picture of 
the current process of coordinating flood risk management across the region and brainstorm the drivers that limit 
integration and the opportunities for improvement. Tetra Tech prepared a preliminary Flood Risk Assessment 
using HAZUS data to prioritize those areas with the highest risk of impact to human life and property. This Flood 
Risk Assessment is used to prioritize areas for improved flood risk management and has been incorporated into 
the Floodplain Management Plan. 

Tetra Tech conducted the Climate Change Analysis based on requirements in the August 2010 Guidelines for 
IRWM plans. The analysis addressed both adaptation to the effects of climate change and mitigation of 
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions and focused on the potential effects of climate change on Orange County.   

Safe Drinking Water Program (MNS) 
Client contact: Water Replenishment District of Southern California 
Project dates: Present 
Key staff from proposed team: Greg Jaquez, Project Manager 

MNS provides on-call engineering services to the Water Replenishment District (WRD) of Southern California. 
WRD has implemented its own Safe Drinking Water Program on behalf of the water agencies that are producers 
from the Central Basin and West Coast Basin. As WRD’s on-call engineer, MNS prepared feasibility studies 
detailing project concepts to address water quality concerns at wells owned and operated by the Cities of 
Compton and Huntington Park. WRD used these feasibility studies to submit applications for Proposition 1 
Groundwater Grants. 

Orange County Stormwater Resources Plan 
Client: County of Orange, CA, Public Works 
Project dates: February 2016 – December 2016 
Key staff from proposed team: Steve Parker, Project Manager; Martina Frey, Project Scientist 

Tetra Tech supported Orange County in the 2016 creation of the 
Stormwater Resources Plan (SWRP), representing a collection of 
functionally equivalent documents and previous planning efforts 
conducted by the Plan Agencies to meet compliance with NPDES, 
TMDL and IRWM state planning standards. Tetra Tech, with 
guidance from the County, assisted in assembling, distilling, and 
tying the various programs into a holistic document that 
represented the County’s efforts to address all stormwater 
management aspects.  

Documents included in the OC SWRP to meet functional 
equivalency collectively balance watershed priorities, including 
water quality, water supply and efficiency, flood management and 
natural resource protection. These included the South Orange 
County WQIP, Report of Waste Discharge State of the 
Environment Reports for the Santa Ana and San Diego Regions 
of Orange County (ROWDs), and Integrated Regional Watershed 
Management Plans (IRWM Plans). The primary intent of the OC 
SWRP however was to prioritize stormwater and dry weather 

 13 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

runoff projects. Tetra Tech developed a project identification and prioritization system with project description 
forms completed by project proponents to be included in the SWRP for submittal to the state for grant funding.  

Finally, the SWRP as a whole had to identify and describe the watersheds targeted by the OC SWRP, including 
water quality priorities, physical water and land features, and water supply issues. Water quality compliance was 
detailed as well as emphasizing the organization, coordination, and collaboration among agencies in the County. 
Implementation strategies and schedules were determined as well as the means for public education, outreach, 
and participation. The SWRP followed strict guidelines put out by the state and identified each requirement in the 
document with a summary of how the requirement was met and the relevant reference document identified by 
section and page number to meet full compliance. 

5. CLIENT REFERENCES 

Table 5-1. Client References for Similar Services Provided by Tetra Tech within the Last 5 Years 
Client Contact Name, Phone, Email Key Highlights of Client Relationship 
City of Lakewood, CA: Lisa Rapp, Director of 
Public Works, 562.866.9771 x2500, 
lrapp@lakewoodcity.org  

• City Project Manager for Bolivar Park and Mayfair Park Water 
Capture Projects 

• Caltrans-funded projects through the Cooperative Implementation 
Agreement 

• Time-constrained projects require close coordination with the LA 
County Flood Control District 

Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County: 
Kristen Ruffel, Tech Services/Water Quality 
Manager, 562.908.4288 x2826, 
kruffell@lacsd.org  

• Project Lead for the Carson Carriage Crest Park Stormwater 
Capture Project 

• Coordinator for stormwater and sanitary sewer discharge by 
municipal clients per AB 485 

• Time-constrained project 

City of Carson, CA: Maria Slaughter-Williams, 
Director of Public Works, 310.952.1754, 
mslaughter@carson.ca.us  

• Director of Public Works for the Carson Carriage Crest Park Project 
• Caltrans-funded projects through the Cooperative Implementation 

Agreement 
City of Santa Monica, CA: Selim Eren, Project 
Manager, 310.458.2200, Selim.Eren@smgov.net  

• Project Manager for the State-funded CBI Project at the Pier and 
Pico-Kenter Waterseds 

• Time-constrained project that Tetra Tech accelerated delivery 

City of Commerce, CA: Gina Nila, Stormwater 
Program Manager, 323.722.4805 x2839, 
GinaN@ci.commerce.ca.us  

• Project Manager for the Gateway Cities Watershed Authority 
• Developed five individual stormwater concepts for the LA River 

Watershed 
City of Los Angeles, Bureau of Sanitation: 
Vivian Marquez, Environmental Supervisor, 
Watershed Protection Division, 213.485.3928, 
Vivian.Marquez@lacity.org  

• Design-Build project to meet implementation deadlines for the City’s 
25 automated sampling stations required under the Coordinated 
Integrated Monitoring Programs 

 

  

 14 August 21, 2017 

mailto:lrapp@lakewoodcity.org
mailto:kruffell@lacsd.org
mailto:mslaughter@carson.ca.us
mailto:Selim.Eren@smgov.net
mailto:GinaN@ci.commerce.ca.us
mailto:Vivian.Marquez@lacity.org


  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

6. PROJECT TEAM STAFF AND PROJECT ORGANIZATION  

Tetra Tech is committed to delivering top quality professionals to support the GWMA, and our team is committed 
to open communication, joint problem solving, partnering, and teamwork to accomplish the goals of any 
assignment. We have selected experienced staff currently working on relevant projects and who have knowledge 
of the local watershed planning issues and challenges. The organization of Tetra Tech’s proposed team is shown 
in Figure 6-1. We have identified a management team consisting of our Program Manager, Principal-in-Charge, 
and QA/QC Manager, as well as Technical Leads for each of the Scope of Service areas identified in the RFP. 
The organizational chart also identifies the key technical staff who are committed to support each Scope of 
Service area, representing a talented pool of staff available to support any need the GWMA might need. Each 
member of our team has been selected to add strength in their unique area of expertise. Many of these team 
members have successfully worked together on relevant projects throughout Southern California, bringing a level 
of familiarity, respect, and teamwork that results in efficient and expert completion of tasks.  

The following biographical sketches highlight key 
qualifications and experience of our management team, who 
will provide oversight and ensure delivery of services, and 
our technical leads for the Scope of Services areas. We 
have carefully selected a team of technical staff with the 
demonstrated experience and requisite skills and knowledge 
to support GWMA across the full Scope of Services. 
Proposed team members are available and we commit their 
time and effort necessary to successfully complete any 
project that might arise through this on-call contract.  

Chad Helmle, PE – Principal-in-Charge and QA/QC Manager. Mr. Helmle will be 
responsible for assuring the GWMA’s satisfaction with the Tetra Tech team’s work to 
support all scope areas. He will actively lead the strategic decision making for all task 
orders, ensure the team has appropriate resources to meet GWMA’s needs, and will be 
dedicated to seeing that project objectives, schedule, and budget goals are met. Drawing 
on his extensive experience managing large municipal on-call stormwater contracts, he 
will guide and assist our project manager with client and agency coordination. He prides 
himself in taking an active management role and will remain engaged in a meaningful 
and productive manner throughout the duration of the contract. 

Mr. Helmle is a Vice President in Tetra Tech’s Integrated Watershed Management group and has overseen 
numerous large municipal on-call stormwater programs throughout southern California in the past ten years, 
including for the City of San Diego, County of Los Angeles, City of Los Angeles, County of Riverside, and County 
of San Bernardino. Projects emerging from these programs regularly include strategic watershed and stormwater 
management plans, green infrastructure master plans, distributed and regional-scale stormwater capture designs, 
and watershed and BMP modeling analyses. He also led Tetra Tech’s modeling efforts for the Reasonable 
Assurance Analysis (RAA) for seven of the largest EWMP and WMP groups in the region including Los Cerritos 
Channel and Lower San Gabriel River. Over the course of managing these projects, he has continually pushed 
the envelope to improve his team’s methods by innovating new processes, templates, and tools for creating 
effective and robust design concepts and modeling approaches for stormwater capture projects.  

Through this work, he has developed a reputation as an innovator in the field and has established a trusted 
relationship with the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board – a relationship that is crucial for helping 
his clients effectively communicate progress towards regulatory goals. 

Offering a Team Respected Throughout the Region 

We are excited to support the GWMA to continue 
supporting challenging and important regional 
watershed planning activities. We encourage 
GWMA to contact our references provided in 
Section 5 to get a firsthand account of the level of 
service and expertise our team provides.  

 15 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

 

Figure 6.1. Tetra Tech Team Organization Chart 

 16 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

Oliver Galang, PE, ENV SP, QSD/P, QISP – Program Manager and Project 
Management Lead. Mr. Galang will be responsible for managing this contract, 
coordinating the individual task orders, and providing overall responsibility for the 
delivery of work products for GWMA. His experience encompasses more than 23 years 
of planning, design, construction and program management of multi-million dollar 
municipal capital improvement projects and programs, specifically in water resources 
and stormwater infrastructure throughout Los Angeles County. Mr. Galang will bring to 
GWMA invaluable technical expertise and experience working with regulatory agencies 
on behalf of clients. 

Mr. Galang has been responsible for or personally led the development of numerous major regional stormwater 
BMPs, including Lakewood Stormwater Capture Projects at Bolivar and Mayfair Parks, Santa Monica CBI Project 
at the Pier and Pico Kenter Basins, Signal Hill TMDL Implementation, Aliso Creek and Limekiln Creek 
Restoration, Echo Park Lake Rehabilitation, and Penmar Water Quality Improvement Project. Mr. Galang’s career 
also includes service as Head of the Los Angeles River Watershed Section of the Los Angeles County 
Department of Public Works’ Watershed Management Division. His responsibilities included staff management 
and direction for the planning of multi-use, multi-benefit projects along the Los Angeles River, with an estimated 
construction value of more than $60 million.  

Throughout his career, Mr. Galang, has established cooperative relationships with a number of regulatory 
agencies throughout the Los Angeles Region. He served as the Head of the Data Management Section of the Los 
Angeles County Department of Public Works’ Watershed Management Division and was responsible for an 
annual budget of more than $10 million in urban runoff and stormwater quality monitoring programs, including Los 
Angeles County Flood Control District (LACFCD’s) NPDES Municipal Stormwater Monitoring Program. His 
relationships with multiple local jurisdictions in the Los Angeles area will only enhance GWMA’s ability to meet 
their mission for regional watershed planning and implementation. 

Brad Wardynski, PE – Feasibility Study and Reports Lead; Strategic and Local 
Regional Planning Lead. Mr. Wardynski has six years of experience in the fields of 
urban hydrology and green infrastructure and his areas of expertise include stormwater 
control measure performance, formulation and adaptation of stormwater design guidance 
for specific climates and physiographic regions, targeted stormwater control measure 
design and optimization for regulatory compliance (including real-time control systems), 
and development of web-based applications for data management and decision support. 
In recent years, Mr. Wardnynski has applied his expertise to support Southern California 
in preparing strategic stormwater planning documents for regulatory compliance. He has 
led development of approaches that rely on an innovative use of existing data, application of complex models, 
and a firm understanding on implementation and compliance realities. Mr. Wardynski also ensures that plans 
capitalize on integration opportunities by designing solutions with multiple program objectives in mind (e.g., water 
supply resiliency, water quality, hydromodification).  

Mr. Wardynski played a key role in developing Enhanced Watershed Management Programs (EWMPs) for four 
watershed management groups and 30 jurisdictions across greater Los Angeles County. The EWMPs provide a 
collaborative and prescriptive strategy for compliance with multiple TMDLs while also identifying opportunities for 
enhanced, interagency projects promoting water quality improvement, water supply augmentation, and 
community services/co-benefits. He also served as a technical advisor for the Los Angeles River Upper Reach 2 
Watershed Feasibility Study and for several Water Quality Improvement Plans (WQIPs) for the City of San Diego. 

Merrill Taylor, PE – Watershed Projects Lead.  Mr. Taylor is a water resources 
engineer with nearly 10 years of experience in the areas of watershed management, 
hydrologic and water quality studies, point and nonpoint source pollution characterization 
and assessment, and BMP modeling and design, currently focusing on watershed 
planning and BMP projects in Southern California.  He has served as technical lead and 
support for the research and development of watershed models to support multiple 
planning and implementation efforts in Southern California, including multiple watersheds 
in Los Angeles County and numerous watersheds in the San Diego Region. Mr. Taylor 
also provides engineering support to municipal clients for the development of watershed 

 17 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

management plans and hydromodification management plans to support BMP/LID implementation. He has 
practical experience in many facets of water resource engineering, with an in-depth understanding of the 
relationship between hydrology, water quality, watershed management, and regulations.  

Mr. Taylor recently led water quality, hydrology, and hydraulic modeling to develop a conceptual design for a 
regional BMP opportunity in the Los Cerritos Channel sub-basin for City of Signal Hill. He supported design of the 
innovative BMP diversion, footprint, and drainage area to optimize compliance with WMP water quality targets. He 
was also the modeling lead for design of the City of Lakewood stormwater capture projects in Bolivar and Mayfair 
Parks and led the modeling analysis and identification of distributed and regional BMP opportunities for the City of 
San Diego’s Chollas Creek Watershed Master Plan to support compliance with the MS4 Permit and TMDLs.  

Jason Fussel, PE, PLS, QSD/P, LEED AP, ENV SP – Bid Documents and Plans 
Lead. Mr. Fussel has more than 13 years of relevant experience designing and 
overseeing construction of stormwater BMPs, including implementation of sustainable 
design practices for a vast array of improvement projects. His experience spans the 
project lifecycle, including stormwater analysis and studies, design, preparation of 
specifications, bid documents and cost estimates, and construction support services.  

Mr. Fussel is the Design Manager overseeing detailed design services for City of 
Lakewood’s Mayfair Park Stormwater Capture Project and City of Carson’s Carriage 
Crest Park Water Capture Project and served as Design Manager for Lakewood’s 
constructed Bolivar Park Stormwater Capture Project and the Santa Monica CBI Project at Pier and Pico-Kenter 
watersheds. He also managed the City of Los Angeles Bureau of Engineering’s Albion Riverside Park Project, 
which will transform a six-acre site, previously used for dairy warehousing and distribution, into a riverfront park 
and recreational facility. The project also includes the diversion of both dry-weather and wet-weather flows to 
underground infiltration galleries. Mr. Fussel’s significant involvement in and LID and stormwater pollution 
prevention and reduction projects in Southern California, specifically as Engineer of Record for several important 
Proposition O projects for the City of Los Angeles, provides the foundation for his continued leadership in the 
industry. He is also a certified Envision™ Sustainability Professional and licensed land surveyor. 

Richard Watson, Regional Planning Grant and Grant Writing and Implementation Lead.  Richard Watson is 
President of Richard Watson & Associates, Inc., an urban and regional planning firm based in Mission Viejo. He is 
a geographer/planner with 40 years of professional planning experience, including over 23 years in the 
development and implementation of the stormwater quality program in California.  He is responsible for assisting 
the following GWMA Agencies with funding regional stormwater BMPs through Caltrans’ Cooperative 
Implementation Agreements that have a combined value of $79 Million: City of Bellflower, Lakewood, Long 
Beach, and Signal Hill. 

Steve Parker – GIS Mapping Lead; IRWMP Updates and Listing Lead. Mr. Parker has 13 years of experience 
as a GIS specialist for environmental planning and hydrologic and hydraulic engineering. He has provided 
mapping, imagery interpretation, and GIS analysis as well as H&H modeling using FLO-2D, HEC-RAS and 
GeoRAS, and HEC-HMS and GeoHMS for a wide variety of water resource related projects throughout Southern 
California. He has strong skills in ArcGIS, Adobe Photoshop, and Adobe Illustrator, with the ability to integrate 
AutoCAD or Microstation data and move data or graphics between all platforms for the best results. For example, 
Mr. Parker provided mapping and GIS analysis that expertly supported alternatives evaluations, engineering 
design analyses, and public engagement activities for the Aliso Creek Mainstem Ecosystem Restoration Study for 
the USACE Los Angeles District. Additional examples of his experience includes GIS support to map and develop 
alternatives for the USACE’s Los Angeles River Ecosystem Restoration Feasibility Study; floodplain mapping for 
CLOMR projects throughout Riverside County; and mapping of levee inspection results throughout the Los 
Angeles region. In addition to his GIS expertise, Mr. Parker has experience supporting IRWMP and related 
activities for Southern California municipalities. For example, he provided a variety of technical support for 
development of the Orange County IRWMP and managed subsequent updates to the IRWMP in 2017 to comply 
with 2016 guidelines. He also managed development of the county’s Stormwater Resources Plan to meet state 
guidelines for receiving grant funding for water resource planning.  

Rene Longman, Environmental Planning and Permitting Lead. Ms. Longman is an urban and environmental 
planner with extensive experience in the preparation and management of CEQA/NEPA technical documents, 
permitting, and coordination with government and regulatory agencies. She has worked on a variety of projects 

 18 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

including transportation, energy (solar, wind, power plants, and oil & gas), mixed-use, educational (K-12 and 
higher education), industrial, and public works. As a planner, she works with public agencies in the identification 
of existing land use conditions, analyzing a proposed project for compatibility with existing land uses, and 
assessing the consistency of a proposed project with relevant planning policies and regulations. Ms. Longman 
also has experience in preparing aesthetics studies for environmental documents, zoning compliance, design 
review, and public outreach efforts including public workshops and community meetings. Her experience includes 
preparation of regulatory documents for a wide range of projects throughout California, such as a Program EIR for 
a revitalization and redevelopment project in Commerce; EIR/EIS for environmental impacts of the California 
High-Speed Rail Project in Los Angeles and Orange Counties; Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) for the 
construction and operation of a public sports park in Riverside; and Categorical Exemption for a street 
improvement project in La Habra.   

7. PROJECT APPROACH AND UNDERSTANDING 

TASK 1. FEASIBILITY STUDY AND PROJECT AND/OR PROGRAM REPORT WRITING  

Building upon the modeling analysis our 
team did for the Watershed Management 
Programs for the Lower Los Angeles River 
and the Los Cerritos Channel, the Tetra 
Tech team will conduct feasibility studies, 
project reports, or program reports for the 
GWMA.  The development of studies or 

reports should be founded on a thorough analysis of potential 
project site locations in order to meet the stated objectives of 
the GWMA member agencies.  Our experienced team will 
evaluate potential projects on the basis of existing As-Builts, 
elevations, and potential configurations.  Feasibility studies 
are intended to represent 10% level of design progress and 
may include preliminary design details, preliminary schedules, 
cost estimate, and a list of environmental permits.  As an 
example, Tetra Tech conducted the Feasibility Study for the 
Lower Los Angeles River Upper Reach 2 Regional BMP 
projects.  Our team developed the analysis on the basis of 
addressing first the water quality objectives of the program 
and incorporated an approach that included infiltration testing 
and optimization analysis.  This effort resulted in significant 
cost savings of over a $100 Million as compared to the initial 
estimates. 

TASK 2. PROJECT MANAGEMENT  

Tetra Tech understands appropriate planning, 
status, and monitoring are key to successful 
project execution and completion. Tetra Tech’s 
project controls methodology and practice focus 
on Shared Vision, Do it Right principles, and 
providing client value through service and 
quality. In addition to this fundamental focus, 

Tetra Tech continues to refine processes based on project team 
recommendations as a result of program reviews. Project 
Management will consist of coordination with the GWMA agencies 
and project stakeholders, scheduling, budgeting, progress 

Tetra Tech incorporated BMP optimization that 
resulted in significant program implementation 
cost savings for the LA River Upper Reach 2 
feasibility study 
 

Tetra Tech will setup a SharePoint site 
to provide the GWMA with access to the 
team and data 24/7 

 19 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

reporting, and invoicing.  Tetra Tech uses a SharePoint site to support coordination efforts with our clients and 
allow sharing of project files.  

TASK 3. WATERSHED PROJECTS 

Tetra Tech is a national leader in watershed projects and best management practices (BMPs), 
providing rapid state-of-the-practice services to municipalities, counties, and agencies 
throughout southern California and the United States. As regulatory plans are completed and 
stormwater retrofit requirements mount, the technical, policy, and social issues facing the 
region present a significant challenge. The opportunity to bring innovation and creative 
problem-solving to bear has allowed our leadership to assemble a team comprising some of the 
sharpest minds in the industry. Tetra Tech’s engineers and scientists are working on the cutting 

edge of emerging issues in BMP engineering and water resource integration and pride ourselves on leveraging 
new technology and big data to guide our designs and link them to multiple objectives.  Our team focuses on 
establishing a collaborative, problem-solving mindset with our clients – oftentimes sharing the results of the efforts 
on regional or national conference stages.   

Tetra Tech’s tried and tested multidisciplinary group of technical and professional staff offers GWMA extensive 
experience working together and a comprehensive knowledge of water quality analyses, modeling, and designing 
and executing similar types of projects. Of particular note is our team’s unmatched depth of experience designing 
regional stormwater projects. No other team has completed a comparable number of similar projects in the region.  
Design of such projects requires a unique set of skills that can only be derived from experience. While each 
project presents its own set of challenges, 
our team has encountered and overcome 
countless engineering feasibility issues to 
create projects that are  

• Efficient at capturing, treating, 
and/or harvesting stormwater;  

• Practical to maintain;  
• Affordable; and  
• Effective at communicating 

compliance. 

As part of this substantial suite of 
experience, our engineers and scientists 
have worked on the cutting edge of 
emerging issues in urban runoff diversion 
facilities; post-construction structural 
urban runoff treatment BMPs; wetland and 
riparian habitat restoration projects; low 
impact development (LID) and site design 
BMPs; runoff capture, harvest and reuse; 
stream restoration; and other water quality 
and water resource improvement projects. 

Full 
Design

(9)

Concept 
Design

(32)

Fact 
Sheet
(19)

Tetra Tech is the leader in the development of watershed-based 
designs for BMPs 

 20 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

TASK 4. PROJECT BID DOCUMENTS, PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

Tetra Tech provides a proven track record of success in developing bid documents, plans and 
specifications for large, multi-discipline, multi-task projects. The project team members have 
managed A-E Design contracts for various federal, state, and local agencies, and our staff has 
supported the GWMA agencies for 35 years. Tetra Tech’s long working relationship with these 
agencies provides us with an understanding of the current procedures and policies and the 
challenges the GWMA faces in administering their programs. It is our corporate commitment to 
maintain excellence in performance for the GWMA by providing the right staff and resources 

that will ensure the team’s capability 
to complete the work within the 
required time. 

The team will coordinate with the 
GWMA agencies to develop the front 
end bid documents, design plans and 
specifications.  Our project team 
incorporates experience and lessons 
learned from previous projects into 
each new design project.  As an 
example, Tetra Tech’s effort with the 
design of pre-cast storage and 
infiltration units at Lakewood’s Bolivar 
Park has provided enhancements to 
our designs for Bellflower’s Caruthers 
Park Stormwater and Urban Runoff 
Capture Project. 

TASK 5. REGIONAL PLANNING GRANT AND/OR OTHER OPPORTUNITIES AND  
TASK 6. GRANT WRITING AND/OR GRANT IMPLEMENTATION MANAGEMENT  

Undertaking a grant writing and management 
program for GWMA requires an understanding of 
the local water issues affecting GWMA, such as 
groundwater adjudication in the Central Basin, 
IRWM governance and policy, recycled and 
advanced treatment water projects, and the 
nexus between stormwater capture for water 

supply and MS4 Permit compliance for GWMA’s municipal 
members.  

Our team subcontractors, led by Richard Watson, MNS, and Avant-
Garde fully understand these issues and have successfully won 
millions of dollars’ worth of grant funding for Southern California 
clients. Having once served as Los Angeles County’s legislative 
program manager on water, MNS’s Project Manager, Greg Jaquez, 
has a comprehensive understanding of regional water policy issues. 
MNS also serves as an on call engineering consultant to WRD and 
part of the GRIP team, providing the ability to draw connections 
between program and project needs and grant opportunities. 
Avante-Garde has secured grants for projects for economic development, infrastructure, technology, energy, 
water, stormwater, transportation, sustainability, and transit. Their extensive Southern California experience 
includes securing more than $23 million in grants for GWMA member cities. MNS and Avante-Garde have, or 
have had, relationships with GWMA members, potential partner agencies, and other stakeholders such as:  

For the City of Lakewood, Tetra Tech’s design plans and specifications 
for the Mayfair Park Water Capture Project that incorporates recent 
updates from the Bolivar Park construction phase.  The GWMA agencies 
will benefit from our team’s experience and efficiency measures 

Our team will support the GWMA with 
identifying and applying for multiple grant 
opportunities and implementation of 
various funding grants 

 21 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

• Cities of Bell Gardens, Commerce, Cudahy, Hawaiian Gardens, La Mirada, Lynwood, Maywood, Montebello, 
Norwalk, Pico Rivera, and Vernon 

• Los Angeles County Flood Control District 
• U. S. Army Corps of Engineers 
• Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 
• Water Replenishment District of Southern California 
• San Gabriel and Lower Los Angeles Rivers and Mountains Conservancy 
• Non-profit organizations such as Amigos de los Rios, Council for Watershed Health, From Lot to Spot, Los 

Angeles Neighborhood Land Trust 

TASK 7. STRATEGIC LOCAL AND/OR REGIONAL PLANNING EFFORTS  

Our approach to Strategic Local and 
Regional Planning Efforts consists of 
seamless integration of collaborative 
stakeholder workshops, community 
outreach, and thorough technical analysis 
to ensure the implementation viability of the 
Plan. To address the myriad 

interdependent technical challenges associated with local and 
regional planning efforts for the GWMA, Tetra Tech provides 
a multi-disciplined team of technical experts in areas of 
planning, water resources, and sustainability.  Our team is 
capable of analyzing the impacts of proposed project and 
programs activities relative to a wide range of key technical 
areas, including hydraulics, flood control, water quality, water 
supply, environment and habitat, active transportation, land 
use, and others.  It is imperative that these technical analyses 
serve the GWMA’s objectives by answering key questions, 
helping to align project ideas with watershed-based planning 
objectives, and ensuring that project concepts are packaged 
into multi-benefit bundles that are ideally suited for funding.   

Our plans also capitalize on integration opportunities by 
designing solutions with multiple program objectives in mind 
(e.g., water supply resiliency, water quality, flood control, 
habitat). Simply stated, our team abides by the following 
tenets to guide our approach: 

• Use data wisely – Data resolution and quality at the 
planning scale can make or break a plan.  While 
insufficient data can likely be successfully crafted into an 
approved plan, long-term compliance might be at risk due 
to an inability to implement or successfully monitor water 
quality improvement. High-resolution datasets such as 
asset inventories or LiDAR might prove invaluable.   

• Ensure implementation feasibility – Watershed models must be crafted to accurately reflect engineering 
constraints and integration opportunities that will face the operations, design, and construction teams 
responsible for implementing the recommended actions. Failure to capture key nuances might introduce fatal 
flaws or result in missed opportunities for integrating multi-benefit solutions. 

• Align with monitoring strategy – Plans must integrate actions that will yield measurable results. This 
requires a thoughtful interpretation of water quality criteria, a deliberate alignment between expected outcomes 
and monitoring strategies, and a clear explanation of methods. 

• Engage and educate – Even the most innovative and scientifically sound plans are subject to failure if key 
stakeholders cannot understand or relate to the story. Our team has honed the difficult skill of distilling complex 

Our unique approach to planning for the Lower 
Los Angeles River resulted in the development of 
a planning framework that balances multiple 
objectives based on stakeholder priorities. 

 22 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

information into easily understandable and approachable material. Our relationships with local NGOs and 
regulators have proved invaluable to this engagement process.      

As part of the development of the AB 530 Lower LA River Revitalization Plan, Tetra Tech developed a multi-
objective framework that identified community priorities in the areas of Community Economics, Public Realm, and 
Water and the Environment.  The goals of objectives for these priorities were used as the basis for identify 
opportunities for revitalizing the Lower Los Angeles River.  Consistent with the AB 530 legislation, an extensive 
Community Outreach program was implemented to gather feedback on the plan development progress.  The 
framework development for the Lower LA River fostered an environment of mutual understanding and respect for 
the stakeholders from environmental groups and municipalities. 

TASK 8. GIS MAPPING/MANAGEMENT  

Tetra Tech is well-known in the region for our unique approach to integration of strategic 
stormwater planning documents with GIS Mapping and Management.  Our method requires an 
innovative use of existing data, deft application of complex models, a firm grip on 
implementation realities, and a delicate touch for expressing the story of compliance and 
priorities. Tetra Tech has conducted GIS Mapping and data management as the basis for our 
watershed-based analysis for the Lower Los Angeles River and the development of the 
Reasonable Assurance Analysis for the Watersheds of the Lower Los Angeles River and the 

Los Cerritos Channel. 

TASK 9. CEQA/NEPA ENVIRONMENTAL PROCEEDINGS  

Tetra Tech assists clients with every step of the 
environmental planning and permitting process. Our 
knowledge of the regulatory environment in 
Southern California allows us to identify 
stakeholders early in the process so that an 
expedited consultation to identify resource-specific 
issues occurs. Early and frequent communication 

with jurisdictional agencies is key to a streamlined environmental 
review and permitting process.  

We begin the environmental process with a thorough review off all 
proposed project actions and develop a detailed project description. 
Based on the project description, we will identify potential issues and 
constraints; agencies that will require consultation; anticipated 
permits; anticipated type of CEQA and/or NEPA document; and 
develop a proposed schedule. We then identify key technical staff to 
best meet the project’s needs.  

Tetra Tech will assist the GWMA in determining if a proposed project 
(action) is exempt from CEQA review either by statute or pursuant to a 
categorical exemption. If desired, Tetra Tech will also prepare a 
Notice of Exemption (NOE) and file it with the State Clearinghouse 
and County Clerk.  

Initial Studies (IS) are prepared based on CEQA requirements and the 
CEQA Guidelines IS Checklist form, and consider all phases of project planning, implementation, and operation. 
The IS provides a brief description of the project, the environmental setting, identifies potential environmental 
effects, and proposes mitigations for potential significant environmental impacts or effects. The IS will contain a 
complete list of references and people contacted during preparation of the environmental document. 

Reports prepared for the project site will be reviewed, such as Phase I and II Environmental Site Assessments 
(ESAs), technical studies, feasibility studies, inventory surveys, planning documents, previous CEQA/NEPA 
documents, and GIS data. The information sought may include impact assessment methods for similar projects, 

Our team will support the GWMA with 
addressing the applicable provisions of 
CEQA/NEPA including the processing of 
environmental permits 

 23 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

agency and public concerns, newspaper articles, traffic studies, air quality and air emissions data, hydrology and 
water quality data, infrastructure drawings, equipment descriptions, and other information useful in describing the 
existing environment or assessing potential project impacts. The information collected at this stage will be 
reviewed for completeness, accuracy, relevance, and historical context. Where data is incomplete, data collection 
in the field may be necessary or additional technical studies may be recommended.  

TASK 10. IRWM RELATED PROGRAMS AND ACTIVITIES 

The Tetra Tech Team will support the GWMA with the Integrated Water Management related 
programs and activities including meeting facilitation, updates to the IRWM Program Plan, 
implementation grant applications, and identification of emerging priority projects.  Tetra Tech 
supported the County of Orange in the 2013 update to the Integrated Regional Water 
Management Plan (IRWMP). The three major tasks Tetra Tech was involved in were the Plan 
update, development of the Floodplain Management Plan, and the Climate Change Analysis. 
This document provided the guiding plan for short-term and long-term activities in South 

Orange County to improve the handling of local water resources.  In addition to the IRWMP Plan update, a matrix 
of responsibilities was developed that identified points of integration and/or collaboration. Workshops were held 
among the flood managers to present an overall picture of the current process of coordinating flood risk 
management across the South OC IRWM Region and brainstorm the drivers that limit integration and the 
opportunities for improvement. 

 

  

Tetra Tech will support the GWMA with IRWM related Program and activities including plan updates, grant 
support, and project opportunity identification and prioritization 

 24 August 21, 2017 



  General On-Call Professional General, Technical  
Gateway Water Management Authority   and/or Engineering Services 

8. BILLING RATE SCHEDULE  

Professional Classification  Rate  Unit 
Principal  $             235.00  hr.  

Project Manager  $             220.00  hr.  

Senior Water Resources/Civil/Environ Engineer  $             175.00  hr.  

Water Resources/Civil/Environ Engineer  $             140.00  hr.  

Assistant Civil/Environmental/Water Resources Engineer  $             100.00  hr.  

Contract Administrator  $               96.00  hr.  

Project Assistant  $               96.00  hr.  

Principal, QA/QC Manager  $             235.00  hr.  

Senior Engineer (Civil)  $             195.00  hr.  

Staff Designer  $             125.00  hr.  

Survey Technician  $               90.00  hr.  

CADD Designer  $             120.00  hr.  

Project Assistant  $               85.00  hr.  

Two Man Survey Crew  $             210.00  hr.  

Principal Engineer / Geologist  $             230.00  hr.  

Project Engineer / Geologist  $             145.00  hr.  

Scientist (Staff Scientist)  $             126.00  hr.  

Senior Technician  $               98.00  hr.  

Environmental Planner  $             130.00  hr.  
 

9. LIST OF SUB-CONSULTANTS (IF ANY)  

Tetra Tech has partnered with the following sub-consultants to support GWMA across the full Scope of Services. 

Sub-consultant Contact/Address Proposed Role 
MNS Engineers, Inc.  
1055 E. Colorado Blvd., Suite 500 
Pasadena, CA 91106 

Greg Jaquez, PE, Principal Project 
Manager, Government Services Division 
323.484.5737 
gjaquez@mnsengineers.com  

Grant writing and management; 
IRWM-related programs and 
activities 

Avant-Garde 
3670 West Temple Avenue, Suite 278 
Pomona, CA 91768 

Simona Ramirez 
909.979.6581 
sramirez@agi.com.co 

Grant writing 

Richard Watson & Associates, Inc. (RWA)  
21922 Viso Lane 
Mission Viejo, CA 92691-1318  

Richard Watson 
949.855.6272 
rwatson@rwaplanning.com 

Regional Planning Grant and 
Grant Writing and Implementation 

 

 

 25 August 21, 2017 



Gateway Water Management Authority
16401 Paramount Boulevard

Paramount, CA 90723



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated and effective NOVEMBER 9, 

2017 and is between the Los Angeles Gateway Region Integrated Regional Water Management 

Authority also referred to as the Gateway Water Management Authority (“GWMA”) and 

Geosyntec Consultants (“Consultant”). 

The parties agree as follows: 

SECTION 1 - SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Consultant shall provide the services (the “Services”) described with each requested scope of 

services upon GWMA’s approval of cost, schedule and any other applicable terms. 

SECTION 2 - TIME FOR PERFORMANCE 

The term of this Agreement shall commence on the effective date of this Agreement and expire 

on November 9, 2022, unless earlier terminated in accordance with the terms of this Agreement 

or extended by the Project Manager or GWMA Chair. 

SECTION 3 - STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE 

Consultant’s services shall be performed in accordance with generally accepted professional 

practices and principles and in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily 

exercised by members of Consultant’s profession currently practicing under similar conditions.  

By delivery of completed work, Consultant certifies that the work conforms to the requirements 

of this Agreement and all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.  Consultant 

shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement all licenses, certifications, registrations or 

other similar requirements necessary for Consultant’s performance of services under this 

Agreement. 

SECTION 4 - OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT 

Upon delivery, the work product, including, without limitation, all original reports, writings, 

recordings, drawings, files, and detailed calculations developed under this Agreement 

(collectively “work product”) are GWMA’s property.  All copyrights that arise from work 

product shall vest in GWMA.  Consultant waives and relinquishes all claims to copyright or 

other intellectual property rights in the work product in favor of GWMA.  GWMA’s use of the 

work product is limited to the purposes contemplated by the  Services and Consultant 

makes no representation of the suitability of the work product for use in or application to 

circumstances not contemplated by this Agreement.  Any alteration or reuse by GWMA of the 

work product on any project other than the Services provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be 

at GWMA’s sole risk, unless GWMA compensates Consultant for such alteration or reuse. 

   AGENDA ITEM NO. 8B



2 | P a g e  

 

SECTION 5 - COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT 

GWMA shall pay Consultant, for the Services performed based on the proposal/quote received 

and accepted for each scope of work.  

Consultant shall perform the Services for the amount(s) listed for each scope of work.  GWMA 

shall not withhold federal payroll, state payroll and other taxes, or other similar deductions from 

each payment made to Consultant.  Consultant shall pay all applicable federal, state, and local 

excise, sales, consumer use, and other similar taxes required by law.  GWMA shall not allow any 

claims for additional services performed by Consultant, unless the Project Manager or GWMA 

Chair authorizes the additional services in writing prior to Consultant’s performance of the 

additional services or the incurrence of additional expenses.  Any additional services authorized 

by the Project Manager or GWMA Chair shall be compensated at the hourly rates set forth 

above, or, if not specified, at a rate mutually agreed to by the parties.  Consultant shall submit 

invoices to GWMA on a monthly basis for actual work performed and actual expenses incurred 

during the preceding month.  The invoices shall describe in detail the services performed by each 

person for each task, including the days and hours worked.  GWMA shall review the invoices 

and notify Consultant in writing within ten (10) business days of any disputed amounts.  GWMA 

shall pay all undisputed portions of the invoices within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt up 

to the maximum amount of compensation specified above.   GWMA shall make payment 

payable to: Geosyntec Consultants, 6167 Bristol Parkway, Suite 390, Culver City, CA 90230. 

SECTION 6 - INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

Consultant is an independent contractor.  Neither Consultant nor any of Consultant’s officers, 

employees, agents or subconsultants, if any, shall be an employee of GWMA or its members by 

virtue of this Agreement or performance of the Services under this Agreement. 

SECTION 7 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Consultant and its officers, employees, associates and sub consultants, if any, shall comply with 

all applicable conflict of interest statutes of the State of California applicable to Consultant’s 

Services under this Agreement, including, the Political Reform Act (Cal. Gov. Code § 81000, et 

seq.) and Government Code Section 1090. 

SECTION 8 – INDEMNIFICATION 

A. Indemnities.  Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless GWMA, and 

its officials, officers, attorneys, agents, employees, designated volunteers, successors and assigns 

in accordance with the terms of this Section 8.  Consultant’s covenant under this Section 8 shall 

survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

B. Indemnity for Design Professional Services.  To the fullest extent permitted by 

law, Consultant shall, at its sole cost and expense, protect, indemnify, and hold harmless GWMA 

and its elected officials, officers, attorneys, agents, employees, designated volunteers, successors, 

assigns and those GWMA agents serving as independent Consultants in the role of GWMA 

officials (collectively “Indemnitees”), from and against any and all damages, costs, expenses, 

liabilities, claims, demands, causes of action, proceedings, judgments, penalties, liens, and losses 



3 | P a g e  

 

of any nature whatsoever, including fees of accountants, attorneys, or other professionals and all 

costs associated therewith, and reimbursement of attorney’s fees and costs of defense 

(collectively “Liabilities”), whether actual, alleged or threatened, which arise out of, are claimed 

to arise out of, pertain to, or relate to, in whole or in part, the negligence, recklessness or willful 

misconduct of Consultant, its officers, agents, servants, employees, subcontractors, material men, 

contractors or their officers, agents, servants or employees (or any entity or individual that 

Consultant shall bear the legal liability thereof) in the performance of design professional 

services under this Agreement by a “design professional,” as the term is defined under California 

Civil Code Section 2782.8(c)(2). 

C. Other Indemnities.  Other than in the performance of design professional services 

and to the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant hereby agrees, at its sole cost and expense, 

to protect, defend, hold harmless and indemnify GWMA, its officials, officers, attorneys, agents, 

employees, designated volunteers, successors, assigns and those GWMA agents serving as 

independent contractors in the role of GWMA officials (collectively “Indemnitees”) from and 

against any and all damages, costs, expenses, liabilities, claims, demands, causes of action, 

proceedings, expenses, judgments, penalties, liens, and losses of any nature whatsoever, 

including fees of accountants, attorneys, or other professionals and all costs associated therewith 

and the payment of all consequential damages (collectively “Claims”), in law or equity, whether 

actual, alleged or threatened, which arise out of, are claimed to arise out of, pertain to, or relate 

to the acts or omissions of Consultant, its officers, agents, servants, employees, subconsultants, 

suppliers or their officers, agents, servants, employees, subconsultants, contractors (or any entity 

or individual that Consultant shall bear the legal liability thereof) in the performance of this 

Agreement, including the Indemnitees’ active or passive negligence, except for Claims arising 

from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of Indemnitees, as determined by judicial 

decision or by the agreement of the parties.  Consultant shall defend Indemnitees in any action or 

actions filed in connection with any Claim with counsel of Indemnitees’ choice, and shall pay all 

costs and expenses, including all attorneys’ fees and experts’ costs actually incurred in 

connection with such defense.  Consultant shall reimburse Indemnitees for any and all legal 

expenses and costs incurred by Indemnitees in connection therewith.  The indemnity under the 

Section 8-C is effective regardless of any prior, concurrent, or subsequent misconduct, negligent 

acts, errors or omissions of the Indemnitees.  

D. General Provisions.  The indemnity in Section 8 is effective without reference to 

the existence or applicability of any insurance coverages that are required under this Agreement 

or any additional insured endorsements that may extend to the Indemnitees.  The indemnity 

under Section 8 is in addition to any other rights or remedies that the Indemnitees may have 

under the law.  Payment is not required as a condition precedent to the Indemnitees’ right to 

recover under this Section 8, and an entry of judgment against Consultant shall be conclusive in 

favor of the Indemnitees’ right to recover under Section 8.  Consultant shall pay Indemnitees for 

any attorney’s fees and costs incurred in enforcing these indemnification provisions. 



4 | P a g e  

 

 

 

SECTION 9 - INSURANCE 

Insurance Requirements. 

Consultant shall at all times during the term of this Agreement carry, maintain, and keep in full 

force and effect, the following policies of insurance with minimum limits as indicated below and 

issued by insurers with A.M. Best ratings of no less than A:VII: 

“Occurrence Form” Comprehensive General Liability Insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form 

CG 0001, covering liability on an occurrence basis) providing protection against bodily injury, 

including death, personal injury and property damage.  This insurance shall provide broad form 

contractual liability protection covering the indemnity provisions contained in this Contract, 

underground hazards, products-completed operations. A per occurrence limit of $2,000,000 and 

$4,000,000 in the aggregate, written, with dedicated limits, on a “per project” basis; and a 

products-completed operations aggregate limit of at least $4,000,000. The Contractor’s insurance 

policy shall include or be endorsed to include a “severability of interests” provision ensuring that 

each “additional insured” is treated as if it is the only insured; and “Occurrence Form” 

Automobile Liability Insurance providing protection against bodily injury, including death, and 

property damage.  This insurance shall provide contractual liability by endorsement (ISO Form 

CA 0001, Code 1, “any auto” or equivalent) and shall cover any motor vehicle (or mobile 

equipment, to the extent it may be excluded from general liability insurance) used by the 

Contractor (whether owned, non-owned, hired or scheduled). The Contractor’s insurance policy 

shall include or be endorsed to include a “severability of interests” provision ensuring that each 

“additional insured” is treated as if it is the only insured; and  

Professional liability (if Design/Build), with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or 

claim, and $2,000,000 policy aggregate, with a five year tail from the completion of the project; 

and   

Workers’ compensation and Employer’s Liability:  Workers’ Compensation insurance as 

required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and Employers’ Liability insurance 

with a limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

The insurance required by this Section 10 shall apply on a primary non-contributing basis.  Any 

insurance or self-insurance maintained by GWMA, its member agencies, officers, employees, 

agents, subcontractors or volunteers, shall be in excess of Consultant’s insurance and shall not 

contribute with it. 

The automobile and comprehensive general liability insurance policies shall contain an 

endorsement naming GWMA and its officers, employees, officials and agents as additional 

insureds.  All insurance policies shall contain an endorsement providing that the policies cannot 

be canceled or reduced except on thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to GWMA.  All insurance 

policies shall be endorsed to delete the subrogation condition as to GWMA, or shall explicitly 

allow Consultant to waive Consultant’s right of recovery prior to loss.  Consultant waives all 



5 | P a g e  

 

rights of subrogation and contribution against GWMA.  Consultant shall require its insurer to 

modify the certificates of insurance to delete any exculpatory wording stating that failure of the 

insurer to mail written notice of cancellation imposes no obligation, and to delete the word 

“endeavor” with regard to any notice provisions. 

Consultant shall require all subconsultants or other third parties hired to perform services under 

this Agreement, to carry, maintain, and keep in full force and effect, insurance policies that meet 

the requirements of this Section 10, unless otherwise agreed to by GWMA.  The procurement of 

insurance by any subconsultant or other third party hired to perform services under this 

Agreement shall not relieve Consultant from any duties or liability otherwise arising under this 

Section 10. 

Prior to performance of the Services under this Agreement, Consultant shall file a certificate or 

certificates of insurance, together with the required endorsements, with GWMA showing that the 

insurance policies are in effect in the required amounts. 

SECTION 10 - TERMINATION 

Termination by the Parties. 

Termination by GWMA.  The Project Manager or GWMA Chair may terminate this Agreement 

or any portion of this Agreement or the Services required under this Agreement for any reason 

on ten (10) calendar days’ written notice to Consultant.  Upon receipt of a notice of termination, 

Consultant shall perform no further services except as specified in the notice.  Before the date of 

termination, Consultant shall deliver to GWMA all work product, whether complete or 

incomplete, prepared or compiled through the date of termination and not otherwise previously 

delivered to GWMA.  GWMA shall pay Consultant for services satisfactorily performed in 

accordance with this Agreement to the date of termination.  GWMA shall reimburse Consultant 

for authorized expenses incurred to the date of termination and not previously reimbursed.  

Consultant shall not have any other claim against GWMA by reason of such termination. 

Termination by Consultant.  Consultant may terminate this Agreement on thirty (30) calendar 

days’ written notice to GWMA only in the event of a material default by GWMA, which default 

GWMA has not been cured within thirty (30) days following receipt by GWMA of written notice 

from Consultant specifying the basis of the alleged default. 

SECTION 11 - ADMINISTRATION 

GWMA’s representative for administration of this Agreement, is the Grace Kast, or such other 

person designated in writing by the Executive Officer (“Project Manager”).  Consultant’s 

representative for administration of this Agreement is Ken Susilo (“Consultant’s 

representative”), unless notified in writing by Consultant that additional representatives are 

authorized. 

SECTION 12 - NOTICES 

Any routine administrative communication between the Project Manager and the Consultant’s 

representative required to be in writing may be made by personal delivery, first class U.S. mail, 



6 | P a g e  

 

facsimile transmission or electronic mail.  Any other notices, invoices or reports required by this 

Agreement shall be given by first class U.S. mail or by personal service.  Notices shall be 

deemed received on (a) the day of delivery if delivered by hand or overnight courier service 

during Consultant’s and GWMA’s regular business hours or by facsimile before or during 

Consultant’s regular business hours; or (b) on the third business day following deposit in the 

United States mail, postage prepaid, to the addresses below, or to such other addresses as the 

parties may, from time to time, designate in writing pursuant to the provisions of this Section 13.  

All notices shall be delivered to the parties at the following addresses: 

If to GWMA: Gateway Water Management Authority 

 Attn: Toni Penn 

 16401 Paramount Blvd. 

 Paramount, CA 90723 

 Email: tonipenn.gateway@gmail.com  

  

If to Consultant: Geosyntec Consultants 

 Attn: Ken Susilo 

 6167 Bristol Parkway 

 Suite 390 

 Culver City, CA 90230 

 Email: ksusilo@geosyntec.com 

 Phone: (310) 957-6111 

  

SECTION 13 - WAIVER 

No delay or omission to exercise any right, power or remedy accruing to GWMA under this 

Agreement shall impair any right, power, or remedy of GWMA, nor shall it be construed as a 

waiver of, or consent to any breach or default.  No waiver of any breach, any failure of a 

condition, or any right or remedy under this Agreement (1) shall be effective unless it is in 

writing and signed by the party making the waiver; (2) shall be deemed to be a waiver of, or 

consent, to any other breach, failure of a condition, or right or remedy, or (3) shall be deemed to 

constitute a continuing waiver unless the writing expressly so states. 

SECTION 14 - ATTORNEY’S FEES 

In the event that either party to this Agreement shall commence any legal action or proceeding to 

enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party in such action or 

proceeding shall be entitled to recover its costs of suit, including reasonable attorney’s fees. 

SECTION 15 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement constitutes the final, complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the 

agreement between the parties pertaining to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes 

all other prior or contemporaneous oral or written understandings and agreements of the parties. 

mailto:ksusilo@geosyntec.com


7 | P a g e  

 

SECTION 16 - MODIFICATION 

This Agreement may be supplemented, amended or modified only by a writing signed by 

Consultant and the Project Manager or GWMA Chair. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 



8 | P a g e  

 

The parties are signing this Agreement on the effective date. 

GWMA 

Los Angeles Gateway Region Integrated 

Regional Water Management Authority 

By:   

Name: Christopher Cash 

Title: Chair 

 

 

Consultant 

Geosyntec Consultants  

By:   

Name:   

Title:   

By:   

Name:   

Title:   

(Please note: Two signatures required for 

corporations pursuant to California Corporations 

Code Section 313.) 

 























































PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated and effective NOVEMBER 9, 
2017, and is between the Los Angeles Gateway Region Integrated Regional Water Management 
Authority also referred to as the Gateway Water Management Authority (“GWMA”) and GEI 
Consultants (“Consultant”). 

The parties agree as follows: 

SECTION 1 - SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Consultant shall provide the services (the “Services”) described with each requested scope of 
services upon GWMA’s approval of cost, schedule and any other applicable terms. 

SECTION 2 - TIME FOR PERFORMANCE 

The term of this Agreement shall commence on the effective date of this Agreement and expire 
on November 9, 2022, unless earlier terminated in accordance with the terms of this Agreement 
or extended by the Project Manager or GWMA Chair. 

SECTION 3 - STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE 

Consultant’s services shall be performed in accordance with generally accepted professional 
practices and principles and in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily 
exercised by members of Consultant’s profession currently practicing under similar conditions. 
By delivery of completed work, Consultant certifies that the work conforms to the requirements 
of this Agreement and all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.  Consultant 
shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement all licenses, certifications, registrations or 
other similar requirements necessary for Consultant’s performance of services under this 
Agreement. 

SECTION 4 - OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT 

Upon delivery, the work product, including, without limitation, all original reports, writings, 
recordings, drawings, files, and detailed calculations developed under this Agreement 
(collectively “work product”) are GWMA’s property.  All copyrights that arise from work 
product shall vest in GWMA.  Consultant waives and relinquishes all claims to copyright or 
other intellectual property rights in the work product in favor of GWMA.  GWMA’s use of the 
work product is limited to the purposes contemplated by the  Services and Consultant 
makes no representation of the suitability of the work product for use in or application to 
circumstances not contemplated by this Agreement.  Any alteration or reuse by GWMA of the 
work product on any project other than the Services provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
at GWMA’s sole risk, unless GWMA compensates Consultant for such alteration or reuse. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8B



2 | P a g e  
 

SECTION 5 - COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT 

GWMA shall pay Consultant, for the Services performed based on the proposal/quote received 
and accepted for each scope of work.  

Consultant shall perform the Services for the amount(s) listed for each scope of work.  GWMA 
shall not withhold federal payroll, state payroll and other taxes, or other similar deductions from 
each payment made to Consultant.  Consultant shall pay all applicable federal, state, and local 
excise, sales, consumer use, and other similar taxes required by law.  GWMA shall not allow any 
claims for additional services performed by Consultant, unless the Project Manager or GWMA 
Chair authorizes the additional services in writing prior to Consultant’s performance of the 
additional services or the incurrence of additional expenses.  Any additional services authorized 
by the Project Manager or GWMA Chair shall be compensated at the hourly rates set forth 
above, or, if not specified, at a rate mutually agreed to by the parties.  Consultant shall submit 
invoices to GWMA on a monthly basis for actual work performed and actual expenses incurred 
during the preceding month.  The invoices shall describe in detail the services performed by each 
person for each task, including the days and hours worked.  GWMA shall review the invoices 
and notify Consultant in writing within ten (10) business days of any disputed amounts.  GWMA 
shall pay all undisputed portions of the invoices within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt up 
to the maximum amount of compensation specified above.   GWMA shall make payment 
payable to: GEI Consultants, P.O. Box 843005, Boston, MA 02284-3005.                                                                                                    

SECTION 6 - INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

Consultant is an independent contractor.  Neither Consultant nor any of Consultant’s officers, 
employees, agents or subconsultants, if any, shall be an employee of GWMA or its members by 
virtue of this Agreement or performance of the Services under this Agreement. 

SECTION 7 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Consultant and its officers, employees, associates and sub consultants, if any, shall comply with 
all applicable conflict of interest statutes of the State of California applicable to Consultant’s 
Services under this Agreement, including, the Political Reform Act (Cal. Gov. Code § 81000, et 
seq.) and Government Code Section 1090. 

SECTION 8 - INDEMNIFICATION 

Indemnities.  Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless GWMA, and its officials, 
officers, attorneys, agents, employees, designated volunteers, successors and assigns in 
accordance with the terms of this Section 8.  Consultant’s covenant under this Section  8 shall 
survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant hereby agrees, at its sole cost and expense, to 
protect, defend, hold harmless and indemnify GWMA, its officials, officers, attorneys, agents, 
employees, designated volunteers, successors, assigns and those GWMA agents serving as 
independent contractors in the role of GWMA officials (collectively “Indemnitees”) from and 
against any and all damages, costs, expenses, liabilities, claims, demands, causes of action, 
proceedings, expenses, judgments, penalties, liens, and losses of any nature whatsoever, 



3 | P a g e  
 

including fees of accountants, attorneys, or other professionals and all costs associated therewith 
and the payment of all consequential damages (collectively “Claims”), in law or equity, whether 
actual, alleged or threatened, which arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the acts or omissions of 
Consultant, its officers, agents, servants, employees, subconsultants, suppliers or their officers, 
agents, servants, employees, subconsultants, contractors (or any entity or individual that 
Consultant shall bear the legal liability thereof) in the performance of this Agreement, including 
the Indemnitees’ active or passive negligence, except for Claims arising from the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of Indemnitees, as determined by final arbitration or court decision or by 
the agreement of the parties.  Consultant shall defend Indemnitees in any action or actions filed 
in connection with any Claim with counsel of Indemnitees’ choice, and shall pay all costs and 
expenses, including all attorneys’ fees and experts’ costs actually incurred in connection with 
such defense.  Consultant shall reimburse Indemnitees for any and all legal expenses and costs 
incurred by Indemnitees in connection therewith. 

The indemnity under this Section 8 is effective regardless of any prior, concurrent, or subsequent 
misconduct, negligent acts, errors or omissions of the Indemnitees and without reference to the 
existence or applicability of any insurance coverages that are required under this Agreement or 
any additional insured endorsements that may extend to the Indemnitees.  The indemnity under 
this Section 8 is in addition to any other rights or remedies that the Indemnitees may have under 
the law.  Payment is not required as a condition precedent to the Indemnitees’ right to recover 
under this Section 8, and an entry of judgment against Consultant shall be conclusive in favor of 
the Indemnitees’ right to recover under this Section 8.  Consutltant shall pay Indemnitees for any 
attorneys fees and costs incurred in enforcing these indemnification provisions. 

SECTION 9 - INSURANCE 

Insurance Requirements. 

Consultant shall at all times during the term of this Agreement carry, maintain, and keep in full 
force and effect, the following policies of insurance with minimum limits as indicated below and 
issued by insurers with A.M. Best ratings of no less than A:VII: 

“Occurrence Form” Comprehensive General Liability Insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form 
CG 0001, covering liability on an occurrence basis) providing protection against bodily injury, 
including death, personal injury and property damage.  This insurance shall provide broad form 
contractual liability protection covering the indemnity provisions contained in this Contract, 
underground hazards, products-completed operations. A per occurrence limit of $2,000,000 and 
$4,000,000 in the aggregate, written, with dedicated limits, on a “per project” basis; and a 
products-completed operations aggregate limit of at least $4,000,000. The Contractor’s insurance 
policy shall include or be endorsed to include a “severability of interests” provision ensuring that 
each “additional insured” is treated as if it is the only insured; and “Occurrence Form” 
Automobile Liability Insurance providing protection against bodily injury, including death, and 
property damage.  This insurance shall provide contractual liability by endorsement (ISO Form 
CA 0001, Code 1, “any auto” or equivalent) and shall cover any motor vehicle (or mobile 
equipment, to the extent it may be excluded from general liability insurance) used by the 
Contractor (whether owned, non-owned, hired or scheduled). The Contractor’s insurance policy 



4 | P a g e  
 

shall include or be endorsed to include a “severability of interests” provision ensuring that each 
“additional insured” is treated as if it is the only insured; and  

Professional liability (if Design/Build), with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or 
claim, and $2,000,000 policy aggregate, with a five year tail from the completion of the project; 
and   

Workers’ compensation and Employer’s Liability:  Workers’ Compensation insurance as 
required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and Employers’ Liability insurance 
with a limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

The insurance required by this Section 10 shall apply on a primary non-contributing basis.  Any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by GWMA, its member agencies, officers, employees, 
agents, subcontractors or volunteers, shall be in excess of Consultant’s insurance and shall not 
contribute with it. 

The automobile and comprehensive general liability insurance policies shall contain an 
endorsement naming GWMA and its officers, employees, officials and agents as additional 
insureds.  All insurance policies shall contain an endorsement providing that the policies cannot 
be canceled or reduced except on thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to GWMA.  All insurance 
policies shall be endorsed to delete the subrogation condition as to GWMA, or shall explicitly 
allow Consultant to waive Consultant’s right of recovery prior to loss.  Consultant waives all 
rights of subrogation and contribution against GWMA.  Consultant shall require its insurer to 
modify the certificates of insurance to delete any exculpatory wording stating that failure of the 
insurer to mail written notice of cancellation imposes no obligation, and to delete the word 
“endeavor” with regard to any notice provisions. 

Consultant shall require all subconsultants or other third parties hired to perform services under 
this Agreement, to carry, maintain, and keep in full force and effect, insurance policies that meet 
the requirements of this Section 10, unless otherwise agreed to by GWMA.  The procurement of 
insurance by any subconsultant or other third party hired to perform services under this 
Agreement shall not relieve Consultant from any duties or liability otherwise arising under this 
Section 10. 

Prior to performance of the Services under this Agreement, Consultant shall file a certificate or 
certificates of insurance, together with the required endorsements, with GWMA showing that the 
insurance policies are in effect in the required amounts. 

SECTION 10 - TERMINATION 

Termination by the Parties. 

Termination by GWMA.  The Project Manager or GWMA Chair may terminate this Agreement 
or any portion of this Agreement or the Services required under this Agreement for any reason 
on ten (10) calendar days’ written notice to Consultant.  Upon receipt of a notice of termination, 
Consultant shall perform no further services except as specified in the notice.  Before the date of 
termination, Consultant shall deliver to GWMA all work product, whether complete or 
incomplete, prepared or compiled through the date of termination and not otherwise previously 



5 | P a g e  
 

delivered to GWMA.  GWMA shall pay Consultant for services satisfactorily performed in 
accordance with this Agreement to the date of termination.  GWMA shall reimburse Consultant 
for authorized expenses incurred to the date of termination and not previously reimbursed.  
Consultant shall not have any other claim against GWMA by reason of such termination. 

Termination by Consultant.  Consultant may terminate this Agreement on thirty (30) calendar 
days’ written notice to GWMA only in the event of a material default by GWMA, which default 
GWMA has not been cured within thirty (30) days following receipt by GWMA of written notice 
from Consultant specifying the basis of the alleged default. 

SECTION 11 - ADMINISTRATION 

GWMA’s representative for administration of this Agreement, is the Grace Kast, or such other 
person designated in writing by the Executive Officer (“Project Manager”).  Consultant’s 
representative for administration of this Agreement is Bill Bennett (“Consultant’s 
representative”), unless notified in writing by Consultant that additional representatives are 
authorized. 

SECTION 12 - NOTICES 

Any routine administrative communication between the Project Manager and the Consultant’s 
representative required to be in writing may be made by personal delivery, first class U.S. mail, 
facsimile transmission or electronic mail.  Any other notices, invoices or reports required by this 
Agreement shall be given by first class U.S. mail or by personal service.  Notices shall be 
deemed received on (a) the day of delivery if delivered by hand or overnight courier service 
during Consultant’s and GWMA’s regular business hours or by facsimile before or during 
Consultant’s regular business hours; or (b) on the third business day following deposit in the 
United States mail, postage prepaid, to the addresses below, or to such other addresses as the 
parties may, from time to time, designate in writing pursuant to the provisions of this Section 13.  
All notices shall be delivered to the parties at the following addresses: 

If to GWMA: Gateway Water Management Authority 
 Attn: Toni Penn 
 16401 Paramount Blvd. 
 Paramount, CA 90723 
 Email: tonipenn.gateway@gmail.com  
  

If to Consultant: GEI Consultants 
 Attn: Bill Bennett 
 2868 Prospect Park Drive 
 Suite 400 
 Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 
 Email: bbennett@geiconsultants.com  
 
  



6 | P a g e  
 

SECTION 13 - WAIVER 

No delay or omission to exercise any right, power or remedy accruing to GWMA under this 
Agreement shall impair any right, power, or remedy of GWMA, nor shall it be construed as a 
waiver of, or consent to any breach or default.  No waiver of any breach, any failure of a 
condition, or any right or remedy under this Agreement (1) shall be effective unless it is in 
writing and signed by the party making the waiver; (2) shall be deemed to be a waiver of, or 
consent, to any other breach, failure of a condition, or right or remedy, or (3) shall be deemed to 
constitute a continuing waiver unless the writing expressly so states. 

SECTION 14 - ATTORNEY’S FEES 

In the event that either party to this Agreement shall commence any legal action or proceeding to 
enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party in such action or 
proceeding shall be entitled to recover its costs of suit, including reasonable attorney’s fees. 

SECTION 15 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement constitutes the final, complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the 
agreement between the parties pertaining to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes 
all other prior or contemporaneous oral or written understandings and agreements of the parties. 

SECTION 16 - MODIFICATION 

This Agreement may be supplemented, amended or modified only by a writing signed by 
Consultant and the Project Manager or GWMA Chair. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 



7 | P a g e  
 

The parties are signing this Agreement on the effective date. 

GWMA 

Los Angeles Gateway Region Integrated 
Regional Water Management Authority 

By:   
Name: Christopher Cash 
Title: Chair 

 
 

Consultant 

GEI Consultants 

By:   
Name:   
Title:   

By:   
Name:   
Title:   

(Please note: Two signatures required for 

corporations pursuant to California Corporations 

Code Section 313.) 

 





















































PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated and effective NOVEMBER 9, 
2017 and is between the Los Angeles Gateway Region Integrated Regional Water Management 
Authority also referred to as the Gateway Water Management Authority (“GWMA”) and Atkins 
North America, Inc. (“Consultant”). 

The parties agree as follows: 

SECTION 1 - SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Consultant shall provide the services (the “Services”) described with each requested scope of 
services upon GWMA’s approval of cost, schedule and any other applicable terms. 

SECTION 2 - TIME FOR PERFORMANCE 

The term of this Agreement shall commence on the effective date of this Agreement and expire 
on November 9, 2022, unless earlier terminated in accordance with the terms of this Agreement 
or extended by the Project Manager or GWMA Chair. 

SECTION 3 - STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE 

Consultant’s services shall be performed in accordance with generally accepted professional 
practices and principles and in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily 
exercised by members of Consultant’s profession currently practicing under similar conditions.  
By delivery of completed work, Consultant certifies that the work conforms to the requirements 
of this Agreement and all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.  Consultant 
shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement all licenses, certifications, registrations or 
other similar requirements necessary for Consultant’s performance of services under this 
Agreement. 

SECTION 4 - OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT 

Upon delivery, the work product, including, without limitation, all original reports, writings, 
recordings, drawings, files, and detailed calculations developed under this Agreement 
(collectively “work product”) are GWMA’s property.  All copyrights that arise from work 
product shall vest in GWMA.  Consultant waives and relinquishes all claims to copyright or 
other intellectual property rights in the work product in favor of GWMA.  GWMA’s use of the 
work product is limited to the purposes contemplated by the  Services and Consultant 
makes no representation of the suitability of the work product for use in or application to 
circumstances not contemplated by this Agreement.  Any alteration or reuse by GWMA of the 
work product on any project other than the Services provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
at GWMA’s sole risk, unless GWMA compensates Consultant for such alteration or reuse. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8B



2 | P a g e  
 

SECTION 5 - COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT 

GWMA shall pay Consultant, for the Services performed based on the proposal/quote received 
and accepted for each scope of work.  

Consultant shall perform the Services for the amount(s) listed for each scope of work.  GWMA 
shall not withhold federal payroll, state payroll and other taxes, or other similar deductions from 
each payment made to Consultant.  Consultant shall pay all applicable federal, state, and local 
excise, sales, consumer use, and other similar taxes required by law.  GWMA shall not allow any 
claims for additional services performed by Consultant, unless the Project Manager or GWMA 
Chair authorizes the additional services in writing prior to Consultant’s performance of the 
additional services or the incurrence of additional expenses.  Any additional services authorized 
by the Project Manager or GWMA Chair shall be compensated at the hourly rates set forth 
above, or, if not specified, at a rate mutually agreed to by the parties.  Consultant shall submit 
invoices to GWMA on a monthly basis for actual work performed and actual expenses incurred 
during the preceding month.  The invoices shall describe in detail the services performed by each 
person for each task, including the days and hours worked.  GWMA shall review the invoices 
and notify Consultant in writing within ten (10) business days of any disputed amounts.  GWMA 
shall pay all undisputed portions of the invoices within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt up 
to the maximum amount of compensation specified above.   GWMA shall make payment 
payable to: Atkins North America, Inc., 7700 The City Drive South, Suite 5000, Orange, CA 
92868.   

SECTION 6 - INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

Consultant is an independent contractor.  Neither Consultant nor any of Consultant’s officers, 
employees, agents or subconsultants, if any, shall be an employee of GWMA or its members by 
virtue of this Agreement or performance of the Services under this Agreement. 

SECTION 7 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Consultant and its officers, employees, associates and sub consultants, if any, shall comply with 
all applicable conflict of interest statutes of the State of California applicable to Consultant’s 
Services under this Agreement, including, the Political Reform Act (Cal. Gov. Code § 81000, et 
seq.) and Government Code Section 1090. 

SECTION 8 - INDEMNIFICATION 

Indemnities.  Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless GWMA, and its officials, 
officers, attorneys, agents, employees, designated volunteers, successors and assigns in 
accordance with the terms of this Section 9.  Consultant’s covenant under this Section 9 shall 
survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant hereby agrees, at its sole cost and expense, to 
protect, defend, hold harmless and indemnify GWMA, its officials, officers, attorneys, agents, 
employees, designated volunteers, successors, assigns and those GWMA agents serving as 
independent contractors in the role of GWMA officials (collectively “Indemnitees”) from and 
against any and all damages, costs, expenses, liabilities, claims, demands, causes of action, 



3 | P a g e  
 

proceedings, expenses, judgments, penalties, liens, and losses of any nature whatsoever, 
including fees of accountants, attorneys, or other professionals and all costs associated therewith 
and the payment of all consequential damages (collectively “Claims”), in law or equity, whether 
actual, alleged or threatened, which arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the acts or omissions of 
Consultant, its officers, agents, servants, employees, subconsultants, suppliers or their officers, 
agents, servants, employees, subconsultants, contractors (or any entity or individual that 
Consultant shall bear the legal liability thereof) in the performance of this Agreement, including 
the Indemnitees’ active or passive negligence, except for Claims arising from the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of Indemnitees, as determined by final arbitration or court decision or by 
the agreement of the parties.  Consultant shall defend Indemnitees in any action or actions filed 
in connection with any Claim with counsel of Indemnitees’ choice, and shall pay all costs and 
expenses, including all attorneys’ fees and experts’ costs actually incurred in connection with 
such defense.  Consultant shall reimburse Indemnitees for any and all legal expenses and costs 
incurred by Indemnitees in connection therewith. 

The indemnity under this Section 9 is effective regardless of any prior, concurrent, or subsequent 
misconduct, negligent acts, errors or omissions of the Indemnitees and without reference to the 
existence or applicability of any insurance coverages that are required under this Agreement or 
any additional insured endorsements that may extend to the Indemnitees.  The indemnity under 
this Section 9 is in addition to any other rights or remedies that the Indemnitees may have under 
the law.  Payment is not required as a condition precedent to the Indemnitees’ right to recover 
under this Section 9, and an entry of judgment against Consultant shall be conclusive in favor of 
the Indemnitees’ right to recover under this Section 9.  Consutltant shall pay Indemnitees for any 
attorneys fees and costs incurred in enforcing these indemnification provisions. 

SECTION 9 - INSURANCE 

Insurance Requirements. 

Consultant shall at all times during the term of this Agreement carry, maintain, and keep in full 
force and effect, the following policies of insurance with minimum limits as indicated below and 
issued by insurers with A.M. Best ratings of no less than A:VII: 

“Occurrence Form” Comprehensive General Liability Insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form 
CG 0001, covering liability on an occurrence basis) providing protection against bodily injury, 
including death, personal injury and property damage.  This insurance shall provide broad form 
contractual liability protection covering the indemnity provisions contained in this Contract, 
underground hazards, products-completed operations. A per occurrence limit of $2,000,000 and 
$4,000,000 in the aggregate, written, with dedicated limits, on a “per project” basis; and a 
products-completed operations aggregate limit of at least $4,000,000. The Contractor’s insurance 
policy shall include or be endorsed to include a “severability of interests” provision ensuring that 
each “additional insured” is treated as if it is the only insured; and “Occurrence Form” 
Automobile Liability Insurance providing protection against bodily injury, including death, and 
property damage.  This insurance shall provide contractual liability by endorsement (ISO Form 
CA 0001, Code 1, “any auto” or equivalent) and shall cover any motor vehicle (or mobile 
equipment, to the extent it may be excluded from general liability insurance) used by the 
Contractor (whether owned, non-owned, hired or scheduled). The Contractor’s insurance policy 



4 | P a g e  
 

shall include or be endorsed to include a “severability of interests” provision ensuring that each 
“additional insured” is treated as if it is the only insured; and  

Professional liability (if Design/Build), with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or 
claim, and $2,000,000 policy aggregate, with a five year tail from the completion of the project; 
and   

Workers’ compensation and Employer’s Liability:  Workers’ Compensation insurance as 
required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and Employers’ Liability insurance 
with a limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

The insurance required by this Section 10 shall apply on a primary non-contributing basis.  Any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by GWMA, its member agencies, officers, employees, 
agents, subcontractors or volunteers, shall be in excess of Consultant’s insurance and shall not 
contribute with it. 

The automobile and comprehensive general liability insurance policies shall contain an 
endorsement naming GWMA and its officers, employees, officials and agents as additional 
insureds.  All insurance policies shall contain an endorsement providing that the policies cannot 
be canceled or reduced except on thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to GWMA.  All insurance 
policies shall be endorsed to delete the subrogation condition as to GWMA, or shall explicitly 
allow Consultant to waive Consultant’s right of recovery prior to loss.  Consultant waives all 
rights of subrogation and contribution against GWMA.  Consultant shall require its insurer to 
modify the certificates of insurance to delete any exculpatory wording stating that failure of the 
insurer to mail written notice of cancellation imposes no obligation, and to delete the word 
“endeavor” with regard to any notice provisions. 

Consultant shall require all subconsultants or other third parties hired to perform services under 
this Agreement, to carry, maintain, and keep in full force and effect, insurance policies that meet 
the requirements of this Section 10, unless otherwise agreed to by GWMA.  The procurement of 
insurance by any subconsultant or other third party hired to perform services under this 
Agreement shall not relieve Consultant from any duties or liability otherwise arising under this 
Section 10. 

Prior to performance of the Services under this Agreement, Consultant shall file a certificate or 
certificates of insurance, together with the required endorsements, with GWMA showing that the 
insurance policies are in effect in the required amounts. 

SECTION 10 - TERMINATION 

Termination by the Parties. 

Termination by GWMA.  The Project Manager or GWMA Chair may terminate this Agreement 
or any portion of this Agreement or the Services required under this Agreement for any reason 
on ten (10) calendar days’ written notice to Consultant.  Upon receipt of a notice of termination, 
Consultant shall perform no further services except as specified in the notice.  Before the date of 
termination, Consultant shall deliver to GWMA all work product, whether complete or 
incomplete, prepared or compiled through the date of termination and not otherwise previously 



5 | P a g e  
 

delivered to GWMA.  GWMA shall pay Consultant for services satisfactorily performed in 
accordance with this Agreement to the date of termination.  GWMA shall reimburse Consultant 
for authorized expenses incurred to the date of termination and not previously reimbursed.  
Consultant shall not have any other claim against GWMA by reason of such termination. 

Termination by Consultant.  Consultant may terminate this Agreement on thirty (30) calendar 
days’ written notice to GWMA only in the event of a material default by GWMA, which default 
GWMA has not been cured within thirty (30) days following receipt by GWMA of written notice 
from Consultant specifying the basis of the alleged default. 

SECTION 11 - ADMINISTRATION 

GWMA’s representative for administration of this Agreement, is the Grace Kast, or such other 
person designated in writing by the Executive Officer (“Project Manager”).  Consultant’s 
representative for administration of this Agreement is Alberto Acevedo (“Consultant’s 
representative”), unless notified in writing by Consultant that additional representatives are 
authorized. 

SECTION 12 - NOTICES 

Any routine administrative communication between the Project Manager and the Consultant’s 
representative required to be in writing may be made by personal delivery, first class U.S. mail, 
facsimile transmission or electronic mail.  Any other notices, invoices or reports required by this 
Agreement shall be given by first class U.S. mail or by personal service.  Notices shall be 
deemed received on (a) the day of delivery if delivered by hand or overnight courier service 
during Consultant’s and GWMA’s regular business hours or by facsimile before or during 
Consultant’s regular business hours; or (b) on the third business day following deposit in the 
United States mail, postage prepaid, to the addresses below, or to such other addresses as the 
parties may, from time to time, designate in writing pursuant to the provisions of this Section 13.  
All notices shall be delivered to the parties at the following addresses: 

If to GWMA: Gateway Water Management Authority 
 Attn: Toni Penn 
 16401 Paramount Blvd. 
 Paramount, CA 90723 
 Email: tonipenn.gateway@gmail.com  
  

If to Consultant: Atkins North America, Inc. 
 Attn:  Alberto Acevedo 
 770 The City Drive South 
 Suite 5000 
 Orange, CA 92868 
 Email: alberto.acevedo@atkinsglobal.com 
 Phone: 714-750-7275 
  

mailto:alberto.acevedo@atkinsglobal.com


6 | P a g e  
 

SECTION 13 - WAIVER 

No delay or omission to exercise any right, power or remedy accruing to GWMA under this 
Agreement shall impair any right, power, or remedy of GWMA, nor shall it be construed as a 
waiver of, or consent to any breach or default.  No waiver of any breach, any failure of a 
condition, or any right or remedy under this Agreement (1) shall be effective unless it is in 
writing and signed by the party making the waiver; (2) shall be deemed to be a waiver of, or 
consent, to any other breach, failure of a condition, or right or remedy, or (3) shall be deemed to 
constitute a continuing waiver unless the writing expressly so states. 

SECTION 14 - ATTORNEY’S FEES 

In the event that either party to this Agreement shall commence any legal action or proceeding to 
enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party in such action or 
proceeding shall be entitled to recover its costs of suit, including reasonable attorney’s fees. 

SECTION 15 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement constitutes the final, complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the 
agreement between the parties pertaining to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes 
all other prior or contemporaneous oral or written understandings and agreements of the parties. 

SECTION 16 - MODIFICATION 

This Agreement may be supplemented, amended or modified only by a writing signed by 
Consultant and the Project Manager or GWMA Chair. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 



7 | P a g e  
 

The parties are signing this Agreement on the effective date. 

GWMA 

Los Angeles Gateway Region Integrated 
Regional Water Management Authority 

By:   
Name: Christopher Cash 
Title: Chair 

 
 

Consultant 

Atkins North America, Inc.  

By:   
Name:   
Title:   

By:   
Name:   
Title:   

(Please note: Two signatures required for 

corporations pursuant to California Corporations 

Code Section 313.) 

 



Statement of Qualifications for

General On-Call 
Professional Technical and/

or Engineering Services
August 21, 2017

GATEWAY WATER  
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 



August 21, 2017

Gateway Water Management Authority
Attn: Ms. Bibi Weiss
16401 Paramount Boulevard 
Paramount, CA 90723

Subject:  General On-Call Professional General, Technical and/or Engineering Services

Dear Evaluation Committee Members,

The Gateway Water Management Authority (GMWA) is planning to utilize experienced and qualified 
consultant firms to provide general consulting services, and/or engineering/technical services. Atkins 
offers the leadership of a consultant team with broad-based expertise, local presence, depth of resources, 
understanding of key issues, and extensive experience with government and community organizations. Our 
team consists of qualified professionals with working knowledge of capital improvement projects (CIP) for 
water supply, stormwater management, groundwater, water conservation, wastewater infrastructure and 
related facilities, and extensive experience in the preparation of CEQA/NEPA documents associated with 
water/watershed/stormwater programs. The Atkins team can provide the necessary depth of resources and 
technical capabilities in addition to the added benefit of local relationships and knowledge required to be 
successful.

Benefits offered by Atkins include a seasoned project director supported by a flexible team of specialists, 
commitment to GWMA, and extensive infrastructure experience. Atkins understands your need for an 
efficient and comprehensive consultant team and is dedicated to exceeding your expectations. With more 
than 140 professionals in our California offices, and 3,800 in Atkins North America we have the resources 
to meet your needs.

Atkins has assigned a project director with extensive Southern California experience in planning and design/
construction of water and wastewater facilities, Alberto Acevedo, PE, BCEE, PMP. As project director for 
this solicitation, I will be GWMA’s primary contact and project coordinator. I offer 37 years of experience in 
water, wastewater, stormwater, and recycled water design projects throughout California, Nevada, Arizona, 
Texas, and in Latin America. I also have experience with CIP alternative project delivery such as Design-
Build (DB), and specifically work on tasks under “as-needed contracts” for several agencies including the 
City of Los Angeles BOE, the City of Pico Rivera and South Coast Water District. As a contract project 
manager for Orange County Sanitation District (OCSD), I successfully deliver over a dozen CIP projects 
from cradle to grave including the Magnolia Trunk Sewer rehabilitation using sliplining technology with 
HDPE pipe. This project was the first design-build for OCSD, and received the rehabilitation project of 
the year award in 2012 by Trenchless Technologies Magazine. For the City of Pico Rivera, I am the project 
manager and technical lead for several projects including the preparation of the 2017 update to the 
Urban Water Management Plan, design and construction of the Street Sweeper Transfer Station, and the 
design and construction of the Electrical Upgrades to Water Plants No. 1 and 2. Currently I am working 
on the rehabilitation of the Highbury Pumping Plant for the City of Los Angeles BOE and the upgrades to 
the Summerly Pump Station for Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District. Considering my experience with 
successful delivery of similar projects, I will provide the required expertise and leadership to successfully 
support the GWMA on future projects. 

To augment our capabilities, we have partnered with qualified specialty consultants with the required 
experience to support specific services listed in the RFP documents under the scope of services. These firms 
include DDB Engineering, Inc. (DDB) a specialist in Regional and local Planning and preparation of Grant 
writing/grant implementation-management, and ProjectLine Technical Services a highly-qualified firm in the 
preparation of construction documents for electrical and instrumentation and SCADA facilities.  

Atkins North America, Inc.
770 The City Drive South, Suite 5000
Orange, California 92868

Telephone: +1.714.750.7275
Fax: +1.714.750.2501

www.atkinsglobal.com/northamerica



Atkins offers proven technical expertise in water, stormwater, groundwater, water conservation and 
environmental and permitting for water/watershed/stormwater programs. Our team members have 
successfully supported the design and construction of water, stormwater, groundwater and wastewater 
facilities including water wells, pipelines, pump stations, force mains, and treatment processes. Atkins is 
one of the country’s leading consulting firms in providing on-call services and project management. We 
have a demonstrated record of performance on projects across the nation. Our experience with local 
water, wastewater agencies and flood control districts, along with regulatory agencies, will minimize the 
learning curve and bring cost savings to the GWMA. As demonstrated in this submittal, our skilled team 
members will handle all required services as well as provide technical and managerial resources to ensure 
the successful development of technical studies and delivery of construction document packages.

We look forward to the opportunity to work with the GWMA staff, and we bring positive attributes 
to assist the GWMA in meeting your strategic goals. If you have any questions or require additional 
information, please contact me at 714.750.7275 (office), 213.359.9013 (cell), or by email at  
alberto.acevedo@atkinsglobal.com.

Sincerely,

 
Michael Van Antwerp, AICP   Alberto Acevedo, PE, BCEE, PMP
Principal-in-Charge    Project Manager/Director

Ms. Bibi Weiss
August 21, 2017
Page 2



Contents

Cover Letter . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 1

Section 1  Company qualifications .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . 4

Section 2  Discipline specific experience.. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . 4

Section 3  Client references . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . 7

Section 4  Project team and project organization.. .. .. .. . 7

Section 5  Project approach . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . 9

Section 6 Billing rates . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 14

Section 5 Subconsultants . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 14

 Experience matrix summary table  .. .. .. .. .. .. 16

 Rate sheets . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 21

P5
37

23
.M

F.
17

ATKINS

GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHOR IT Y



GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHOR IT Y 4

P5
37

23
.M

F.
17

ATKINS

1. Company qualifications
Atkins is a leading provider of engineering, planning, 
architecture, construction management, environmental 
sciences, energy, and program management services. Atkins 
has been providing water and wastewater services to cities, 
counties, municipalities, and water and sanitation districts 
for more than 40 years. Atkins has approximately 3,800 
employees and 70 offices in North America and nearly 
100 in our San Diego and Orange County offices. We can 
provide a tremendous depth of resources and technical 
capabilities without losing the local connection and 
knowledge needed to be successful on your projects.

Atkins assists numerous agencies in meeting their water, 
recycled water, and wastewater infrastructure needs. We 
understand the challenges you face with new and/or aging 
infrastructure, severe water drought, sustainability and 
smart growth, program funding, and limited staff. 

Corporate organization. The Atkins North America 
Holdings Corporation is a wholly-owned subsidiary of WS 
Atkins plc. WS Atkins plc is a publicly-traded corporation 
in the United Kingdom on the London Stock Exchange 
(ATK). Atkins North America, Inc., is a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of The Atkins North America Holdings 
Corporation. The Atkins North America Holdings 
Corporation and Atkins North America Inc. do not hold 
shares in WS Atkins plc.

Our Orange County office will have the primary 
responsibility for providing services to the District under 
this contract.

2. Discipline specific experience
Atkins is submitting our SOQ for the services listed in the 
RFQ. Atkins has completed Feasibility studies, watershed 
projects, prepared bid documents (Plans/Specifications & 
Cost Estimates) for CIP projects, GIS mapping, completed 
CEQA/NEPA documents and proceeding for many 
southern California agencies, etc.  The projects included in 
the following matrix summary demonstrate our experience 
in various work components which will potentially be 
requested under this procurement. 

Experience completing services. The Atkins team offers the 
required experience to efficiently complete every project 
assignment. Because of our extensive experience providing 
CIP planning and design services, Atkins will minimize 
training time and bring cost savings to the District. Our 
qualifications are notably highlighted by our individual 
team members’ expertise and relevant experience. 

Our matrix summary of current and past relevant projects 
that we have performed within the last 5 years starts on 
page 16 of this SOQ. 

The following sections present a summary of our 
experience in some of the categories listed in the SOQ 
document.

2.1 Preparation of bid documents 
Atkins has prepared many bid documents for Agencies 
and Water Districts throughout southern California. 
Recently Atkins completed bid documents for the 
Electrical Upgrades to Plant No. 1 and 2 for the City of 
Pico Rivera, these documents included the design of the 
control panel upgrades and the design of the new main 
switchboard to operate the plants. The bid documents 
included construction drawings, technical specifications 
and construction cost opinion. In addition, Atkins 
is supporting the city during the construction of the 
recommended facilities by providing shop drawing reviews, 
clarifications to questions from the Contractor, change 
order approvals and coordination with power agency SCE 
for the construction of a new service to Plant No. 2. 

Similar work has been completed for the City of LA BOE, 
OCSD and EVMWD. For the city of LA BOE we have 
completed a 100% design to prepare for the Bid Process, 
and request Contractor’s bids for the construction of the 
recommended improvements for the rehabilitation of the 
Highbury Pumping Plant, in addition we will provide 
BOE with construction support services. For OCSD we 
prepare the design documents and assisted the District in 
preparing the Bid Package to request bids from potential 
contractors for the construction of the Final Effluent 
Sampler Building and area upgrades (Project J-110), Atkins 
provided construction support services for this project.

2.2 Water/watershed/stormwater 
Atkins has designed and managed all types of capital 
improvement program (CIP) projects including water and 
sewer pipelines, pump stations, reservoirs, sewer trunk and 
force mains, sewage lift stations, pressure reducing stations, 
surge control facilities, treatment facilities, and storm drain 
systems and drainage. Atkins’ experience in water and 
recycled water facilities design involves coastal projects 
such as the Short Ocean Outfall Rehabilitation project for 
Orange County Sanitation District, thousands of miles of 
pipelines, pressure reducing stations, retrofits for recycled 
water systems, and storage tanks. 



GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHOR IT Y 5

P5
37

23
.M

F.
17

ATKINS

This facility will be constructed with a Grant Funds 
provided by the United States Department of Agriculture 
(USDA) and design Grant funds provided by the local 
power utility SCE by using the “Savings by Design” 
approach which is a program administered by the 
California Public Utilities Commission.

2.4 Water, sewer, and recycled water 
engineering design
Atkins has designed and managed all types of capital 
improvement program (CIP) projects including water and 
sewer pipelines, pump stations, reservoirs, sewer trunk and 
force mains, sewage lift stations, pressure reducing stations, 
surge control facilities, treatment facilities, and storm drain 
systems and drainage. Atkins’ experience in water and 
recycled water facilities design involves coastal projects 
such as the Short Ocean Outfall Rehabilitation project for 
Orange County Sanitation District, thousands of miles of 
pipelines, pressure reducing stations, retrofits for recycled 
water systems, and storage tanks. Services include:
 x Development review and staff augmentation
 x Site civil, roadway, and highway design
 x Storm drainage and flood control design
 x Water and recycled water design

 - Distribution and transmission pipelines; pump stations; 
pressure reducing stations; water treatment; reservoirs 
(concrete, steel)

 x Wastewater design
 - Gravity sewer mains; trunk sewers; lift stations; 
wastewater treatment; odor control

 x Structural engineering
 x Assessment engineering
 x Permitting and coordination

 - Federal, state, and local agencies; funding applications

Services include:
 x Preparation of preliminary design reports
 x Preparation of construction documents (plans, 
specifications, and cost estimates)

 x Bid support services
 x Construction support services
 x Commissioning support services
 x Preparation of record documents
 x Project closeout

2.3 Construction management and 
inspection services
Construction management begins and ends with project 
documentation. Throughout each project, the Atkins 
team will thoroughly document the daily activities of 
the contractor including staff, equipment, materials, and 
progress. It is essential to proactively address possible 
change orders and validate any possible claims by the 
contractor. Before processing a contractor change order, or 
if the change order is initiated by the District, Atkins will 
verify that the work item is not subsidiary to another or 
covered elsewhere. On projects with aggressive schedules, 
to reduce time delays we propose to follow internal 
quality control procedures mandating that all requests for 
information (RFI) are closed within 48 hours and that 
all submittals are reviewed within five days. By limiting 
the response time, the responsibility for contractor delays 
remains with the contractor. We take this approach so 
that if there are any delays, they will be contractor delays. 
Services include:
 x Constructability review
 x Value engineering
 x Contract administration
 x Construction engineering and inspection
 x Resident engineering
 x Project controls

 - Scheduling and estimating 
 x Project documentation
 x Change management and claims avoidance
 x Post-construction 

 - Dispute analysis/resolution; maintenance programming; 
warranty inspection; financing inspection; lessons 
learned; final reports; as-built drawings; facilities 
startup and commissioning

Atkins recently completed the design of the Farmersville 
Wastewater treatment plant for the City of Farmersville. 



GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHOR IT Y 6

P5
37

23
.M

F.
17

ATKINS

 x Focused endangered species surveys per U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service (USFWS) protocols

 x Endangered species permitting
 x Wetland delineations and permitting
 x Construction mitigation and monitoring
 x Public hearings and presentations
 x Habitat management plans and site restoration

2.6 Private development plan checking
Development review services are integral to the protection 
of the public health and welfare, as well as to preservation 
of community character. In addition to strong technical 
abilities and experience, it is imperative that review staff 
have a solid understanding of community issues and 
policies to be sure technical elements, as well as policies 
and local concerns, are addressed by the applicants. Failure 
to appropriately address these considerations can result 
in unintended consequences with long term impacts. 
Additionally, we understand the Regional Water Quality 
Control Board (RWQCB) and the District’s storm water 
quality requirements.

Atkins’ highly qualified team of professionals has extensive 
experience providing development review services for a 
variety of agencies. We have worked with the cities of Dana 
Point, Irvine, Long Beach, Inglewood, Del Mar, Encinitas, 
Oceanside, San Marcos, Vista, as well as the counties of 
Orange, San Diego, and Riverside, including the Riverside 
County Transportation and Flood Control Districts. 
We have also performed reviews for several local utility 
agencies, including Olivenhain Municipal Water District, 
Carlsbad Municipal Water District, and the Encinitas and 
Olivenhain Sanitary Districts.

2.5 Environment compliance and  
permitting services
Atkins has solid relationships with many of the personnel 
at permitting agencies, and our understanding of their 
requirements allows us to complete applications faster 
and with fewer permit reviews. We have prepared permits 
for USACE, California Coastal Commission, California 
Department of Public Health, California Department 
of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), Caltrans, County of 
San Diego, and others. Our staff can quickly maneuver 
through the permitting maze and design a project that 
complies with all environmental requirements. Through 
the National Pollution Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) General Permit, all owners are responsible for 
preventing contaminants and sediment transport from 
stormwater runoff on construction sites. Atkins has 
certified QSD/QSP staff to prepare water pollution control 
plans and SWPPPs that incorporate construction and 
post-construction (permanent) best management practices 
(BMP) compliant with NPDES and agency-specific 
requirements. Services include:
 x Coastal development permitting from the California 
Coastal Commission (CCC)

 x Compliance with California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) and National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)
 - Categorical Exemptions and Exclusions (CE); Initial 
Studies and Mitigated Negative Declarations (IS/
MND); Findings of No Significant Impact (FONSI); 
Environmental Assessments (EA); Environmental 
Impact Reports (EIR); Environmental Impact Studies 
(EIS)

 x Filing of Record of Decision
 x CEQA/NEPA compliance training
 x Technical reports (all resource areas)

 - Air quality and noise; greenhouse gas (GHG); cultural 
resources and geology

 x Biological assessments and inventories



GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHOR IT Y 7

P5
37

23
.M

F.
17

ATKINS

of resources, and extensive dealings with government and 
community organizations. The Atkins team, shown on 
Figure 1 on the following page, fulfills these requirements.

The key individuals shown in this section form the core 
of the Atkins team. As required, these team members 
can be supplemented by other individuals to provide 
additional skills or disciplines. Our team has collaborated 
on numerous CIP projects, performed development review 
services for numerous agencies, prepared environmental 
compliance and permitting services, and provided 
construction support services. We are familiar with the 
services required by GWMA, and we have the availability 
to meet your assignments.

Under the leadership of one firm Atkins has carefully 
assembled a diverse and flexible team to meet your needs. 
Our qualified professionals have the passion, commitment, 
and interest to produce deliverables that exceed GWMA 
goals. Individual resumes listing education, licenses, work 
experience and special skills for our team members are 
presented in the appendix to this SOQ.

3. Client references
The following Client References can testify of our delivery 
capabilities and commitment to our clients: 
 x Gabriel Gomez, Pico Rivera, 562.801.4221,  
ggomez@pico-rivera.org

 x Douglas Irvine, LABOE, 213.485.1665,  
Doug.Irvine@lacity.org

 x Frank Salazar. LABOE, 213-485-4641,  
frank.salazar@lacity.org

 x Kathleen T. Millea, OCSD, 714.593.7365,  
kmillea@ocsd.com

 x Roman Obzejta, SCWD, 949-499-4555, ext. 3192, 
robzejta@scwd.com

4. Project team and project 
organization
Atkins believes that project success hinges upon the 
qualifications and expertise of the project team members. 
This on-call contract requires the leadership of a consultant 
team with broad-based experience, local presence, depth 

Alberto Acevedo, PE, BCEE, PMP

Feasibility studies/report writing
Jeffrey Endersby, PE

Watershed projects
Ann Bechtel, PE, CFM

Environmental compliance/
permitting services

Sandra Petney, RPA

Regional/local planning
Debra Burris, PE, BCEE (DDB)
Michael Van Antwerp, AICP

Construction management/
inspection services

Earl Schwartz, PE, QSD

Grant writing/management
Debra Burris, PE, BCEE (DDB)

CAD
Roger Wade
Joaquin Hernandez

GIS
Marc Cavallero, GISP

Civil engineering/plan checking
Pedro Alvarez, PE

Bid documents
Robert “Jud” Warren, PE, BCEE
Alberto Acevedo, PE, BCEE, PMP

IRWM Program
Debra Burris, PE, BCEE (DDB)

Condition Assessment/ 
Water Loss Management 

Dave Johnston, PE  (Echologics)

Project manager

Gateway Water  
Management Authority

Required services

Support services

Robert “Jud” Warren, PE, BCEE

QA/QC manager Michael Van Antwerp, AICP

Principal in charge

Figure 1. Atkins’ project organization. 



GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHOR IT Y 8

P5
37

23
.M

F.
17

ATKINS

communication skills will be invaluable to this contract. As 
a principal-in-charge, he will be readily accessible and will 
provide leadership and guidance. 

Robert ‘Jud’ Warren, PE, BCEE, has 36 years of 
engineering and management experience including 
planning, design, construction, and rehabilitation of water 
and wastewater projects. His career encompasses planning 
and design for new facilities and expansion of existing 
water treatment plants. His experience includes planning 
and design of water conveyance projects incorporating 
large-diameter pipeline, condition assessment, and relining. 
Mr. Warren has served in the quality review role on many 
water and wastewater projects in southern California over 
the last 25 years.

Jeffrey Endersby, PE, has 30 years of experience in the 
planning, design, and construction of projects similar 
to those anticipated by the District. Mr. Endersby has 
provided leadership with respect to project delivery, project 
management, project pursuits, financial management, 
and staff supervision. His professional experience includes 
water and wastewater infrastructure planning, design, and 
construction management; water treatment plant design 
and construction administration; and project management 
for water distribution and systems planning and design. 

Ann Bechtel, PE, CFM, has 17 years of experience in 
planning, H&H modeling, and design of storm water 
infrastructure and flood control facilities. Her experience 
includes preparation of master drainage plans, H&H 
studies, floodplain studies, low impact development, water 
quality management plans, stream restoration, FEMA 
letters of map revision, NPDES program compliance, dam 
inundation studies, open channel design, scour analysis 
for bridge replacement and channel improvements, erosion 
protection, detention basin design, alluvial fan delineation, 
levee risk analysis, building code development and water 
quality planning and design projects. Ms. Bechtel was 
recognized by Civil + Structural Engineer Magazine in 
April 2016 as a Rising Star in Civil Engineering. 

She was the project manager for the 2017 San Diego 
International Airport Strategic Drainage Master Plan 
intended to support the Water Stewardship Plan. The 
effort is a comprehensive plan including evaluations of 
stormwater quality, quality, reuse and recommended 
infrastructure. She is the project manager for the Telegraph 
Canyon Channel Improvement project in Chula Vista, CA 
that provides provides recommended improvements that 
achieve integrated flood control and water quality benefits 

4.1 Team leadership
Our team will be led by Alberto Acevedo and Michael 
van Antwerp. As principal-in-charge, Mr. Van Antwerp 
will be responsible for overall resource allocation, team 
performance, and technical oversight so that quality 
projects are delivered on time. Mr. Acevedo will be the 
primary point of contact and will oversee the project 
delivery and performance under the on-call contract.

Alberto Acevedo, PE, BCEE, PMP has 37 years of 
experience in water, wastewater, and recycled water projects  
in California and in Latin America. He has experience with 
alternative project delivery, CIP, and particularly working 
on tasks under “as-needed services” for several agencies 
including the City of Los Angeles Bureau of Sanitation 
and the City of Pico Rivera. As a contract project manager 
for OCSD, he delivered the rehabilitation of the Magnolia 
Trunk Sewer using a the sliplining process (HDPE), this 
project was delivered using the design-build procurement 
process. This was the first D-B project for OCSD and 
received the rehabilitation project of the year award in 
2012 by Trenchless Technologies magazine. Currently, 
he is Atkins’ contract and project manager for the Los 
Angeles and Pico Rivera on-call services. He is delivering 
a diversified set of projects including the rehabilitation of 
the Highbury Pumping Plant for LABOE/BOS electrical 
updates to two of the water plants, several stormdrain and 
sewer rehabilitation projects for Pico Rivera, and he is the 
contract manager for Construction Support Services for 
the Farmersville Wastewater treatment plant. Mr. Acevedo 
offers the District the required technical expertise and 
demonstrated track record of managing large teams of 
specialist and subconsultants. 

He has the availability and the corporate commitment 
to lead our team and is committed to make this project a 
success and a key priority. 

Michael Van Antwerp, AICP, has 26 years of experience 
in environmental and transportation planning, economic 
and urban redevelopment, infrastructure improvement, 
natural resource protection, historic renovation, roadway 
design and construction. He has been responsible as 
an office leader, program manager, project manager, 
construction manager, owners’ representative and 
environmental planner. He has extensive experience as 
a program manager and owner’s representative handling 
government procurement methods, developing financial 
reporting methods and managing projects in a variety of 
industries. Mr. Van Antwerp’s project leadership and strong 



GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHOR IT Y 9

P5
37

23
.M

F.
17

ATKINS

4.2 Staff availability and planning
Availability of the project manager and key personnel. 
Atkins will contractually dedicate the project manager 
and key personnel to the as-needed contract for which we 
are contracted. Mr. Acevedo resides and offices in Orange 
County with the sole purpose of serving clients such as 
GWMA. Atkins’ key personnel will also be contractually 
dedicated to the contract.

Atkins understands that the individuals shown as assigned 
to the projects must remain working on the project 
throughout its duration unless otherwise requested or 
approved by the Authority. Atkins will not substitute key 
personnel unless prior written approval is obtained  
from GWMA.

Commitment from senior management regarding 
availability. Mr. Van Antwerp is Division Manager of 
Atkins West Division which includes Orange County. He 
offices in San Diego but is in Orange County overseeing 
projects on a weekly basis. Our current and projected 
workloads, as well as our depth of staff, allow us to provide 
the capacity to support all aspects of the work anticipated 
under this On-Call procurement. Mr. Van Antwerp, 
a Division Manager of Atkins West Division which 
includes Orange County, and our principal-in-charge, 
hereby certifies and endorses the commitment of our team 
members to be available for projects under this contract. 

Staffing availability and approach. Depending on the 
requirements of each specific request for proposal, Atkins 
will identify key personnel and contractually dedicate 
staff as necessary to fit the work sequence of the RFP, to 
accomplish GWMA’s schedule needs. Each of the RFP 
that Atkins is proposing on may have slight differences in 
staffing approaches. 

5. Project approach
At Atkins we continuously strive to support our clients’ 
needs with highly qualified staff offering the same level of 
technical excellence, quality service, and timely response 
our clients have come to expect. 

This section will present the requested information in the 
RFQ document to describe the following:
 x Management procedures to direct work, meet budgets 
and schedule, and communicate with GWMA 

 x Approach to manage subconsultants
 x How to meet GWMA’s need for “on-call services
 x Firm’s quality control procedures

and stakeholder coordination with the US Army Corps 
of Engineers, Federal Emergency Management Agency, 
Regional Water Quality Control Board, and US Fish and 
Wildlife.  Other key projects include the Chollas Creek 
Water Quality Protection and Habitat Enhancement 
Project for the City of San Diego funded in part through 
State Water Resources Board grants and Riverside County 
Flood Control and Water Conservation District on-call 
services including WQMP and BMP reviews. 

Sandra Pentney, RPA, is a senior project manager and 
archaeologist with 17 years of experience managing 
and conducting cultural resource investigations. She 
is a seasoned principal investigator, having performed 
numerous cultural resource inventories; archaeological 
surveys, evaluations, and mitigation; consultation with 
involved agencies, interested parties, and Native American 
groups; and evaluation of compliance with California 
state and federal laws. Her projects include archaeological 
testing, monitoring, and surveys; record searches; artifact 
analysis; AB 52 and SB 18 consultation, and report writing. 
As a skilled technical report writer, Ms. Pentney prepares 
cultural resource sections for environmental impact 
assessments, reports, and statements as required under 
CEQA, NEPA, Sections 106 and 110 of the National 
Historic Preservation Act, and state legislation. 

Earl Schwartz, PE, QSD, has 23 years of experience in 
design and construction management involving master 
plan residential developments, commercial developments, 
institutional, and CIP projects for streets and utilities. 
Mr. Schwartz is a licensed civil engineer and a qualified 
SWPPP developer (QSD). 

Prior to joining Atkins, Mr. Schwartz was responsible for 
construction management of various projects including 
Edward C. Little Water Recycling Facility Upgrades for 
West Basin Municipal Water District and Foxen Canyon 
Well Installation and various site improvements for Golden 
State Water Company’s Coastal District. He also offers 
municipal engineering and construction experience gained 
from serving as a city engineer for the City of Lawndale, 
contract staff augmentation for the City of Moorpark and 
Rancho Palos Verdes, and civil engineering assistant for 
the City of Los Angeles Department of Public Works, 
Bureau of Engineering. Mr. Schwartz is a versatile engineer 
and construction manager who offers experience in public 
works and private sectors.



GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHOR IT Y 10

P5
37

23
.M

F.
17

ATKINS

junctures, inclusive of subconsultants, to improve the  
flow of information and to give GWMA the opportunity 
to routinely and effectively communicate with the  
project team.

5.1.2 Continuous communication
In practice, effective project management is the result of 
constant and careful attention to the frequent demand for 
communication among our clients, project participants, 
and affected agencies. We believe that, in the end, the 
most effective manager assigned to GWMA projects is 
the one who ensures that information, data, instructions, 
and guidance continue to flow on a regular basis. Often, 
it is the extra effort given to communication that can 
make the difference between success or failure of a project 
activity, task, or entire project. This approach also serves 
to eliminate unwelcome surprises that can disrupt the flow 
of work. Our project manager will maintain continuous 
communications by:

 x Serving as the single point of contact to GWMA 
 x Regularly calling our client project manager/engineer to 
discuss project milestones, activities, and potential issues.

 x Conducting regular internal project management 
meetings involving the key technical disciplines to 
coordinate work efforts, check on task completion, and 
review budget conformance.

 x Routinely updating the project description, schedule, 
work progress reports, and inventories of available data so 
that all team members are aware of information that may 
affect their work products and schedules.

 x Coordinating with the District at strategic junctures to 
collaborate with all stakeholders. 

 x Establishing project-specific websites (PSWS) to share 
project information with project stakeholders. 

5.1.3 Meeting GWMA needs for services on 
an on-call basis in a timely manner
In order to integrate technical disciplines and balance 
the activities of technical staff, project managers need to 
facilitate effective communications. The ability to handle 
multiple projects concurrently is a prerequisite skill that 
must be exhibited by all project managers and senior staff 
before they can obtain such positions with Atkins. The 
solution to managing multiple projects originates with 
up-front planning and scheduling. Priorities and task 
assignments are set by the project manager with input 
from the client’s project manager and/or project engineer. 
Resources are provided, as required. One of the keys to 

5.1 Overall management philosophy
Atkins management and quality control program is 
illustrated as follows:
 x Focus
 x Attention to detail
 x Proven concepts
 x Budget and schedule monitoring
 x Effective communication

Our overall project management strategy for each project is 
based upon a simple, but important, premise: The project 
must be organized, directed, and controlled to permit 
timely completion with the least possible expenditure of the 
client’s limited resources. The tasks must be organized to 
allow progressive and successive components to build upon 
each other without unnecessary work or redundant efforts 
by either Atkins staff or our professional subconsultants. 
This strategy will provide the opportunity to complete the 
work “on-budget and within schedule”.

For GWMA, we will accomplish this through the methods 
and procedures described below.

5.1.1 Project management
Atkins understands that many planning, permitting, 
technical, operational, constructability, and economic 
issues will need to be addressed by both the Atkins 
project team and GWMA staff. We recognize that all of 
these potential issues must be organized, coordinated, 
and resolved in a timely manner without impacting the 
schedule or affecting the project budget. To address this 
challenge, we will establish a working relationship with 
GWMA to identify and resolve issues early. We will 
use a combination of our standard project coordination 
procedures, together with additional procedures drafted 
specifically for this project. We will create a working 
environment that fosters teamwork and consensus 
building. One of the Atkins keys to project delivery success 
is nurturing a work environment that encourages diversity 
of thinking through the use of innovative tools, open work 
spaces, management that is an integral part of the team, 
and world class training to stay on the cutting edge of 
our profession. We will encourage open communication 
within our team by holding regular meetings in our office 
to address any technical issues and to maintain focus on 
the deliverables to GWMA, and will encourage GWMA 
project manager and other team members to meet with 
our project team frequently. Most importantly, we will 
congregate key project team members at critical project 



GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHOR IT Y 11

P5
37

23
.M

F.
17

ATKINS

5.2 Schedule and budget control
Atkins provides cost-effective services by closely managing 
each individual work authorization. As our business has 
grown, we have developed a strong and consistent approach 
to managing our staff and subconsulting team members 
to ensure that our clients receive the most technically 
accurate, cost-effective, and schedule-sensitive services. Our 
management approach includes initiation of regular and 
formal lines of communication, efficient use of meetings, 
strong and reliable project reporting and management 
systems, and experienced project management. 

Our strength in effectively managing projects translates to 
a cost savings for our clients. The ability to meet project 
schedules and budgets is a clear indicator of efficient project 
management. Atkins has a long history of success on a 
wide variety of projects, and we use a number of methods 
to assist our managers and technical staff in working 
within defined budgets. 

Atkins maintains a work breakdown structures (WBS) 
with task-order cost accounting system for the recording 
and accumulation of costs incurred under its contracts. 
Each project is assigned a job number so that costs may be 
segregated and accumulated in Atkins’ WBS task-order 
cost accounting system. Our computerized accounting 
system provides information directly to the desk of each 
staff member so that budgets can be tracked throughout 
the life of a project. 

Our accounting system tracks project expenditures by 
phase, task and subtasks, and segregates labor charges by 
staff member and expenses, and subconsultant charges 
by the nature of the expenditure. Project managers are 
encouraged to track budget compliance on a biweekly 
basis and are required to provide a monthly financial status 
report on all projects to senior management.

We manage our costs using several tools—Microsoft 
Project, Excel Monthly Task Order Summary 
Spreadsheet—utilizing earned value tracking (EVT) and 
cost and labor tracking. 

Cost control is central to successfully managing every 
task. Atkins has developed an easy-to-understand Excel 
project status workbook for status reporting. As one of the 
consultants working on the existing on-call services for 
the BOE, a consultant for the on-call services for the City 
of Pico Rivera, and program manager for the California 
Department of Water Resources (DWR) Central Valley 
Flood Evaluation and Delineation Program (CVFED), we 

success in this regard is to assign production staff on a 
full-time basis for each task/subtask assignment. For any 
project, our approach is fairly simple. We will:
 x Match the best-suited staff to the specific tasks and utilize 
as few personnel as possible. This approach minimizes the 
opportunity for miscommunication as well as redundant 
and inefficient work.

 x Have key discipline personnel remain assigned to the 
project throughout the duration. State-of-the-art project 
and program management tools will be provided as part 
of PSWS that is set up to facilitate communication, data 
sharing, and schedule management. For example, in 
the “on-call” services for the City of Los Angeles, TO 
43-Highbury Pumping Plant Rehabilitation project, 
the team used ProjectWise software to share technical 
documents, drawings, specifications, etc. and to prepare 
the milestone documents for internal QA/QC review 
prior to submittal to the City. All work transmitted 
between or among project participants will transmit 
through, and remain posted to, the PSWS. 

5.1.4 Procedures for prioritizing tasks or 
subtasks
Several of the control mechanisms mentioned earlier 
will allow for task prioritization to avoid untimely or 
unnecessary efforts. Additional control mechanisms 
include:
 x By implementing the PMP at the beginning of the 
project, the project management and technical team will 
have the capability to establish priorities and an order of 
precedence for accomplishing the work.

 x Once overall goals and objectives are set, together with 
the order of precedence, the project management team 
will delegate task prioritization to the discipline staff who 
are free to work and make independent decisions as long 
as the work remains within the boundaries set by the 
project management team.

 x The QA/QC team will provide guidance before the work 
is performed, and will offer senior-level input into setting 
priorities for accomplishing the work.

 x The PMP will outline complete instructions with respect 
to work efforts and anticipated accomplishments and 
priorities for every member of the project team.

 x The project management team will conduct daily 
discussions with the discipline staff to assess the status of 
the project and to create new or revised instructions over 
the PSWS.



GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHOR IT Y 12

P5
37

23
.M

F.
17

ATKINS

administration of our subconsultants in accordance with 
the requirements of each contract. For projects that are 
particularly time sensitive, we have found it beneficial to 
hold team meetings in our office to assess progress from 
our subconsultants, resolve any issues, and maintain scope 
and schedule for project submittal to our clients.

5.4 Quality control/quality assurance
Within Atkins, it is a corporate policy to provide the 
highest level of quality to each of our clients. We have 
implemented a formal, written quality control/quality 
assurance (QA/QC) plan that is mandatory on each 
project. Should our clients have their own QA/QC 
program, our plan is used simultaneously with the client’s 
plan, or modified to meet specific project requirements.

Our quality protocols are established in the PMP. Before 
any work product is submitted to the District, the task 
order manager submits the work product for internal 
review by a qualified professional. The internal QC review 
comments are sent back to the task order manager for 
discussion and/or correction before submission to our 
project manager and then back to the District.

Atkins requires an approved QC procedures plan 
from all subconsultants. For those tasks performed by 
subconsultants, our subconsultant contract will require 
that work products must follow the protocols established in 
the PMP. All subconsultant work products, after internal 
QC review, will be submitted to our project manager for a 
completeness check before being submitted to the District. 

5.4.1 QA/QC procedures
Atkins achieves our quality vision and objectives by 
maintaining and continually improving a quality 
management system (QMS) that is compliant with ISO 
9001 and meets the needs of our North America clients. 
Atkins’ QMS builds quality into everything that we do 
and consists of four fundamental elements—Plan, Do, 
Check, and Act.

Quality assurance (Plan): Proactively planning for quality 
and auditing our processes to make sure that they are 
effectively meeting our objectives 

Quality control (Do): Processes for checking our products 
to determine if they are performing as expected and 
meeting objectives and requirements 

Performance measurement (Check): Measuring and 
monitoring the level to which our quality management 
system is meeting the objectives 

are successfully using this dashboard to deliver projects 
on time and under budget. Each task shows EVT to the 
subtask level and provides a practical, inexpensive, and 
understandable view into the health of the task. 

Our Excel Monthly Task Order Summary with EVT 
measures progress against planned budgets to compute 
variance in cost and schedule. This enables our project 
manager to monitor the balance between invoicing and 
schedule. Regular weekly or monthly reporting to the 
District, is a crucial practice for keeping the task order 
within schedule and budget for all tasks. Using the EVT 
tool, we will monitor the cost and schedule indices. 

Atkins’ proven approach to EVT will save time and money 
though the dashboard, which serves as an effective way 
to quickly assess the status of each task order and identify 
areas needing further review and discussion. Atkins’ Excel 
EVT “workbook” contains linked tabs showing an overall 
snapshot summary of task activities and financial status 
each month, planned expenditures over the life of the task 
order or “planned value,” and graphs illustrating the actual, 
planned, and earned value curves/trends for each subtask. 
The workbook also contains cost performance and schedule 
performance indicators for quick assessment of progress.

Atkins tracks labor hours and total cost expended on any 
given task order through our corporate online financial 
system, Oracle E-Business Suite, which is Sarbanes-Oxley 
compliant. Labor hours, time sheet comments, and total 
budget expenditure numbers are available to the project 
manager on a weekly basis. At any given time, the overall 
comprehensive project financial status is immediately 
available in a dashboard or tabular format. Atkins requires 
a weekly summary of hours expended and summary of 
activities for our subconsultant partners on a weekly basis. 

We have a well-earned reputation for completing quality 
work on accelerated schedules through the process 
of work-sharing. Our experienced staff, well-defined 
procedures, and strong appreciation of our clients’ needs 
and expectations have contributed to successful completion 
of the most challenging and daunting of schedules. 

5.3 Subconsultant administration
All subconsultants will report directly to our project 
manager. The fact that we have worked closely with our 
listed subconsultants and have strong working relationships 
with many others means that we are familiar with each 
other’s working styles and expectations. In addition, we 
have contract and procurement staff to handle contractual 



GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHOR IT Y 13

P5
37

23
.M

F.
17

ATKINS

of existing treatment plants for surface water conventional, 
membrane, reverse osmosis, desalination, and groundwater 
treatment. He has also been in charge of planning and 
design of water conveyance projects involving condition 
assessments, large-diameter pipelines, and pipeline relining 
proejcts. Mr. Warren’s water and wastewater systems 
experience includes headworks, liquid stream, activated 
sludge, solids processing and handling, odor control, and 
effluent reclamation and reuse, as well as design for sewer 
pipelines, pump stations, and septic conversion. 

During construction, Earl Schwartz, PE, QSD, will 
provide quality reviews directly to our task manager. He 
will coordinate the activities of the inspectors to facilitate 
uniformity throughout the project. The inspectors will 
periodically (at least every 2 weeks) evaluate conformance 
of the various activities with the written plan. At the 
completion of their evaluation, inspectors will prepare a 
written report detailing the results of their review. 

5.5 Process for on-call services delivery
5.5.1 Request for proposal 
We understand that GWMA will pre-select consultants to 
participate in the “General On-Call professional Genral, 
Technical and/or Engineering Services”. Once the pre-
selection process is completed, the District will issue RFPs 
to procure specific projects.  

5.5.2 Prepare specific project proposal
Once Atkins is invited to present a proposal for a 
particular project, our approach to the work is rather 
straightforward—Atkins will prepare a draft proposal with 
a definitive deliverable, responsive to GWMA request for 
engineering services, regardless of the size of scope. We will 
meet with the appropriate staff to review the requirements 

Continuous improvement (Act): Ensuring our processes 
and products are continually being improved to better and 
more effectively meet our quality objectives based on our 
performance measures and client feedback 

Atkins addresses quality assurance through various project 
plans, project quality managers, audits, and project 
processes. Every project is required to have a project quality 
manager who produces the project quality assurance plan 
(QAP), trains project staff on the QAP, and audits the 
project to verify QAP implementation. Atkins’ national 
quality director is responsible for an overall corporate audit 
program that includes regular business audits. Atkins’ 
standard project procedures provide consistency, reliability, 
and predictability of work product quality and are 
integrated into the Atkins business management system. 
Atkins requires all work products to complete a QC review 
by a second set of independent eyes prior to submittal 
to the client, internal or external. QC reviews must be 
documented and verified by the project quality manager 
to confirm quality procedures have been followed prior 
to submittal to the client. The project QAP will identify 
any additional supplemental QC reviews required by the 
project based on risks. Any identified non-conforming 
product is controlled and cannot complete the QC review 
process successfully until the non-conformance is resolved 
and closed by the project quality manager.

Our quality control (Do) process follows a five-step 
procedure that will be used on all project elements. In 
addition to review of the reporting deliverable (task), each 
major step leading up to the final product is also reviewed 
(subtask) prior to any information being carried forward to 
the next step. 
The five steps in this process are:
 x Preparer completes task or subtask ( Ready for review) 
 x Senior-level SME provides QC review (Review)
 x Preparer and reviewer resolve comments (Resolve 
Comments)

 x Preparer makes corrections (Changes made)
 x Reviewer verifies corrections (QA certified)

Managing quality begins with understanding the specific 
quality expectations of the District and putting a proactive 
plan in place to meet these expectations. For planning and 
design, our QA efforts are the responsibility of Robert 
‘Jud’ Warren, PE, BCEE. Mr. Warren has 36 years of 
planning, engineering, and construction of water and 
wastewater facilities including new facilities and expansion 



GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHOR IT Y 14

P5
37

23
.M

F.
17

ATKINS

 x Regularly (at least once a month), the QA manager will 
review all project-related QC reports and procedures and 
verify, by written report, that the project is in conformity 
with the approved QA/QC plan. 

Should there be deficiencies noted during the reviews, the 
QC staff will coordinate a recommended remediation plan 
with the project staff. The proposed plan will be presented 
to the District for review and concurrence. By providing 
a project-wide QA/QC process, Atkins will reduce the 
number of recurring errors and provide the District with 
the assurance that the project will follow the guidelines in 
accordance with all required policies and procedures, and 
all activities related to quality will be documented.

5.5.3 Measurement of results
Project success is measured against the critical 
success factors established during the planning phase. 
Measurement and feedback will be continuous throughout 
the project. Our effective, yet simple, approach consists 
of conducting a review by Atkins senior management and 
our proposed principal-in-charge, Michael Van Antwerp, 
AICP, along with the District project manager, directors, 
and other key team members as deemed appropriate, 
to assess how well the critical success factors are being 
achieved at each milestone. 

Any gaps between expectations and actual conditions will 
be identified and addressed by an action plan mutually 
developed by the District and the Atkins management 
team. 

5.5.4 Feedback 
Atkins’ process for providing feedback is multi-tiered. Our 
QA/QC reviewer, Robert ‘Jud’ Warren, and principal-in-
charge, Michael van Antwerp, will provide feedback to our 
project manager, Mr. Acevedo, who will, in turn, update 
the lead technical professionals and subconsultants. Task 
managers will provide feedback to staff, and lessons learned 
are used to improve the process and are incorporated into 
PMPs for subsequent assignments.

6. Billing rates
Team rate sheets are attached at the end of this document. 

7. Subconsultants
Atkins takes the selection of our subconsultants very 
seriously. We only work with subconsultants who share 
our goal of providing the highest level of professional 
service in a responsive manner to our clients. We have 
an established working relationship with our proposed 

of the work, clarify specific details, and establish a task 
work schedule. This process can be iterative and may 
require field reconnaissance. 

Once the scope and schedule are established, Atkins will 
prepare a cost estimate based on the professionals selected 
from our resource matrix. Upon GWMA review of the 
resource-loaded cost estimate, Atkins will meet with 
GWMA project manager to review and finalize the scope, 
schedule, and budget for each task. 

Upon receipt of a specific project Notice to Proceed 
(NTP), the project manager will assign specific activities 
or subtasks to appropriate Atkins technical staff and/or 
subconsultants.

As a part of the various assignments, each task will be 
divided into subtasks and schedules that will clearly 
define level of effort, deliverables, and expectant dates of 
completion. Budgets will be assigned to tasks and subtasks 
to allow us to monitor earned value of specific assignments. 
Subconsultants will be required to report at each meeting 
or billing cycle to the project manager on the financial 
status of their budgets and work produced at the time (EV 
reporting).

An internal team kickoff meeting will be conducted to 
review these documents. The District project manager and/
or project engineer will be invited to attend.

During the life of the project, the project manager will 
have daily contact with active team members to confirm 
that work is proceeding as planned. Routinely, the 
project management team will review the total progress 
of the technical work and compare it against the planned 
schedule and allocated budgets.

On a monthly basis, the project management team will 
informally review the project status with the District 
project manager, either in our office or at District offices.

Written status reports will be submitted to the District on 
a monthly basis with invoicing and will include:
 x Summary of completed activities and ongoing work
 x Analysis of earned value versus project budget and 
schedule

 x Identification of areas or process innovation that will 
potentially reflect on cost savings and schedule reduction

 x Problem areas or issues requiring attention
 x Actions being taken, or proposed, to address problem 
areas



GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHOR IT Y 15

P5
37

23
.M

F.
17

ATKINS

ProjectLine offers experienced staff in civil, structural, 
mechanical, electrical, instrumentation and process 
engineering design, CAD support, and information 
technology. Experience summaries for selected staff follow.

Mr. Robert Getter, PE, is a mechanical engineer with 
25 years of experience managing engineering projects 
totaling over $500 million in construction value. 
He recently assisted Metropolitan Water District of 
Southern California (MWD) with designs for a variety of 
improvements, including seven different projects at five 
MWD water treatment plants. Mr. Getter managed design 
of wastewater treatment facilities for Boston’s 480 mgd 
pure oxygen activated sludge wastewater treatment plant 
(Boston Harbor Project). He has also led several recent 
water and wastewater treatment and pumping station 
upgrade designs. Mr. Getter’s experience includes project 
management, planning, design, construction and start-up. 
He is experienced in innovative project delivery methods, 
including design-build and fast-track schedules.

Alan Carrie, PE, is an electrical and instrumentation 
engineer with 25 years of experience designing electrical 
and control systems, much of which has been for industrial 
and public infrastructure projects. His experience includes 
several designs for Orange County Sanitation District, 
several designs for LA’s Hyperion and Tillman Wastewater 
Treatment Plants, and designs for Metropolitan Water 
District and several other cities and water agencies 
throughout Southern California. Mr. Carrie’s expertise 
includes electrical systems planning and design, advanced 
automation systems, communications networks, SCADA 
systems, and site survey/documentation projects

Echologics Company 
IRWM programs
Echologics Company, a California Corporation, is a 
minority-owned, multidisciplinary consulting firm that 
provides high-quality geotechnical and environmental 
consulting services. Since 1986, clients have turned to 
Ninyo & Moore for innovative solutions to complex 
geotechnical and environmental challenges. As a leading 
geotechnical and environmental sciences engineering and 
consulting firm, Ninyo & Moore provides specialized 
services to clients in both the public and private sectors. 
With offices in California, Nevada, Arizona, Colorado, 
and Texas, the firm is fully committed to being responsive, 
cost-efficient, and thorough in meeting its clients’ project 
needs and objectives. 

subconsultants and they have provided quality work to 
several California clients in the past. Summaries of some 
of our subconsultants’ experience and qualifications are 
provided in this section.

DDB Engineering, Inc. 
Grant writing/grant implementation management
DBB Engineering, Inc. was established in 1983 and is 
a general land survey firm providing services to both 
public and private sector clientele. They have conducted 
numerous design and construction surveys for pipelines, 
reservoirs, street improvements of major thoroughfares, 
park and recreation building improvements and bridges.  
Extensive experience in boundary analysis, subdivision 
preparation and legal descriptions. Since 1992 have been 
actively involved in various types of surveys for water and 
wastewater improvement projects.

ProjectLine Technical Services (ProjectLine)
Instrumentation and controls/electrical engineering
ProjectLine Technical Services (ProjectLine) is a California 
corporation specializing in professional and technical 
engineering services for infrastructure projects. Their 
clients include national engineering companies and 
major infrastructure management agencies. They offer 
expertise to water, wastewater, energy, transportation, 
industrial engineering, and information technology 
markets. ProjectLine clients include Orange County 
Sanitation District, Los Angeles Department of Water 
and Power, Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California, Caltrans, and the City of Los Angeles, for 
whom they provide engineering services as both prime 
and subconsultant. ProjectLine is a Caltrans-certified 
Disadvantaged Women-Owned Business Enterprise and 
MWD and state-certified Small Business Enterprise (DBE/
WBE/SBE).

ProjectLine is working with the Atkins team on 
existing on-call services contracts. They are working 
on the construction documents for the rehabilitation 
of the Highbury Pumping Plant No. 604 in Los 
Angeles. ProjectLine is working on the electrical design 
modifications for the installation of the new pumping 
equipment, variable frequency drives (VFDs), pump 
control and instrumentation, installation of ventilation 
fans, larger HVAC unit, and other upgrades to bring 
the pumping plant in full compliance with the City 
requirements. 



P5
37

23
.M

F.
17

GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHOR IT Y 16

ATKINSPROJECT MATRIX SUMMARY

Project Name Contact name & phone Contract dates Summary of Services Contract value Similarity to this Scope of Work

Storm management water resources

Telegraph Canyon Nexus Study Luis Pelayo
619.476.5387

2015 Atkins prepared a precipitation technical analysis that supports use of NOAA 
Atlas 14 methodology. Hydrology and hydraulic analysis was prepared to identify 
deficiencies with respect to conveyance, flooding, erosion, sedimentation, and 
public health and safety. An NRCS hydrologic model was used to determine 
peak flows and pre- and post-project runoff was calculated to determine 
runoff reduction benefits associated with the project. Atkins coordinated 
with regulatory agencies including the US Army Corps of Engineers, Federal 
Emergency Management Agency, Regional Water Quality Control Board, and US 
Fish and Wildlife.

$175,000  x Hydrology and hydraulic modeling
 x Erosion and sedimentation analyses
 x Public health and safety
 x Agency coordination

San Diego International Airport Strategic 
Stormwater Master Plan

Michael Slawson 
619.400.2601

2016-2017 Atkins was the prime consultant for development of the Phase II Strategic 
Stormwater Master Plan intended to support the Water Stewardship Plan at the 
San Diego International Airport. The effort is intended to be a comprehensive 
airport-wide strategic master drainage plan that includes evaluations of 
stormwater quantity, quality, reuse, and recommended infrastructure.

$435,000  x Strategic stormwater planning
 x Hydrology and hydraulic modeling
 x Agency coordination

Water, Sewer & Recycled Water Engineering Design

On-Call Services, City of Los Angeles BOE, 
Highbury Pumping Plant

Douglas Irvine
213.485.1665

2015-Ongoing Rehabilitation of the underground structure, replacement of pumps and 
mechanical equipment, and extensive modifications to the electrical and controls 
for operation of the pumping plant. 

$416,280  x Rehabilitation of mechanical, electrical and instrumentation
 x Structural improvements to the facility
 x Rehabilitation of manholes, sewer pipeline, forcemain, temporary 
by-pass plan

Dover Drive Trunk Sewer Relief, Orange 
County Sanitation District

Hardat Khublall
714.593.7377

2008-2013 Providing design services. Performed inspection and evaluations of the existing 
52-year-old pipeline. Atkins incorporated all the information identified in the 
base map and field into plan and profile sheets within an aerial strip at the 
bottom to recreate as-built drawings. The existing manhole details include inlet, 
outlet, and lateral invert elevations. There are few existing locations where 
drop manholes are used, and these are also being identified. Concurrently with 
plotting and developing as-builts for the existing sewer line, Atkins plotted all 
other existing utilities within the project limits. 

$1,023,174  x Replacement of 7,200 LF of sewer pipe 15 to 18 inches in 
diameter

 x Replacement of 50 manholes
 x HDPE sliplining of a portion of sewer that had to remain in place\
 x Design of a temporary sewer by-pass plan.

On-Call Engineering, City of Pico Rivera Gabriel Gomez
562.801.4221

2014-2017 Under this contract Atkins has delivered many projects including:
 x Street sweeper solids transfer station
 x Design of plant No. 1 electrical panel replacement
 x Construction support services for plant No. 1 electrical panel replacement
 x Urban water master plan update
 x Water network hydraulic modeling
 x Design of plant No. 2 electrical panel replacement
 x Storm drain rehabilitation

$268,000  x Design of mechanical and electrical improvements to water plant 
No. 1 and 2

 x Design of a portable emergency generator
 x Hydraulic modeling for fire flow analysis
 x Stormdrain rehabilitation by the sliplining methodology
 x Construction support services

Final Effluent Sampler & Building Area 
Upgrades (J-110), Huntington Beach, 
Orange County Sanitation District

Kathleen Millea
714.593.7365

2012-2015 The design aspect included architecture, condition assessment, physical 
inspection, and engineering services, condition assessment phase of the short 
ocean outfall using divers at the marine section entrance to prevent tides 
from entering the pipeline, implementing safety procedures (confined space 
entries) for inspection, and identifying pipe and structural defects of the short 
ocean outfall. Atkins prepared rehabilitation techniques and final construction 
documents for the new FESB, Short Ocean Outfall and Surge Tower No. 1 
rehabilitation, and improvements to address drainage deficiencies. 

$2,124,091  x Design services for the final effluent sampler building and for 
rehabilitation of the different gravity by-pass pipelines using the 
sliplining methodology

 x Rehabilitation of several concrete structures
 x Replacement of the stairs in surge tower No. 1
 x Pipeline condition assessment
 x Construction services

Farmersville Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Design, City of Farmersville

Tom Mcurdy
559.733.0440

2013-2016 Atkins, as a member of the Quad Knopf design team, assisted with planning 
and design of a new wastewater treatment plant. The project involved long-
term planning, needs assessment, preliminary and final engineering, and cost 
estimating. 

$828,128  x Design of treatment processes for the entire treatment plant, 
including the civil structural, mechanical and electrical systems

 x Design the entire plant site piping and the disposal system for the 
effluent

 x Provide construction support services
 x Permitting support



P5
37

23
.M

F.
17

GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHOR IT Y 17

ATKINSPROJECT MATRIX SUMMARY

Project Name Contact name & phone Contract dates Summary of Services Contract value Similarity to this Scope of Work

Sloan Channel Effluent Drain Connection 
and Discharge Pipe Design Services, Clark 
County Dept. of Public Works, NV

Roy Davis
702.455.6075

2013-2015 Atkins designed a pipeline to convey effluent water from City of North Las 
Vegas’ wastewater reclamation facility (WRF) along the Range Wash - Sloan 
Channel - Las Vegas Wash flood control corridor. We provided alternative 
analysis, alignment selection, and final design. Provided engineering construction 
support services. The project involves construction of approximately 5 miles of 
54-inch reinforced concrete pipe and 4- by 4-foot reinforce concrete box from 
the WRF to the Las Vegas Wash along the Range Wash and Sloan Channel 
corridor. 

$1,192,553  x Prepared a material selection tech memorandum to provide the 
recommendations for the best material to suit the project

 x Prepared the P&P for the entire alignment (5 miles)
 x The construction of this pipeline required dewatering, numerous 
utility relocations, roadway and channel crossings, and jack and 
bore construction for various segments. 

 x Jack and boring construction
 x Microtunneling construction
 x CM support services

Otay Water District As-Needed 
Engineering Design Services

Daniel Kay
619.670.2202

2012-2016 As part of the as-needed design contract with the Otay Water District, Atkins has 
performed several task orders. A few of the diverse projects completed within 
the contract include:
 x Investigated the brine corrosivity and scaling issues for the Rancho Del Rey Well
 x Designed the 624-1 Floating Cover Reservoir Replacement
 x Performed structural loading calculations for construction equipment loading 
on 944PS and 680-1 buried reservoir

 x Performed structural loading calculations for retaining wall over existing pipe 
under proposed I-805 realignment

 x Designed utility relocations for 10-inch and 18-inch water mains

$175,000  x Corrosion engineering
 x Reservoir design
 x Structural assessments

Johnson Avenue Trunk Sewer, City of El 
Cajon

David Keltner
619.441.1716

2011-2016 Atkins provided the City of El Cajon with recommendations for design of 5,000 
feet of 24-inch to 36-inch trunk sewer. Hydraulic modeling indicated additional 
reaches of sewer needed to be included in an overall consolidation plan. In 
this section of the city, the trunk sewer alignments traverse the predominately 
industrial/commercial area as well as some residential areas. The project involved 
coordination with the business association, El Cajon Valley Unified School 
District, Caltrans Encroachment Permit, Regional Water Quality Control Board 
including a stormwater pollution prevention plan and dewatering permit, and 
USACE 404 Permit.
In addition, Atkins prepared the project’s initial study/mitigated negative 
declaration (IS/MND) by assisting the City with the full CEQA process. The IS/
MND identified several environmental issues for the project including impacts 
to nesting birds from construction activities, the potential to uncover unknown 
archaeological and paleontological resources, hazardous materials associated 
with known release sites and contaminated soil and groundwater, and noise 
impacts to Johnson Elementary School and nearby residences. 

$896,709  x Design of P&P for 8,400 LF of 30- to 42-inch trunk sewer
 x Prepared the environmental documentation and permitting
 x Performed hydraulic modeling
 x Construction had many challenges including: crossing a 10-
inch high pressure gas main (400 psi), handle contaminated 
soils, high groundwater, deep sewer design, jack and bore, and 
microtunneling construction

City of San Diego As-Needed Civil 
Engineering & Design

Michael Handel, 
619.533.7588
Jamal Batta, 619.533.7482

2012-2017 Atkins has served as design engineer, planner, program manager, and 
construction support staff for various projects throughout the City of San Diego. 
Following is a sample of the projects that Atkins has successfully completed 
under this as-needed contract.
Crystal Pier Investigation Report. Provided civil and structural engineering 
inspection services for the development of a pier assessment report, repair plan 
and preparation of an RFP for a design-build team to implement the work. the 
investigation involved all elements of the pier including members below and 
above the waterline. The project also included a review of likely environmental 
constraints and required permitting the project would need to obtain. A key 
factor in this project was the accelerated time table of three months.
Via Esprillo Storm Drain System. Provide engineering services to design 
the replacement of 85 feet of 36-inch CMP with 42-inch reinforced concrete 
pipe (RCP), 120 feet of 48-inch CMP with 48-inch RCP, two separate concrete 
energy dissipation structures, and slope reconstruction to include landscape and 
temporary irrigation system.

$2 million  x Completed several pipeline alignment projects
 x Prepared P&P construction documents
 x Inspection services
 x Structural assessment
 x Stormdrain design
 x Environmental constraints
 x Landscape services



P5
37

23
.M

F.
17

GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHOR IT Y 18

ATKINSPROJECT MATRIX SUMMARY

Project Name Contact name & phone Contract dates Summary of Services Contract value Similarity to this Scope of Work

Coronado Wastewater Master Plan 
Update, Sewer System Management 
Plan, and As-Needed Services, City of 
Coronado

Jim Newton
619.522.7300

2005-2017 Since 2005, Atkins has provided the City of Coronado with a variety of citywide 
services such as as-needed stormwater program support; as-needed wastewater/
waste discharge requirements, financial, and engineering support; sewer system 
master plan development and updates; wastewater rate study development; map 
book development; dry weather monitoring; and development review. Through 
this work Atkins’ team members have gained a solid understanding of the City’s 
standards and procedures. Following are just a few examples of the projects:  
Wastewater Master Plan Update - Atkins prepared a sanitary sewer master 
plan update, comprehensive CIP, and sewer rate study. Project included 
development of a hydraulic model, video inspections, and development of a 
sound financial and revenue plan.
Sewer System Management Plan and Update - Atkins evaluated the City’s 
compliance with the State’s Waste Discharge Requirements for managing and 
operating its sanitary sewer collection system and prepared the SSMP.
Stormwater Program Support Services - Provided technical support for the 
City’s stormwater program, including support to comply with NPDES Order 
2001-01. Provided JURMP annual report  prep and peer review.
Strand Way/Avenida de las Arenas Intersection - Assessed feasibility of 
creating new path of travel crossing Strand Way and the Bayshore Bikeway 
compliant with current ADA standards and providing an accessible path of travel 
between two corners. 

$700,000  x Hydraulic modeling
 x Sewer pipeline assessment
 x Video inspection of sewers and stormdrain pipes
 x Design of sewer rehabilitation projects
 x Civil design of a main street intersection

City of Lake Havasu Water Engineering 
Services

Greg Froslie
928.855.2116

2010-2012

2013-2016

2011-2013

Atkins has provided a variety of study, design, and construction phase services. 
During the course of this on-call contract for water engineering services, Atkins 
has designed a number of water facility projects for the City including an update 
to the City’s hydraulic model. Each of these projects included pre-design, 
detailed design, and construction phase services. Select projects completed to 
date have included:
Booster Pump Station No. 1. Atkins provided design, bidding, and 
construction services for upgrade of one of the City’s most vital water pumping 
stations. The project upsized the three existing, 10-year-old, 1,400-gpm vertical 
turbine pumps to four 1,400-gpm pumps. A shade structure, electrical enclosure, 
site retaining walls, gabion wall, and revised yard piping were included as some 
of the site design improvements.
Tank 6A, Water Booster Stations 5A and 1B, and Water Main 
Improvements. Atkins provided design services for Site 6A reservoir (0.5 
MG) and Booster Pump Stations 5A and 1B (9,000 gpm), backup emergency 
generator, new motor control center cabinet, revise yard piping, tank 
rehabilitation support, and small-diameter pipeline replacement projects as well 
as coordination with Arizona State Lands for land grants. Projects include site 
alternative investigation; utility coordination; field investigations; coordination/ 
incorporation of geotechnical, corrosion, and potholing information; detailed 
design; specifications; cost estimates.
Zones 4 and 5A Water System Improvements. Atkins designed water system 
improvements at four locations including Zone 4 and 5A reservoir tanks. The 
project included adding a 0.75-mg tank to the Site 5A reservoir and a 1-mg 
tank to Site 4. Atkins prepared an environmental information document for the 
new water pump stations 1, 4, and 5A, which included obtaining state land 
permits, and designed a new pipeline crossing of El Dorado wash which involved 
design of a 550-foot-long, 8-inch line through the wash to improve the flow 
south and decrease headlosses within the system, and new water transmission 
main in McCulloch Boulevard which included design for a new 20-inch Zone 4 
transmission main and conversion of the 12-inch distribution pipeline to Zone 5.

$49,752

$381,531

$468,600

 x Hydraulic modeling
 x Final design
 x Preparation of construction documents
 x  Pump station design
 x Design of water main improvements
 x Reservoir rehabilitation
 x Environmental permitting
 x Utility investigations
 x Geotechnical studies
 x Potholding investigations
 x Construction monitoring



P5
37

23
.M

F.
17

GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHOR IT Y 19

ATKINSPROJECT MATRIX SUMMARY

Project Name Contact name & phone Contract dates Summary of Services Contract value Similarity to this Scope of Work

Environmental Compliance & Permitting

City of San Diego As-Needed 
Environmental Services

Staci Domasco
858.292.6409

2012-2017 Atkins currently provides as-needed environmental services to the City of San 
Diego PUD. Under this task-order contract, Atkins has been involved with 29 
separate projects, many of which have been performed on short notice or under 
emergency conditions. Services included environmental regulatory expertise 
to satisfy state and federal compliance with CEQA and NEPA as well as city 
environmental compliance. Services to date included cultural resource pre-
construction site inspections, construction monitoring, and reporting; biological 
resource surveys and reporting; wetlands mitigation restoration planning 
and implementation; civil engineering; and on-call emergency environmental 
monitoring services.

$2 Million  x CEQA document preparation
 x Biological monitoring services
 x NEPA document preparation
 x City’s environmental permitting
 x Cultural resources investigations
 x Construction monitoring

Otay Water District Water Facilities Master 
Plan Update & PEIR

Lisa Coburn-Boyd
619.670.2219

20`5-2016 The 2015 WFMP Program EIR analyzed the proposed Phase II (2017-2022) and 
Phase III (2023-2050) activities associated with implementation of the 2015 
WFMP update. In preparing the 2015 Program EIR, Atkins worked in coordination 
with District staff and followed the format of the 2010 PEIR. The PEIR format 
was designed to be user-friendly so District staff could easily determine the level 
of additional environmental review needed for each CIP project identified in the 
2015 WFMP. 

$434,731  x Programmatic EIR preparation
 x Environmental compliance analysis

Solana 101 EIR, Solana Beach Bill Chopyk
858.720.2449

2016-2017 Atkins is preparing an EIR for the Solana 101 mixed-use development project 
to be located on a 1.91-acre plot located west of Highway 101 and the North 
County Transit District railroad right-of-way, north of Dahlia Drive, east of South 
Sierra Avenue, and south of Lomas Santa Fe Drive. The proposed development 
would construct commercial office space, retail, and restaurant space; 31 multi-
family residential units; and two floors of underground parking, for a total of 
341 spaces. Primary issues being analyzed in the EIR include aesthetics, cultural 
resources, land use/planning, noise, and traffic/transportation. Atkins is also 
preparing supporting air quality/greenhouse gas emissions, and noise technical 
reports, and has supported the City with a scoping meeting that was held during 
the 45-day notice of preparation comment period.

$156,311  x EIR preparation
 x Aesthetic assessment
 x CEQA document preparation
 x Cultural resources
 x Noise analysis
 x Traffic analysis

South Glendale Community Plan EIR, City 
of Glendale

Justin Robertson
818.937.8308

2014-Ongoing Since late 2014, Atkins has been assisting the City of Glendale by preparing an 
EIR for the South Glendale Community. The South Glendale plan includes all of 
the neighborhoods in the city south of State Route 134, including downtown 
Glendale, Adams Hill, and Tropico. The community plan area comprises 2,173 
acres and includes one of the main retail hubs in the Los Angeles Metropolitan 
Area, which features the Glendale Galleria, a major regional mall, and The 
Americana at Brand—a flagship mixed use lifestyle center. The proposed project 
includes four major components: (1) adoption of the South Glendale Community 
Plan; (2) an amendment to the City’s General Plan to reflect the community plan; 
(3) modification of the boundaries of the Downtown Specific Plan; and (4) an 
amendment to the Municipal Code (Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map) to apply 
zoning consistent with the community plan. 

$286,420  x EIR preparation
 x Air quality analysis
 x Greenhouse gas emission analysis
 x Noise analysis
 x Cultural resources
 x Global climate change
 x Traffic analysis

Private Development Plan Checking

Orange County As-Needed Land Use 
Planning & Engineering Services

Bea Bea Jimenez
714.667.8858

2010-2015 Atkins’ first task order involved development of the 790-acre Tonner Hills project 
in northern Orange County. Plan check services included zoning compliance, 
building and safety review, public property permits, drainage and water quality 
management plan compliance, landscape and irrigation, rough and precise 
grading plans, retaining walls, decorative walls and fences, nonresidential 
structures, site accessibility, electrical, plumbing, and underground utilities.
The second task order included similar augmentation services at the County 
public counter as well as plan review services for the Rancho Mission Viejo 
development in south Orange County. The development consists of 14,000 
residential dwelling units, 3.48 million square feet of non-residential uses, 1.22 
million square feet of business park, and open space over the remaining 22,815 
acres of the historic Rancho Mission Viejo.

$4,682,465 Provide engineering services to review plans from the developers 
for the construction of different home tracks in the area. The work 
included review of rough and final grading plans, storm drainage 
plans, water quality plans, street improvements, etc. 



P5
37

23
.M

F.
17

GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHOR IT Y 20

ATKINSPROJECT MATRIX SUMMARY

Project Name Contact name & phone Contract dates Summary of Services Contract value Similarity to this Scope of Work

Riverside County Flood Control On-Call 
Development Review Services

Mark Wills
951.955.1212

2003-2015 Primary responsibilities consist of land development plan checking in compliance 
with District guidelines and policies, specifically pertaining to hydrologic and 
hydraulic studies, structural calculations, grading plans, improvement plans, 
final maps, legal descriptions and deed documents associated with specific land 
development proposals, and WQMP compliance reviews. Atkins also provides 
environmental compliance reviews, which involve the collection and review of 
environmental documents and permits for development projects submitted to 
the District to ensure that developers comply with applicable CEQA and NEPA 
requirements, regulatory agency permit conditions, provisions of the Western 
Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan (MSHCP), and long-
term mitigation monitoring plans.

$3 million Provide engineering services to review plans from the developers 
for the construction of different home tracks in the area. The work 
included review of rough and final grading plans, storm drainage 
plans, water quality plans, street improvements, etc. 

Dana Point As-Needed Engineering and 
Traffic Engineering Services 

Matthew Sinacori
949.248.3500

2001-2015 Atkins has provided as-needed professional engineering services to the City of 
Dana Point since 2001 including all aspects of development review services, 
which have involved staffing the counter where plan checks are received; 
reviewing subdivision maps, easement documents, mass and final grading plans, 
drainage and erosion control plans, and improvement plans for roadways, as 
well as providing technical support at the City’s Engineering counter. General 
responsibilities included review of proposed development projects; plan check 
services for private grading, drainage, and public improvement plans; review of  
bond estimates, title reports, and easement documents; review of H&H reports; 
tentative map conformance reviews for subdivision maps.

$3,245,538 Provide engineering services to review plans from the developers 
for the construction of different home tracks in the area. The work 
included review of rough and final grading plans, storm drainage 
plans, water quality plans, street improvements, etc. 

City of Inglewood Hollywood Park Plan 
Check Services

Christopher E. Jackson,
310.412.5230

2014-Ongoing Atkins assisted the City of Inglewood with the Hollywood Park Redevelopment 
project involving a mixed-use development. Under the initial contract, Atkins 
served as an extension of City staff to complete the peer review of the 
Hollywood Park Specific Plan and EIR. Atkins has performed development review 
services of the infrastructure improvements proposed for the original Hollywood 
Park Redevelopment project. Atkins performed a detailed review of the final map 
and the proposed improvements for on- and off-site street and storm drains, 
on- and off-site water and sewer improvements, and associated hydrology and 
hydraulic calculations and reports, as well as associated water and sewer studies.

$903,420 The work included review of rough and final grading plans, storm 
drainage plans, water quality plans, street improvements, etc. 
 x Environmental document review
 x Stormdrain design check
 x Hydrology and hydraulic calculations
 x Water and sewer

Construction Management & Inspection Services

Rosemead Boulevard at Telstar Avenue 
Traffic & Roadway Improvements, City of 
El Monte

James Enriquez
562.801.4392

2012-2015 Atkins provided construction management and inspection services on this 
Caltrans Local Assistance Program project, which included roadway widening, 
traffic signal improvements, pavement overlay, and pedestrian access safety 
improvements utilizing federal funds for the Arterial Highway Rehabilitation 
Program. The project consisted of widening 0.5 miles of six-lane arterial highway 
and local two-lane roadway, traffic signal improvements, catch basin drainage 
modifications, new curb and gutter, new raised medians, and curb ramps.

$219,540 Under this project we are providing construction management 
services and field inspection for the completion of the 
recommended improvements.

Bellflower Boulevard & Woodruff 
Avenue Rehabilitation & Downey Avenue 
Pavement, City of Bellflower

Deborah Chankin\
562.804.1424

2012 Atkins provided construction management, field inspection, and document 
control services. These projects included replacement of damaged curbs, gutters, 
and sidewalks; installation of ADA-compliant curb ramps; and grind and asphalt 
concrete overlay of major city streets. Services included public notification, 
traffic control, subgrade repair, general civil inspection, oversight of surveying, 
construction and schedule management, labor compliance, DBE compliance, DBE 
compliance, quality assurance, progress payment review and approval, change 
order review, and contract administration.

$126,600 Under this project we are providing construction management 
services and field inspection for the completion of the 
recommended improvements.

Final Effluent Sampler & Building Area 
Upgrades (J-110) Construction Support 
Services, Huntington Beach, Orange 
County Sanitation District

Kathleen Millea
714.593.7365

2015-2016 Atkins assisted OCSD with Project J-110 which included replacement of the 
Final Effluent Sampler Building and rehabilitation of the 120-inch-diameter 
Short Ocean Outfall and Surge Tower No. 1. The effluent sampler building area 
consisted of a sampling trailer, ocean monitoring trailer, and storage building. 
The design aspect of the project included architecture, condition assessment, 
physical inspection, and engineering services. Atkins provided construction 
support services for the construction, commissioning, and project closeout. 
Construction support included review of shop drawings, response to contractor’s 
request for information, assistance in preparation of field change orders, and 
participation in pre-commissioning activities to plan for the final commissioning 
of the new construction facilities and equipment. 

$672,326  x Contractor’s request for information (RFI)
 x Contract change orders
 x Shop drawings review
 x Start-up and commissioning support



 Atkins North America, Inc. 
770 The City Drive South Suite 5000 
Orange, California 92868 
Telephone: +1.714.750.7275 
Fax: +1.714.750.2501 
www.atkinsglobal.com/northamerica 

ATKINS SOUTHWEST INFRASTRUCTURE 
STANDARD RATE SCHEDULE, EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2017 

 

H:\Office\Fee Rate Sheets\2017 Standard Rate Sheet - Orange new.docx 

ENGINEERING SERVICES 
Senior Engineer IV ....................................... $225.00 
Senior Engineer III .......................................... 210.00 
Senior Engineer II ........................................... 170.00 
Senior Engineer I ............................................ 140.00 
Engineer III  .................................................... 140.00 
Engineer II ...................................................... 115.00 
Engineer I ....................................................... 105.00 

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
Senior Scientist IV ........................................ $225.00 
Senior Scientist III .......................................... 210.00 
Senior Scientist II ........................................... 170.00 
Senior Scientist I ............................................ 140.00 
Scientist II ....................................................... 115.00 
Scientist I ........................................................ 105.00 
Field Technician II ............................................ 75.00 
Field Technician I ............................................. 70.00 

GIS SERVICES 
Senior GIS Analyst III ................................... $210.00 
Senior GIS Analyst II ...................................... 170.00 
Senior GIS Analyst I  ...................................... 140.00 
GIS Analyst II ................................................. 115.00 
GIS Analyst I .................................................. 105.00 

DESIGN SERVICES 
Senior CAD Designer ................................... $140.00 
CAD Designer II ............................................. 115.00 
CAD Designer I .............................................. 105.00 
CAD Technician III ......................................... 105.00 
CAD Technician II ............................................ 85.00 
CAD Technician I ............................................. 75.00 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
Senior Administrative Coordinator I ............. $140.00 
Administrative Coordinator II .......................... 115.00 
Administrative Coordinator I ........................... 105.00  

PROJECT/TECHNICAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
Senior Project Director ................................. $295.00 
Senior Technical Manager II .......................... 295.00 
Principal Technical Professional .................... 295.00 
Project Director .............................................. 225.00 
Senior Technical Manager I ........................... 225.00 
Senior Project Manager ................................. 210.00 
Technical Manager II ..................................... 210.00 
Project Manager ............................................. 170.00 
Technical Manager ........................................ 170.00 

FIELD CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
Senior Resident Engineer ............................ $225.00 
Resident Engineer ......................................... 210.00 
Senior Construction Manager ........................ 210.00 
Superintendent ............................................... 170.00 
Construction Manager ................................... 170.00 
Senior Field Representative II ....................... 140.00 
Associate Construction Manger ..................... 140.00 
Senior Field Representative I ........................ 115.00 
Construction Management Rep. II ................. 115.00 
Construction Management Rep. I .................. 105.00 
Office Engineer I ............................................ 105.00 
Field Representative ........................................ 85.00 

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE 
Senior Landscape Architect IV .................... $225.00 
Senior Landscape Architect III ....................... 210.00 
Senior Landscape Architect II ........................ 170.00 
Senior Landscape Architect I ......................... 140.00 
Landscape Architect II ................................... 115.00 
Landscape Architect I .................................... 105.00 

PROJECT FINANCE SERVICES 
Project Financial Administrator .................... $140.00 
 
 

 
EXPENSES AND OUTSIDE SERVICES 

Identifiable non-salary costs that are directly attributable to the project, such as reproduction costs, telephone charges, mileage, 
postage, etc., are billed at actual cost plus 15 percent to cover overhead and administration costs plus 3 percent for insurance costs. 

Administrative time to produce customized invoice as requested by client will be billed at hourly rate provided.  

Fees for litigation and expert witness services will be charged at $450.00 per hour with a 4-hour minimum per day. 

Specialty licensing and software requested by client will be billed at actual cost plus 15 percent to cover overhead and administration 
costs. 

If applicable, a vehicle allowance of $12.00 per hour will be charged for the use of a company vehicle assigned to an inspector. 

PAYMENT TERMS 

A late payment finance charge at a rate of 18 percent per annum will be applied to any unpaid balance commencing 30 days after the 
date of original invoice. 

This rate schedule is subject to annual and/or periodic revisions as necessary to accommodate inflationary trends, salary adjustments 
and the general costs of business. 

Prevailing Wage Rate – Overtime will be charged at 1.25 times and Sundays and holidays will be charged at 1.70 times the above 
rates.  



2017 Fee Schedule_ddb.docx 

 
 
 

 
 

 
2017 FEE SCHEDULE 

 
 

Personnel Category 
 

Average Hourly Rate 
 

Principal Engineer 
 

$197.00 

Project Manager 
 

$175.00 

Project Engineer 
 

$153.00 

Staff Engineer 
 

$120.00 

Technician/Drafter 
 

$100.00 

Clerical/Support $70.00 
 

 
 

Direct expenses (e.g., mileage, printing, etc.) will be billed at cost. 

DDB 
ENGINEERING, INC. 



 Proposal: 42217157  
 Condition Assessment & Leak Monitoring Approach 
 Atkins 
 Gateway Water Management Authority RFQ -  
 General On-Call Professional General, Technical and/or  
 Engineering Services 

 www.echologics.com    20 

Billing Rate Schedule 
 

Table 1: Investment Information for Leak Detection & Condition Assessment Services 

Item Rate Units Quantity Total 
Site Inspection & Project Planning $5,050 per trip 0 $0 

EchoWave Leak Detection Service  
  

Up to 6 miles of pipe under 16 inches in diameter $49,000 lump sum 0 $0 

Up to 3 miles of pipe 16 inches or greater in 
diameter $49,000 lump sum 0 $0 

Additional distance of pipe under 16 inches in 
diameter $1.16 per ft 0 $0 

Additional distance of pipe 16 inches in diameter or 
greater $2.27 per ft 0 $0 

ePulse Acoustic Condition Assessment Service 
 *includes acoustic leak detection for lengths of pipe tested 

 

Up to 2 miles of pipe under 16 inches in diameter $52,000 lump sum 0 $0 

Up to 1.5 miles of pipe 16 inches or greater in 
diameter $53,000 lump sum 0 $0 

Additional distance of pipe under 16 inches in 
diameter $3.73 per ft 0 $0 

Additional distance of pipe 16 inches in diameter or 
greater $5.17 per ft 0 $0 

Project Level Charges 

Emergency Mobilization Fee $5,500 Lump Sum 0 $0 

Re-booking Fee $5,500 Lump Sum 0 $0 

Standby Fee $2,240 Per Day 0 $0 

 
 

Table 2: EchoShore-TX Tranmission Pipe Monitoring System Investment Information 

Item Unit 
Rate Unit Quantity Extended 

Rate 
EchoShore®-TX Leak Detection Nodes 
• Manufacturing, Standard Installation, 
Commissioning 

$20,000 per node 0 $0 

      EchoShore®-TX Monitoring 
    • System monitoring and cellular costs per 
node, per year 

$3,000 Per node per 
year 0 $0 

 

http://www.echologics.com/


409075682849956.P56696.201708.KH    © 2017 Atkins North America, Inc.

www.atkinsglobal.com/northamerica

Atkins 
770 The City Drive South 
Suite 5000 
Orange, CA 92868

P: +1.714.750.7275



CREATING
ENVIRONMENTS

PEOPLE
ENJOY TM

ON-CALL PROFESSIONAL 
GENERAL, TECHNICAL, AND/OR 
ENGINEERING SERVICES

Prepared for Gateway Water 
Management Authority
September 22, 2017

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8B

Kast
Typewriter
NOT RECOMMENDED BY AD HOC COMMITTEE

Kast
Typewriter



OUR PHOTOGRAPHS:
A  of the photo  in thi  do ument feature M e ign Group pro e t , photo  of whi h are owned and opyrighted by our rm   
here are no to  photo  or image  of any ind u ed in thi  propo a

ABOUT RRM DESIGN GROUP:
7  South iguera St , Ste  102  San ui  bi po, A 01 

p 0  17  f  0  0   w rrmde ign om 
a ifornia orporation  eonard Grant, Ar hite t 2 7   erry Mi hae , P  , S 27   eff erber, A 2
he written and graphi  materia  ontained in thi  propo a  are the e u i e property of M e ign Group 
he unauthori ed u e of any portion of the e te t or graphi  materia  without M  prior written on ent i  e pre y prohibited 

©2017 M e ign Group

GENERAL ON-CALL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section Name

1

2  Relevant Project Experience

3

4  Team Staff

5 

6

7

8

 

1

2

10

11

17

20

21

22



RE: GENERAL ON-CALL ENGINEERING SERVICES
 
Dear Ms. Weiss,

RRM Design Group

erry Mi hae , Pe, S, S     i  Strand, MS, P , S
Prin ipa in harge    Pro e t Manager 

September, 22, 2017

M  ibi Wei
Gateway Management 
Authority
1 01 Paramount d
Paramount, A 072

CREATING
ENVIRONMENTS
PEOPLE
ENJOY®

www rrmde ign om
 
2 2 amino 
api trano, Ste  20  

San uan api trano, A 
2 7  

p  1 7 0 
f   1 7



Gateway Water Management Authority  |  GENERAL ON-CALL ENGINEERING SERVICES 1

ABOUT RRM DESIGN GROUP
Firm Information:

Firm Representative: Organization Information:



2

MIDDLE 
BASIN

MODESTO AREA 2
STORM DRAIN TO SANITARY SEWER CROSS CONNECTION REMOVAL PRELIMINARY 
DESIGN REPORT

SECTION 2 | Relevant Project Experience



Gateway Water Management Authority  |  GENERAL ON-CALL ENGINEERING SERVICES 3

MODESTO AREA 2
GARRISON PARK 

Relevant Project Experience | SECTION 2



4

PROPOSITION 84 
ROUND 2 STORM WATER GRANT FUNDING ASSISTANCE

SECTION 2 | Relevant Project Experience



Gateway Water Management Authority  |  GENERAL ON-CALL ENGINEERING SERVICES 5

36
” S

D

Pre-Treatment 
System

Underground
Retention 
System

New 
Baseball
Field

New 
Baseball
Field

Drought 
Tolerant 
Landscape

Pre-Treatment 
System

MODESTO AREA 2 
PHASE 2 - ROOSEVELT PARK

Relevant Project Experience | SECTION 2



6

SAN LORENZO PARK
STORM DRAINAGE

SECTION 2 | Relevant Project Experience



Gateway Water Management Authority  |  GENERAL ON-CALL ENGINEERING SERVICES 7

GREENWOOD PARK 
LID STORMWATER MITIGATION

Relevant Project Experience | SECTION 2



8

Environmental Achievement 
Award

--------
United States Environmental Protection 

Agency (EPA), 2010 (APA), San Diego 
Chapter, 2016

HERMOSA BEACH 
PIER AVENUE STREET IMPROVEMENTS

SECTION 2 | Relevant Project Experience



Gateway Water Management Authority  |  GENERAL ON-CALL ENGINEERING SERVICES 9

WESTMONT COLLEGE
STORMWATER MONITORING

Relevant Project Experience | SECTION 2



10

REFERENCES
DAVID FELIX 

Project: Roosevelt Park

JESSIE FRANCO 

Project: Garrison Park

WILLIAM WONG

Project: Modesto Area 2 Preliminary Design Report

ASHLEIGH SHUE

Project: Las Positas Water Quality Technical Memo

JEFF DUCLOS

Project  Pier Avenue Street/Stormwater Improvements

SECTION 3 | Client References



Gateway Water Management Authority  |  GENERAL ON-CALL ENGINEERING SERVICES 11

ROBERT CAMACHO
PE

P2S ENGINEERING NINYO & MOORE DUDEK

CHRIS DUFOUR
PLA, LEED AP

JERRY MICHAEL, PE, LS, QSD
PRINCIPAL-IN-CHARGE

BILL STRAND, MS, PE, QSD
PROJECT MANAGER

GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

RRM DESIGN GROUP

SUBCONSULTANTS

ASSEMBLING OUR TEAM

Team Staff | SECTION 4 



12

BILL STRAND | MS, PE, QSD

 

MOST RELEVANT 
PROJECTS
 Mode to Area 2 Sanitary Sewer 

ro  onne tion emo a

 Mode to Area 2  Pha e 1 
Garri on Par

 uo umne ew ourthou e 
Infrastructure

 Greenwood Par  I  Stormwater 
Mitigation

 ur oc  ire Station 1 I  Par ing 
ot

 Mission San uis ey Parish I  
Par ing ot

 ermosa each Pier A enue Street 
Improvements

 as Positas Mu ti se Pathway

EDUCATION
ache or of Science, ivi  ngineering, 
o orado State niversity, ort 
o ins, 

Master of Science, ivi  ngineering 
ydrau ic ngineering , o orado 

State niversity, ort o ins, 

ACCREDITATIONS • 
LICENSES • AFFILIATIONS

 ivi  ngineer, A, 712
 ivi  ngineer, , 
 ua i ed SWPPP eve oper S
 American Pub ic Wor s Association 

APWA , Southern a ifornia 
hapter 

 American Society of ivi  ngineers 
AS , range ounty hapter

 ui ding Industry Association IA , 
egis ative and Governmenta  

Affairs ommittee
 a ifornia icyc e oa ition 
 ai s to rai s onservancy
 Internationa  Mountain i e 
Association IM A

 Ivey anch Par  herapeutic iding 
enter

CREATING
ENVIRONMENTS
PEOPLE
ENJOY

Project Role 

PROJECT MANAGER

Experience 

22 YEARS OF 
EXPERIENCE 

 
10 years at M esign Group

SECTION 4 | Team Staff



Gateway Water Management Authority  |  GENERAL ON-CALL ENGINEERING SERVICES 13

To learn more 
about Bill’s management skills, ask David Felix and Will Wong how the Modesto Area 2 PDR and 
Garrison Park projects turned out. 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

Team Staff | SECTION 4 



14

JERRY MICHAEL | PE, LS, QSD

 

MOST RELEVANT 
PROJECTS
 Modesto Area 2 Sanitary Sewer 

ross onnection emova

 Modesto Area 2  Phase 1 Garrison 
Par

 amp oberts Stormwater 
atchment opo

 os sos Wastewater aci ities 
o ection System esign

 Paso ob es orth ampus 
Water ine

 acimiento Water Pro ect ua ity 
ontro

 Santa Margarita ow Impact 
eve opment I

 erba uena Storm rain easibi ity 
Study

EDUCATION
ache or of Science, ivi  ngineering, 
ar son niversity, Potsdam, 

ACCREDITATIONS • 
LICENSES • AFFILIATIONS

 ivi  ngineer, A, 
 Professiona  and Surveyor, A, 

S 27
 ivi  ngineer, A , 2
 Professiona  and Surveyor, A , 
21077

 ivi  ngineer, I, P 10
 ua i ed SWPPP eve oper S
 American ounci  of ngineering 

ompanies A  of a ifornia, 
Past President ecutive 

ommittee
 American Pub ic Wor s Association 

APWA
 American Society of ivi  ngineers 

AS
 a ifornia and Surveyors 
Association SA

CREATING
ENVIRONMENTS
PEOPLE
ENJOY

Project Role 

PRINCIPAL-
IN-CHARGE

Experience 

38 YEARS OF 
EXPERIENCE 

 
22 years at M esign Group

SECTION 4 | Team Staff



Gateway Water Management Authority  |  GENERAL ON-CALL ENGINEERING SERVICES 15

ROBERT CAMACHO | PE

 

MOST RELEVANT 
PROJECTS
 Modesto Area 2 Sanitary Sewer 

ross onnection emova

 Modesto Area 2  Phase 1 
Garrison Par

 uo umne ew ourthouse 
Infrastructure

 Mission San uis ey I  Par ing 
ot

 ur oc  ire Station 1 I  
Par ing ot

 os sos Wastewater aci ities 
o ection System esign

 Serra Meadows Drainage 
Mitigation and asements

EDUCATION
ache or of Science, io esource and 

Agricu tura  ngineering, a ifornia 
Po ytechnic State niversity, San uis 

bispo, A

ACCREDITATIONS • 
LICENSES • AFFILIATIONS

 ivi  ngineer, A, 7 7
 Dust ontro  App ication Writer 

erti ed 2007
 ua i ed SWPPP Practitioner SP

CREATING
ENVIRONMENTS
PEOPLE
ENJOY

Project Role 

PROJECT ENGINEER

Experience 

12 YEARS OF 
EXPERIENCE 

 
10 years at M Design Group

Team Staff | SECTION 4 



16

CHRIS DUFOUR | PLA, LEED AP

 

MOST RELEVANT 
PROJECTS

 Greenwood Par  enovation and 
ID Stormwater Mitigation

 ermosa each Pier Avenue Street 
Improvements

 nic erboc er Drainage hanne  
Trail

 os sos Wastewater acilities 
ollection System Design

 Mission San uis ey Parish ID 
Par ing ot

  Modesto Area 2 Storm Drain 
ross onnection Phase 1

 Morro ay arborwal

 Pinnacles ational Par   D 
Platinum

 Point Arena ommunity Par  and 
Trail System

 San oren o ommunity Par  
onstruction Documents

 Surfer s Point Managed Shoreline 
Retreat

 as Positas Multi se Pathway

EDUCATION
achelor of Science, andscape 

Architecture, alifornia Polytechnic 
State niversity, San uis bispo, A

ACCREDITATIONS • 
LICENSES • AFFILIATIONS

 andscape Architect, A, 
 eadership in nergy and 

nvironmental Design Accredited 
Professional D AP

CREATING
ENVIRONMENTS
PEOPLE
ENJOY

Project Role 

LANDSCAPE 
ARCHITECT/
IRRIGATION

Experience 

18 YEARS OF 
EXPERIENCE 

 
17 years at RRM Design Group

SECTION 4 | Team Staff



Gateway Water Management Authority  |  GENERAL ON-CALL ENGINEERING SERVICES 17

ESTABLISHMENT OF A COOPERATIVE RELATIONSHIP
• 

• 

• 

ESTABLISH A COMPLETE PROJECT SCHEDULE WITH CRITICAL PATH
• 

• 

• 

PROJECT APPROACH

Approach and Understanding | SECTION 5



18

ESTABLISH A PROJECT BUDGET
• 

• 

COMPLETE AND SUCCESSFUL PERFORMANCE

• 

• 

• 

• 

DELIVERABLES

SECTION 5 | Approach and Understanding



Gateway Water Management Authority  |  GENERAL ON-CALL ENGINEERING SERVICES 19

MAINTAINING PROJECT SCHEDULE

QUALITY CONTROL 

FEDERAL PROJECT PROFICIENCY

Approach and Understanding | SECTION 5



20

Accountant 75$      - 140$     Manager of Information Technology 110$     - 195$     

Accounting Specialist 50$      - 85$      Manager of Landscape Architecture 135$     - 230$     

Accounting Technician 40$      - 65$      Manager of Marketing 100$     - 160$     

Administrative Assistant 50$      - 105$     Manager of Planning 135$     - 230$     

Agency Coordinator 55$      - 105$     Manager of Surveying 140$     - 210$     

Architect 90$      - 150$     Marketing Assistant 45$      - 80$      

Assistant Designer 65$      - 95$      Marketing Coordinator 60$      - 105$     

Assistant Manager of Architecture 120$     - 180$     Office Coordinator 65$      - 115$     

Assistant Planner 65$      - 95$      Party Chief 90$      - 150$     

Associate Designer 75$      - 115$     Principal 165$     - 280$     

Associate Planner I 75$      - 115$     Principal Landscape Architect 120$     - 210$     

Associate Planner II 85$      - 120$     Principal Planner 120$     - 210$     

Billing Specialist 45$      - 85$      Project Accountant 65$      - 125$     

Business Development Coordinator 80$      - 125$     Project Administrator 70$      - 115$     

Business & Project Development Manager 95$      - 140$     Project Architect 100$     - 160$     

Chief Executive Officer 170$     - 315$     Project Engineer 105$     - 160$     

Chief Operations Officer 150$     - 280$     Project Manager - Architecture 95$      - 160$     

Construction Inspector 105$     - 150$     Project Manager - Engineering 130$     - 220$     

Controller 110$     - 245$     Receptionist 40$      - 80$      

Design Director 130$     - 205$     Recruiter 70$      - 125$     

Designer - Landscape Architecture 85$      - 120$     Senior Architect 125$     - 185$     

Designer I - Architecture 65$      - 100$     Senior Designer - Architecture 100$     - 170$     

Designer I - Engineering 45$      - 80$      Senior Designer - Engineering 95$      - 160$     

Designer II - Architecture 75$      - 110$     Senior Designer - Landscape Architecture 100$     - 155$     

Designer II - Engineering 60$      - 100$     Senior Interior Designer 80$      - 130$     

Designer III - Architecture 85$      - 145$     Senior Land Surveyor 120$     - 185$     

Designer III - Engineering 75$      - 125$     Senior Landscape Architect 100$     - 155$     

Engineer I 75$      - 120$     Senior Marketing Coordinator 80$      - 130$     

Engineer II 90$      - 140$     Senior Party Chief 105$     - 170$     

Facilities Coordinator 45$      - 80$      Senior Planner 100$     - 155$     

Facilities Supervisor 60$      - 105$     Senior Project Engineer 125$     - 205$     

File Clerk 30$      - 60$      Senior Project Manager - Architecture 125$     - 215$     

Graphic Designer 75$      - 125$     Supervisor of Surveying 125$     - 195$     

Human Resources Assistant 45$      - 80$      Survey Technician I 50$      - 90$      

Human Resources Generalist 70$      - 125$     Survey Technician II 60$      - 115$     

Information Technology Assistant 45$      - 80$      Survey Technician III 75$      - 140$     
Information Technology Technician 60$      - 105$     

Information Technology Server/LAN Administrator 80$      - 140$     Survey Crew Rates

Interior Designer I 50$      - 90$      REGULAR

Interior Designer II 65$      - 105$     One person w/ GPS or Robotic Workstation 125$     - 155$     

Intern 35$      - 65$      Two person 175$     - 290$     

Job Captain 85$      - 145$     Three person 235$     - 390$     

Landscape Architect 80$      - 120$     

Land Surveyor 105$     - 160$     PREVAILING WAGE

Manager of Architecture 135$     - 230$     One person w/ GPS or Robotic Workstation 150$     - 180$     

Manager of Engineering Services 150$     - 245$     Two person 225$     - 340$     
Manager of Human Resources 100$     - 160$     Three person 325$     - 490$     

BILL RATE RANGES
Subject to change effective March 1st each year

SECTION 6 | Billing Rate Schedule



Gateway Water Management Authority  |  GENERAL ON-CALL ENGINEERING SERVICES 21

SU
BC

O
N

SU
LT

A
N

T T
EA

M

Services Provided:  

Services Provided:  

Services Provided:  

Lead Contact

Lead Contact

Lead Contact

List of Subconsultants | SECTION 7



22

RRM Design Group is in substantial agreement with the proposed Consulting Services Agreement, however 
there are some items that we feel would be of mutual bene  t to discuss and would improve insurability. 

SECTION 8 -  INDEMNIFICATION.

Indemnities.  Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless GWMA, and its of  cials, of  cers, 
attorneys, agents, employees, designated volunteers, successors and assigns in accordance with the terms of 
this Section 9.  Consultant’s covenant under this Section 9 shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant hereby agrees, at its sole cost and expense, to protect, 
defend, hold harmless and indemnify GWMA, its of  cials, of  cers, attorneys, agents, employees, designated 
volunteers, successors, assigns and those GWMA agents serving as independent contractors in the role 
of GWMA of  cials (collectively “Indemnitees”) from and against any and all damages, costs, expenses, 
liabilities, claims, demands, causes of action, proceedings, expenses, judgments, penalties, liens, and losses 
of any nature whatsoever, including reimbursement of reasonable fees of accountants, attorneys, or other 
professionals and all costs associated therewith and the payment of all consequential damages (collectively 
“Claims”), in law or equity, whether actual, alleged or threatened, which arise out of, pertain to, or relate 
to the to the extent caused by the negligent acts or omissions of Consultant, its of  cers, agents, servants, 
employees, subconsultants, suppliers or their of  cers, agents, servants, employees, subconsultants, 
contractors (or any entity or individual that Consultant shall bear the legal liability thereof) in the 
performance of this Agreement, including the Indemnitees’ active or passive negligence, except for Claims 
arising from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of Indemnitees, as determined by  nal arbitration or 
court decision or by the agreement of the parties.  Consultant shall defend Indemnitees in any action or 
actions  led in connection with any Claim with counsel of Indemnitees’ choice, and shall pay all costs and 
expenses, including all attorneys’ fees and experts’ costs actually incurred in connection with such defense.  
Consultant shall reimburse Indemnitees for any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by Indemnitees in 
connection therewith. 

The indemnity under this Section 9 is effective regardless of any prior, concurrent, or subsequent 
misconduct, negligent acts, errors or omissions of the Indemnitees and without reference to the existence 
or applicability of any insurance coverages that are required under this Agreement or any additional 
insured endorsements that may extend to the Indemnitees.  The indemnity under this Section 9 is in 
addition to any other rights or remedies that the Indemnitees may have under the law.  Payment is not 
required as a condition precedent to the Indemnitees’ right to recover under this Section 9, and an entry 
of judgment against Consultant shall be conclusive in favor of the Indemnitees’ right to recover under this 
Section 9.  Consutltant shall pay Indemnitees for any attorneys fees and costs incurred in enforcing these 
indemni  cation provisions.

SECTION 8 | Contract Comments or Requested Changes



Gateway Water Management Authority  |  GENERAL ON-CALL ENGINEERING SERVICES 23

from the completion of 

The 

or reduced 

Contract Comments or Requested Changes | SECTION 8



AGENDA ITEM NO. 8B

Kast
Typewriter
NOT RECOMMENDED BY AD HOC COMMITTEE



 
 
 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 

Letter of Transmittal .............................................................................................................. 1 

Section 1 – Company Qualifications ....................................................................................... 3 

Section 2 – Listed Scope of Services Experience ...................................................................... 4 

Section 3 – References ......................................................................................................... 10 

Section 4 – Project Team Staff Qualifications ....................................................................... 11 

Section 5 – Project Approach and Understanding ................................................................. 18 

Section 6 – Standard Billing Rate Schedule ........................................................................... 22 



 

3 
 

Section 1 – Company Qualifications 

Simplus Management Corporation (Simplus) was founded in 1996 as a California corporation and is 
headquartered in the City of Cypress.  Simplus is a woman-owned small business that is focused on 
providing professional engineering design, program and construction management consulting services, 
continually meeting and exceeding our clients’ expectations for quality, cost, and schedule attainment. 

By leveraging the professional experience, technical knowledge and skill of our support personnel, Simplus 
has the depth of expertise and resources to simultaneously accommodate multiple projects of varying 
size and scope.  With its 21 years in the industry, Simplus has successfully managed more than $850 million 
in public agency infrastructure projects in southern California.  We believe our focus on service, together 
with our qualifications and expertise in project management and engineering design of public agency 
infrastructure projects, brings to the Gateway Water Management Authority (GWMA) an outstanding 
team of engineering professionals, who will work together for the GWMA’s as-needed program, project 
and construction management services. 

Simplus will draw on its 21 years of management experience with storm water collection facilities, water 
treatment/distribution systems, streets, highways, curb, gutter, sidewalks, (Green Streets and LID) and 
the full spectrum of utilities, i.e. water, sewer, natural gas, communications, electrical systems, and heavy 
civil infrastructure projects to meet the requirements of the proposed scope of work. 

In addition to Simplus’ comprehensive project experience, our seasoned management and project staff 
members also possess extensive knowledge and experience in providing and directing a full range of 
project and construction management services.  Simplus’ project managers are either Registered 
Professional Civil Engineers or Certified Construction Managers with LEED and QSD/QSP certifications. 
One of the firm’s distinctive differentiators is the fact that its senior professionals all have experience 
working as consultants, as public agency staff and for contractors.  This brings a unique and well-rounded 
perspective to our assignments.  The Simplus staff, who will be assigned primary responsibility for 
GWMA’s as-needed program, all work from the Cypress office or directly on project sites (18 employees).   

A majority of Simplus’ projects are provided on an “On-Call” basis and we currently have nine multi-year 
on-call contracts for the Cities of Anaheim, Long Beach (program management and a construction 
management contract) and Pasadena, the Ports of Los Angeles and Long Beach, Orange County Public 
Works PM/CM Central Region and South Region and OC Public Works facilities.  All the on-call contracts 
provide for NPDES, SWPPP and Storm Water Management elements. Notable work with Gateway 
agencies also includes on-call program management services to the City of Long Beach, management 
support for the Long Beach Harbor Department (including federal grant requirement administration), and 
program and construction management services for the construction of the City of Signal Hill’s new Police 
Department and Library. 

We focus on being a proactive and responsible partner to our public agency clients.  What sets Simplus 
apart from our competition is that we combine extensive field experience with an in-depth understanding 
of cost control, schedule adherence, and the ability to adapt to and manage change.  Simplus defines its 
success by the value of its services delivered and invites our future clients to explore how our record of 
proven success and expertise has enabled us to accomplish our goal of becoming the preferred provider 
of program, project, and construction management consulting services for GWMA. 



 

4 
 

Section 2 – Discipline Specific Experience Listed in Scope of Services 

GWMA was founded in response to the State of California’s requirement to integrate regional watershed 
activities such as water supply, recycled water, storm water, conservation measures and wastewater.  
Officially, the state has designated GWMA as an official “Regional Integrated Water management” area. 

Summary of GWMA Requested Scope of Services 

Simplus has reviewed GWMA’s list of Scope of Services shown in the Request for Qualifications and is 
submitting this Statement of Qualifications for the following five service categories: 

Scope of Services Years of 
Experience 

Examples of Related 
Work Provided 

Work Done as 
Multi-

Jurisdictional 

Other Related 
Information 

Project Management, 
Construction Management 
and Inspection services, 
including plan checking, 
compliance assurance and 
reporting services associated 
with Federal, State and other 
Grant-funded projects and 
programs. 

21 

Current On-Call PM/CM 
projects for of: 
• City of Anaheim 
• City of Long Beach (2) 
• City of Pasadena 
• County of Orange (3) 
• Port of Los Angeles 
• Port of Long Beach 

Yes 

Worked together with 
municipalities and 

county agencies and 
Federal, State and 
other regulatory 

agencies as required on 
all projects 

Coordinate and manage 
Watershed projects (storm 
water, groundwater, water 
conservation, water supply, 
etc.) 

21 

• City of Long Beach (4) 
• County of Orange (2) 
• Port of Los Angeles 
• City of Signal Hill 

Yes 

Los Angeles and Santa 
Ana Water Quality 

Boards, USACE, 
California Department 

of Fish and Wildlife 

Prepare and/or manage 
project bid documents, plans 
and specifications 

40 

• City of Long Beach 
• Long Beach Water 

Department 
• City of Signal Hill 

No Municipalities 

Grant Implementation 
Management 21 • City of Long Beach (4) 

• Port of Long Beach 
Yes Federal, State and local 

agency Grants 

GIS mapping, management, 
and 3D modelling 3 • Signal Hill Petroleum 

• Port of Long Beach 
Yes 

Federal, State, 
Municipal and Private 

Sector 

 

Project management, including, but not limited to, construction management and inspection services, 
plan checking, compliance assurance and reporting services associated with Federal, State and other 
Grant-funded projects and programs.  Simplus’ primary service is project and construction management 
for government and other public agencies. Having managed over $850M worth of civil infrastructure 
design and construction, Simplus has a proven track record for delivering high-quality multi-jurisdictional 
projects efficiently and within budget. Simplus takes a holistic approach to project and construction 
management and highly encourages client-representative cooperation, transparency and active 
communication. 

 



 

5 
 

Coordinate and manage watershed projects (storm water, groundwater, water conservation, water 
supply, etc.)  Simplus has coordinated with agencies such as the Los Angeles and Santa Ana Regional 
Water Boards, US Army Corps of Engineers, EPA, Los Angeles County Flood Control District and other local 
agencies to complete numerous watershed-related projects such as OC Public Works landfill related 
watershed restoration projects and The City of Long Beach’s Deforest Wetlands Restoration and Willow 
Springs Habitat Enhancement Project (all current).  As a result, Simplus has extensive experience 
coordinating regional watershed projects that encompass needs similar to that of GWMA.  

Prepare and/or manage preparation of project bid documents, plans and specifications.  Being a 
preferred provider of project and construction management services, Simplus is a veteran preparer and 
manager of plans, specifications and cost estimates together with public agency bid documents.  Our 
unique approach to project management (see Section 5 “Project Approach and Understanding”) 
demonstrates our experience with and thorough understanding of document preparation, management 
and submittal.  Document management is an integrative part of our project and construction 
management services that emphasize the importance of proper record-keeping and documentation. 

Grant Implementation Management.  As part of our goal to make clients’ needs our highest priority, 
Simplus’ high-quality project management services include our ability to manage, regulate and protect 
grant funding. Our various wetlands projects, for example, receive funding from various sources such as 
Los Angeles Proposition A, California Resources Agency, SGAC and San Gabriel and Lower Los Angeles 
Rivers and Mountains Conservancy. Simplus’ experience with these types of grants demonstrate our 
ability to work diligently with clients to ensure projects are completed to grant specification and to 
minimize losses that would otherwise result from inadequate funding regulation. 

GIS Mapping/Management. Geographic Information Systems (GIS) mapping and analysis have become 
an essential requirement by many public agencies and private sector companies.  In response to growing 
demands for specialized data solutions, Simplus provides GIS services to help answer clients’ important 
data-centered questions and solve problems in ways that are quickly understood and easily shared.  

Our GIS services include: 

• Research and GIS Data Collection 
• Spatial and Non-Spatial Analysis 
• Database Development 
• Data Conversion, Migration, Manipulation, 

QA/QC 

• Geocoding and Geostatistics 
• Water, Oil, Gas and Pipeline Mapping 
• GIS Map Production 
• Intelligent PDF Maps including Database Info 

 
 
The following section provides Simplus discipline-specific experience for the five selected Scope of Work 
categories contained in the GWMA Request for Qualifications. 



 

6 
 

DESILTING AND DETENTION BASINS 

Frank R. Bowerman Landfill – Irvine, California                      

• West Channel Realignment 
• West Desilting Basin 
• South Desilting Basin 
• Wetlands Basin 
• Crew’s Quarters Desilting Basin                          

Olinda-Brea Landfill – Brea, California                             
• Desilting Basin A 
• Desilting Basin B 
• Desilting Basin C 
• Desilting Basin D and Filter System  

Willow Springs – Long Beach, California 

• Upper Basin 
• Middle Basin 
• South Basin 

Rossmoor Park – Seal Beach, California   

• Retention of storm water. 
• Obtain permits from local agencies or jurisdictions. 
• Re-grade several park areas to eliminate flooding. 
• Install drainage structures along sidewalks and 

sand covered play areas. 
• Install sump pumps to assist drainage of low lying 

areas. 
• Install Bioswales. 

Disneyland Resort – Anaheim, California 

28-acre surface parking lot, half consists of pervious asphalt paving.  Surface water quality includes 
bioswales and collection and retention facilities for capturing storm water. 

DeForest Wetlands Restoration Project – Long Beach, California  

Chittick Field – Long Beach, California 



 

7 
 

DREDGING, WATER RECLAMATION AND MITIGATION 

Queensway Bay – Phase I - Long Beach, California 

Simplus managed construction of $14.2M worth of harbor 
improvements for Phase I construction of the Downtown 
Harbor.  Services included managing and coordinating the 
efforts of the general contractor, numerous subcontractors, 
City staff, permitting agencies (such as the Los Angeles 
Regional Water Quality Control Board and the US Army 
Corps of Engineers), utility companies, adjacent construction 
contractors and local business owners near the 50-acre site. 

 

Golden Shore Marine Biological Reserve – Long Beach, California 

The Golden Shore Marine Biological Reserve, is a tidal wetland habitat located 
at the mouth of the Los Angeles River in Long Beach Harbor.  The project was 
completed as mitigation for the loss of habitat at the former Shoreline Lagoon, 
now known as Rainbow Harbor. 

Golden Shore Reserve now serves as one of the 
major gateways to the Los Angeles River.  The 
constructed sub and intertidal habitat areas, 
along with native landscaping, support a wide 
variety of fish fauna, reptiles and amphibians, 
avifauna and mammals. 

As of August 2017, the LA Times has announced the new-found existence of a thriving green sea turtle 
colony Biological Reserve, believed to be a result of increased marine and habitat protection. Simplus is 
an avid supporter of environmental and marine health and hopes that their projects, like Golden Shore 
Reserve, will continue to positively impact local ecosystems. 

Additional Dredging, Water Reclamation and Mitigations Project include: 

Cabrillo Way Marina – Long Beach, California 

Middle Harbor Container Facility – Long Beach, California 

DeForest Wetlands Restoration – Long Beach, California 

FRB Landfill South Wetlands Restoration and Mitigation Site – Irvine, California 

Rossmoor Park – Seal Beach, California 

• Retention of storm water. 
• Obtain permits from local agencies or jurisdictions. 
• Re-grade several park areas to eliminate flooding. 
• Install drainage structures along sidewalks and sand covered play 

areas. 
• Install sump pumps to assist drainage of low lying areas. 
• Install Bioswales. 
 



 

8 
 

WATER RESOURCES DESIGN PS&E 

Groundwater Treatment Plant Tank Replacements – Long Beach Water Department, California 

Project engineer for preparation of plans and specifications for replacement of eight storage tanks at Long 
Beach Water Department Groundwater Treatment Plant for storage of sodium hydroxide, hydrofluosilicic 
acid, ammonium hydroxide and sodium hypochlorite. 

Recycled Water Title 22 Engineer’s Reports  
Long Beach Water Department, California  

Project engineer for preparation of Title 22 Engineer’s reports 
for the following potable to recycled water conversions. 
Project locations include Bluff Park, Bixby Park and Bixby Park 
Annex, Stearns Park, Tucker Elementary School and Willow 
Street Irrigation.  

 

Sewer Improvements in Wall, Pacific Coast Highway, Spring and California Street – Signal Hill, CA 

Design of 12-inch sewer improvements in Caltrans Right-of-Way to accommodate increased sewage flows 
from new development.  Design included traffic control plans for night construction on Pacific Coast 
Highway. 

WETLANDS RECLAMATION AND RECHARGE 
DeForest Wetlands Restoration - Long Beach, California 

Simplus is managing the ecological restoration within the Los 
Angeles County Flood Control District’s detention and storage basin 
at the DeForest Nature Center and a portion of the former 
Dominguez Groundwater Spreading Grounds. The work includes 
modifying earthwork, improving hydraulics regrade low flow 
channels, wetlands creation, control grade and habitat, including 
step pools and water control weirs, creating ephemeral “Vernal” 
pools, including pond liners, installing sycamore and oak specimen 
trees and other native plantings, hydro-seeding, and installation of 
irrigation system. 

Willow Springs Wetlands Restoration - Long Beach, California  

Wetlands restoration is a big part of the bigger picture when it 
comes to Willow Springs Park. The City recently received a major 
state grant of $924,000, an Urban Greening for Sustainable 
Communities Program Grant, which was distributed by the Strategic 
Growth Council and funded by Proposition 84 to improve wetlands 
and increase accessibility. The grant money will be used for building 
trails, planting trees, and re-establishing native vegetation in the 
Willow Springs Wetland Project footprint, which is 12 acres.   



 

9 
 

The Willow Springs Wetland project ultimately will feature an outdoor classroom site, and there will be a 
system of bioswales and ponding areas that will function to divert storm water and dry weather flows. 

Project Elements: 

• Storm Water Collection System 
• Vegetated Bioswales 
• Inlet Structure 
• Habitat Planting 
• Rip Rap Inlet Structures 
• Storm Water Detention Basin 
• Groundwater Infiltration Basin 

The Office of Sustainability and Parks, Recreation and Marine partnered on this project to create a vision 
for the park that is truly sustainable. Park construction will use as much of the remaining infrastructure as 
possible, building on the history of the land as the original water source for the City. 

GIS MAPPING, MANAGEMENT AND 3D MODELING 

Geographic Information Systems (GIS) mapping and analysis have become an 
essential requirement by many public agencies and private sector companies. 
GIS helps answer many questions and solve problems by viewing layered data in 
a way that is quickly understood and easily shared 

Recent Projects of Simplus’ consulting staff Include: 

LA Seismic Geophysical Consulting Services – Signal Hill, CA 
Design and Development of ArcGIS Maps for 3D Seismic studies in California – 
LA Seismic, LLC, CA 

Signal Hill Petroleum – Signal Hill, CA 
Oil and Gas Properties and Pipeline Database 

Port of Long Beach – Long Beach, CA 
Container Terminal Interactive Training 

Port of Wilmington – Wilmington, NC 
Mapping and 3D Photo Simulation of Auto Terminal 

Primoris Service Corporation 
Rock Creek Junction proposed Pipelines  

Example GIS Image of Southern California 
Groundwater Basins 

 



 

10 
 

Section 3 – Client References 

The table below provides several public agency references for past similar projects. 

Local Public 
Agency (Client) Project Description 

Project 
Completion 

Dates 
References 

City of Signal Hill 

• LA RWQCB 
• NPDES 
• SWPPP 

Simplus provided program and construction 
management services for the design and 
construction of a new LEED-certified $9.1M police 
station and emergency operations center located 
in Signal Hill.  The project included replacement of 
water mains, sewer mains, and installation of 
methane mitigation barrier. 

February 2012 

Charlie Honeycutt 
City of Signal Hill 
(562) 989-7375 

choneycutt@cityofsignalhill.org 

Orange County 
Waste & Recycling 

• SD RWQC 
• EPA 
• NPDES 
• SWPPP 

The County of Orange selected Simplus for its 
third (3-year) on-call contract to manage 
construction at the OC Waste & Recycling Central 
Region Landfill in Irvine.  Construction 
management projects included concrete retention 
basins, storm water channel construction, 
wetlands retention basins, leachate collection 
systems, drainage facilities, and erosion control 
devices.  Additional projects included pump 
stations. 

Ongoing 
Jeff Southern 

OC Waste & Recycling 
(949) 551-7102 

jeff.southern@ocwr.ocgov.com 

Rossmoor Park 

• LA RWQCB 
• NPDES 

Project management, design and construction 
management of a 5-acre park to reduce flooding 
conditions in the Association. 

March 2007 

Henry Taboada 
Rossmoor Community 
Services Association 

(562) 430-3707 

City of Long Beach 

• LA RWCB 
• NPDES 

Simplus provided construction management 
services for the construction of a $6.6M police 
station located in Scherer Park.  The project 
included landscaping, greenbelts and recreational 
trails, roadway and water main improvements. 

April 1998 
 

Del Davis 
City of Long Beach 

(562) 570-6643 
ddavis@longbeach.gov 

Long Beach Harbor 
Department 

• NPDES 
• SWPPP 
• EPA 

Simplus provided construction management 
services for the construction of a $43M Shore to 
Ship Power project at the Port of Long Beach, Pier 
A and Pier T. The project involved extensive 
environmental monitoring. 

January 2013 

Ramanjit Brar 
Port of Long Beach 

(562) 590-4172 
brar@polb.com 

Long Beach Water 
Department 

Dennis Phinney (Simplus) provided numerous 
design contracts, including replacement of 
chemical storage tanks at Long Beach 
groundwater phases, prep of plans and 
specifications for in-situ pipeline replacement, 
storage tank retrofit, pump stations. 

2000-2017 

Abelardo Rendon 
Long Beach Water 

Department 
(562)-570-2341 

ab.rendon@lbwater.org 

City of Los Angeles 
Department of Public 
Works 

Dennis Phinney (Simplus) provided numerous 
reviews of plans and design specifications 
prepared by internal staff and consultants. 
Assisted with the preparation of standard 
templates for County staff use. 

2016-2017 
Erik Updyke 

(626)458-4914 
 

 



 

11 
 

Section 4 – Project Team Staff Qualifications 

Our Senior Project Managers and discipline managers are all production managers; doers rather than 
delegators. This management style, which focuses on direct involvement, also means that Simplus’ 
managers are concerned with the technical aspects of project/construction management and decision 
making.  Managers will work very closely within our team and in concert with GWMA’s staff, so that all 
issues are addressed, coordinated and resolved expeditiously.  Following is the proposed organization 
chart for On-Call Project Management. 
 

Simplus Organization Chart 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT 
AUTHORITY 

 
 
 

  Simplus  
Principal Construction Manager 

Paul J. Buckley, P.E., LEED AP, QSD 

Simplus 
Project Engineer 
Project Controls 

Jared Kemp, EIT/FE 

Simplus 
GIS Professional 

Karen Bauer 

Simplus 
Senior Project Managers 

Stephen Mutch, P.E., QSD 
    Tony Gatoff, QSP 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Simplus 
Water Systems Design 

Chief Engineer 
Dennis Phinney, P.E., QSD 

Project Support – On Call As Needed 
 

Constructability Review, Bidability Review, Claims Analysis, Scheduling, Estimating, Contract Administration, 
SWPPP Compliance, Environmental/Regulatory Support, Systems Commissioning, Systems Analysis, Risk 
Analysis, Health & Safety, Labor Compliance, Construction Schedule Review, Quality Assurance, and As-Built 
Documents. 



 

12 
 

Paul J. Buckley, P.E., LEED AP, QSD – Principal Construction Manager 

Qualifications Summary 

Paul Buckley is President and co-founder of Simplus Management 
Corporation (Simplus).  Mr. Buckley is an engineering professional 
with demonstrated ability to develop and implement program, 
project and construction management services and marketing 
strategies, while nurturing business partner loyalty and staff 
motivation, all which allow Simplus to differentiate itself in the 
market in terms of client satisfaction and repeat business.  Mr. 
Buckley has more than 32 years of experience in providing 
professional engineering and construction management.  
Representative Experience 

Simplus, President – Construction Manager – 1996 to Present.  Mr. 
Buckley is responsible for all technical aspects of program, project 
and construction management, including estimating and bidding, 
contract negotiations and supervision of field/production operations.  
Mr. Buckley is responsible for leading numerous multi-disciplinary 
teams of professionals to develop multi-million-dollar, multi-year 
programs and projects.  Mr. Buckley’s background includes schedule 
and budget control, supervision and general management 
implementation.  He is familiar with engineering audits and 

remediation, project certification, project planning, staff and client training, regulation and guideline 
preparation, public meeting organization and presentations. 
Management Experience 

Olinda Alpha Landfill, Brea, California.  Mr. Buckley is the Principal Manager. The project includes 
management and quality assurance and control services for the Phase 1 Partial Final Closure of the front 
face of the landfill.  The project involves approximately 69 acres of the front face of the landfill using an 
alternative evapotranspirative cover to be constructed with onsite stockpiled material.  Management 
services include coordinating the efforts of general contractors, OCWR North Region staff, State and 
Federal regulatory agencies, design consultants, CQA consultants, and adjacent construction contractors. 
Frank R. Bowerman Landfill, Orange County, California.  Mr. Buckley is the Principal Manager. The project 
includes management, quality assurance and control, and archaeological/paleontological services for 
Phase VIII-C Excavation for Liner Construction, East Flank Landslide Remediation, Wetlands Basin 
Construction, West Channel Realignment, and East Canyon Excavation and Buttress Construction.  
Management services include coordinating the efforts of at least three concurrent general contractors, 
OCWR staff, State and Federal regulatory agencies, design consultants and CQA consultants. 
Mr. Buckley provides high-level support, particularly in the areas of contractor claims management, 
resolution and contract administration.   
Police Station and Library, Signal Hill, California.  Project Manager for the design and construction of a 
new $23 M police station and library program.  The work includes grading, installation of sanitary sewer, 
water, gas and power utilities, construction of a dry well for water infiltration, buildings, asphalt paving, 
curb, gutter and sidewalks, street reconstruction, signage, striping, landscaping and irrigation.    

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE 
• 32+ 

EDUCATION/CERTIFICATIONS 
• B.S., Civil Engineering, New 

Jersey Institute of Technology  
• A.S., Engineering Science, 

Middlesex County College 
• LEED AP 
• SWPPP QSD  

REGISTRATIONS 
• Registered Civil Engineer, 

California #52109  
• Registered Civil Engineer, 

Arizona #20889 
 

Affiliations  
• Construction Management 

Association of America 
• U.S. Green Building Council 
• American Society of Civil 

Engineers 
 
 



 

13 
 

Stephen Mutch, P.E., CCM, QSD – Senior Construction Manager 

Qualifications Summary 

Mr. Stephen Mutch has more than 30 years of broad civil design and 
construction experience in surveying, civil design, project 
management, construction management, and contract 
administration for various types and sizes of public agency projects.  
His project experience includes work on public facilities and 
commercial and industrial buildings, parking structures, landfills, 
airports, drainage facilities, earthwork excavation and fill placement, 
landscaping and irrigation, paving, pump stations, retaining walls, 
street reconstruction, fuel facilities and utilities.  During the past 15 
years, he has focused his career on project and construction 
management as well as contract administration exclusively for public 
agency capital improvement projects. 

Management Experience 

Signal Hill Library, City of Signal Hill, California.  Mr. Mutch is supporting the City’s Project Manager 
overseeing the design, bid and award phases of the Signal Hill Library project.  Current responsibilities and 
tasks include:  

• Finalizing bid packages for a methane mitigation barrier for the Library foundation.  

• Finalizing bid package for new storm drain interceptor system crossing under new library site.   

North Police Station, Long Beach, California.  Resident Engineer of a new 22,000 square-foot police 
facility in an urban park setting.  The work included design review of plans and specifications, coordinating 
construction activities with the local community and several City agencies, including the Parks, Recreation 
and Marine Department and the Long Beach Emergency Communications and Operations Center 
(911).  The work included oversight for the design and construction of a storm drain system capable of 
handling 15 cfs flow.    

Willow Springs Park Restoration, Long Beach, California.  The project includes 1 acre of wetlands and 10 
acres of upland restoration. Willow Springs Park is a 48-acre, mostly undeveloped area. A little-known 
aspect of the Park is that it is the site of artesian springs that were tapped in 1881 to be the original water 
source of Long Beach during its founding as Willmore City.  

The Office of Sustainability and Parks, Recreation and Marine partnered on this project to create a vision 
for the Park that is truly sustainable. Park construction is using as much of the remaining infrastructure as 
possible, building on the history of the land as the original water source for the City.  Funding for this 
project comes largely from the Urban Greening for Sustainable Communities Grant Program, funded by 
the State of California Natural Resources Agency through Proposition 84.  Mr. Mutch is expediting Park 
construction to protect the grant funding. 

 
 

 

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE 
• 30+ 

EDUCATION/CERTIFICATIONS 
• B.S., Civil Engineering, 

California State University, 
Long Beach 

• SWPPP QSD 
• CCM 

REGISTRATIONS 
• Registered Civil Engineer, 

California #66757  
 

 
 



 

14 
 

Tony Gatoff, QSP - Senior Construction Manager 

Qualifications Summary 

Mr. Gatoff has 14 years of progressively responsible experience in 
construction management, including contract administration, 
project controls, oversight of construction activities, communication 
and coordination with owners, clients, architects and engineers, 
public agencies, utility agencies and contractors.  

Mr. Gatoff has demonstrated an ability to carry out his technical 
procedures in an organized manner in order to achieve the project 
schedule, cost and technical performance objectives.  His public 

agency projects include police stations, fire stations, emergency communications and operations centers, 
parking facilities, street utilities, storm drain projects, airports and landfill programs. 

Construction Management Experience 

Frank R. Bowerman Landfill, Orange County, California.  Mr. Gatoff is the Resident Construction 
Manager. The project includes construction management, quality assurance and control, and 
archaeological/paleontological services for Phase VIII-C Excavation for Liner Construction, East Flank 
Landslide Remediation, Wetlands Basin Construction, West Channel Realignment, and East Canyon 
Excavation and Buttress Construction.   

Mr. Gatoff is responsible for project control, including cost, schedule control and quality assurance.  Mr. 
Gatoff submits for client approval all progress payments, contractor submittals, inspections, RFI’s and 
change order requests, and conducts weekly CM meetings. 

SP-9 Surface Parking Lot, Anaheim, CA, for the Disneyland Resort.  Construction Manager for the 
construction of a $6.7M surface parking lot.  Responsibilities included construction management and 
contract administration.  Work included the construction of an asphalt paved surface parking lot, covering 
21.3 acres and consisting of approximately 1,700 new parking stalls.  Approximately half of the lot was 
constructed with porous asphalt over a 13-inch section of porous rock.  The other half was constructed 
with conventional asphalt over native.  Work also included toll booth installation, pedestrian/bus shelters, 
bus traffic round-about for pedestrian pick-up and drop-off, themed signage, landscaping, irrigation, bio-
swales, sub-drains to swales, as well as voice and data connectivity of toll booths and kiosks to the Resort.  
The project was completed on time and within budget. 

McCarrell Canyon Storm Drain System at Rancho Palos Verdes, CA (5/2008–8/2009).  Assistant 
Construction Manager for the construction of a $6M storm drain system.  The work included the 
construction of approximately 1,900 l.f. of open trench and 300 l.f. of jack and bore tunneling, welded and 
non-welded Permalok steel pipe, reinforced concrete pipe (RCP), various types of catch basins with and 
without filter inserts, wing-walls, inlet and outlet structures, velocity reducer rings for both steel pipe and 
RCP, manholes, junction structures, concrete collars, natural canyon grading, relocations and 
adjustments, various utility relocations and related removals, surface improvement replacements, traffic 
control and associated appurtenances. 

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE 
• 14+ 

EDUCATION/CERTIFICATIONS 
• B.S., Construction Engineering 

Management, California State 
University, Long Beach (2003) 

• QSP Certified 
• ACI Tech 1 

 
 
 



 

15 
 

Dennis Phinney, P.E. – Water Systems Design Chief Engineer 

Qualifications Summary 

Mr. Phinney’s 40 years of engineering experience includes design of 75 
pump or lift stations, 20 well facilities, 12 steel or concrete reservoirs, 
over 100 miles of pipelines, and 30 water or wastewater treatment 
facilities in California and Arizona. 

He has prepared water and wastewater master plans for service areas 
with an aggregate population exceeding 1 million people, has 
performed post-earthquake structural evaluations, or retrofit designs 
on over 300 structures. He led task forces writing three sections of the 
2015 Greenbook Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction, 
and authored 12 annual editions of an engineering reference book, the 
Code Finder for Building and Construction. 

Having held positions from entry-level designer through principal 
engineer and owner of his own engineering consulting firm, Mr. 
Phinney’s specialty is the engineering of multidisciplinary water and 
wastewater projects encompassing civil, environmental, structural, 
and mechanical engineering. 

Experience in Water Systems Design 

Groundwater Treatment Plant Tank Replacements, Long Beach Water Department, Long Beach, CA 
(2014-16).  Project engineer for preparation of plans and specifications for replacement of eight storage 
tanks at Long Beach Water Department Groundwater Treatment Plant for storage of sodium hydroxide, 
hydrofluosilicic acid, ammonium hydroxide and sodium hypochlorite. 

Recycled Water Title 22 Engineer’s Reports, Long Beach Water Department, Long Beach, CA (2004-6). 
Project engineer for preparation of Title 22 Engineer’s reports for the following potable to recycled water 
conversions. Project locations included Bluff Park, Bixby Park and Bixby Park Annex, Stearns Park, Tucker 
Elementary School, Willow Street Irrigation 

Alamitos Reservoir Improvements, Long Beach Water Department, Long Beach, CA (2006).  Project 
engineer for preparation of plans and specifications for roadway, site drainage, paving, fence, gate and 
slope stability improvements at the Alamitos Reservoir site. Prepared Storm Water Pollution Prevention 
Plan for construction phase. 

Bluff Park, Bixby Park and Stearns Park Reclaimed Water Conversion Project, Long Beach Water 
Department, Long Beach, CA (2006).  Project engineer for preparation of plans and specifications for 
construction of City of Long Beach potable water to reclaimed water irrigation service conversions. 

Sewer Improvements in Spring Street and Olive Avenue, Signal Hill, CA.  Design of 12-inch water 
improvements to accommodate new development.   

Sewer Improvements in Wall Street, Pacific Coast Highway, Spring Street and California Street, Signal 
Hill, CA.  Design of 12-inch sewer improvements in Caltrans Right-of-Way to accommodate increased 
sewage flows and new development.  Design included traffic control plans for night construction in Pacific 
Coast Highway. 

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE 
• 40 

EDUCATION/CERTIFICATIONS 
• B.S. & M.S., Civil 

Engineering, Rensselaer 
Polytechnic Institute  

• MBA Pepperdine University 
• ISI Envision ENV SP 

Credential  

REGISTRATIONS 
• Registered Civil Engineer, 

California #30778  
• Registered Mechanical 

Engineer, California #21533 
• Professional Land Surveyor, 

Arizona #16595 
• Professional Engineer – 

Civil, Arizona #15704 
 
 



 

16 
 

Karen Bauer, QSD – GIS Professional 

Qualifications Summary 

Ms. Bauer has over 25 years of Geographic Information Systems, 3D 
Computer Modeling, Engineering AutoCAD and MicroStation design 
within the civil, water resources, transportation, structural and coastal 
engineering disciplines along with fourteen years of website and 
database development experience. 

Relevant GIS Project Experience 

Contract GIS Analyst and 3D Visualization Specialist (2009-Present). 
GIS consulting services have been provided to Simplus, Signal Hill 
Petroleum, LA Seismic, LLC., Primoris, Parsons Transportation, Wolcott 
LLC, Moffatt & Nichol, Occidental Petroleum, Rock Creek Junction, 
OnQuest, Junction Pipeline Company LLC., Princeton University and Port 
of Long Beach. 

Projects have required analysis and development of GIS maps using:  

 ArcGIS 10.1 

 Post GIS/PostgreSQL 

 QGIS for engineering, water, pipeline, oil gas and seismic 
disciplines. 

 

• Research includes data from local, state and federal levels.  Data acquisition and conversion of 
information from state, federal, local government and private websites along with evaluating 
metadata for usability. 

• Developing and maintaining relational databases, including spatial and non-spatial features. 
• Vector and raster data analysis, performing spatial referencing, plotting via metes and bounds, 

bearing and distance descriptions, pipeline plotting and alignment sheets, geocoding, developing 
model builder macros, interpolation of data using Kriging, setting up data-driven pages for high 
volume mapping and design of final maps for presentation and printing. 

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE 
• 25+ 

EDUCATION/CERTIFICATIONS  
• M.S., Civil Engineering, 

specializing in Graphic 
Information’s Systems 
University of Colorado, 
Denver 

• B.S., Civil Engineering, 
California State University, 
Long Beach 

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS  
• GISP Certified 
• Advanced AutoCad 

Intergraph MicroStation 
Certification 

• AutoDesk 3D Studio 
Certification 

TECHNICAL SKILLS  
• ArcGIS 10.1 
• ArcInfo Civil 3D 
• 3D Studio MAX 
 

 
 
 



 

17 
 

Jared R. Kemp, EIT, QSP – Project Engineer 

Qualifications Summary 

Mr. Kemp has eight years of experience performing construction 
management, assistant construction management, field office engineering 
and inspection services on public infrastructure construction projects.  Mr. 
Kemp began his career as a land survey technician performing topographic 
surveys, construction staking, construction monitoring, and all other facets 
of the land surveying profession.  Mr. Kemp has also performed civil design 
work. Mr. Kemp has extensive experience in earthwork excavation, including 
import borrow material, erosion control (SWPPP and BMP’s), and storm 
water control facilities, including channels and drainage systems.  Mr. Kemp 
is proficient in the use of Primavera Contract Manager and Oracle Unifier, 
and has a strong background in project management budget and schedule 
control.  He is also proficient with AutoCad, Civil 3D, Microsoft Office and 
Primavera P6 CPM scheduling. 

Construction Management Projects 

Two New Fireboats for Fireboat Stations 15 and 20, Port of Long Beach, CA (2012-Current).  Project 
Engineer and Port Liaison for the construction of two new 108-foot fireboats to provide a platform for 
countering the threat of natural and man-made hazards. Mr. Kemp’s responsibilities include CPM 
schedule review, monitoring, estimating, inspection, constructability reviews, processing and review of 
submittals, RFI’s, progress payments, change order requests, meeting minutes, notices, document 
control, claims management, dispute resolution, permit/environmental and regulatory support, Project 
Labor Agreement compliance and systems commissioning.  The project includes extensive coordination 
and communication with the Port, City of Long Beach Fire Department, shipbuilding contractor and 
numerous subcontractors, naval architects and design consultants, U.S. Coast Guard, and federal and 
state regulatory agencies, including Department of Homeland Security Grant documentation and 
compliance. 

Signal Hill Police Station and Emergency Operations Center, Signal Hill, CA (2010-2012).  Assistant 
Construction Manager and Field Office Engineer for the construction of a 22,500 s.f. police station and 
emergency operations center. The responsibilities included contract administration, processing progress 
payments, review and process of contractor submittals, RFI’s and change orders, conducting meetings, 
daily site inspections, SWPPP inspections, and coordination with multiple jurisdictions, general contractor 
and A-E firms.  

Santiago Canyon Landfill Bench Paving and Storm Water Improvements, County of Orange, CA (2008).  
Field Office Engineer for a bench paving and storm water improvements project. Storm water 
improvements included construction of splash walls, reinforced concrete headwalls and all-weather 
access aggregate roadways on the top deck, reconstruction of drainage systems, grubbing and clearing 
and re-vegetation. The responsibilities included contract administration, cost and schedule control, 
processing progress payments, contractor submittals, RFI’s and change orders, conducting weekly 
meetings and coordination with the County, multiple jurisdictional agencies and A-E firms. 

Years of Experience 

• 8+ 

Education/Certification 

• B.S., Civil Engineering, 
California State 
Polytechnic University, 
Pomona 

• OSHA 40-Hour Hazwoper 
• QSP #22626 

Registrations 

• Engineer-In-Training/FE, 
CA  

 
 
 



 

18 
 

Section 5 – Project Approach and Understanding 

General 

A successful project is achieved by fostering good relationships between project team members, including 
the Project Manager/Construction Management (PM/CM) consultant, Design A/E firm(s), and the 
contractor.  The PM/CM’s most important roles are establishing good relationships with all team 
members, creating efficient chains of communication and ensuring that all parties are treated fairly and 
with respect.  When the PM/CM accomplishes these goals, all parties will work creatively together as one 
“project team” to ensure that the proposed projects are constructed to the required quality standards 
both safely and economically.  Before the PM/CM can begin to accomplish these goals, the PM/CM must 
first understand the viewpoints of GWMA, but also, just as importantly, the viewpoints of the Design A/E 
firm(s) and the contractors.  The PM/CM must have the ability to analyze critical situations from all 
viewpoints and work with the project team to develop the best solution. 

Simplus approaches contract administration with a very unique style.  One that is directed towards 
efficiency, value engineering, risk analysis, assessment and mitigation early in the project stage.  While 
always focused on being proactive and extremely responsive, Simplus continues to set higher PM/CM 
standards on each new project.  By combining an assertive attitude, practical field knowledge and in-depth 
understanding of scheduling and cost control with the latest state-of-the-art information technology, 
Simplus continues to impress present and past clients.  

Our standard contract administration procedures include complete scanning, logging, electronic filing and 
electronic distribution of all documentation.  The use of this information technology makes standard 
PM/CM practices extremely efficient by reducing the processing, review and response times for general 
correspondence, submittals, RFI’s, meeting minutes, project photos, daily reports and monthly reports.  
Critical project information is uploaded to a project website where it can be easily downloaded at the 
convenience of the owner.  Our standard PM/CM requirements often include the contractor to submit 
cost-loaded and resource-loaded schedules as well as 4-week look-ahead schedules.  These and other 
requirements have raised the “performance bar” for the contractors and have heightened their 
awareness to submit quality documentation.  It highly encourages contractors to plan, analyze and focus 
on the construction phasing and sequencing of work.  When contractors plan their work ahead, they are 
better prepared, are more efficient and provide a higher-end product.  Their reasoning for submitting any 
request for change order must be sound to be considered by the PM/CM.  

Simplus will perform contract administration and construction management during the development of 
the construction contract documents, bidding and pre-construction activities, construction phase, and 
post-construction period in accordance with Public Works Code and establish and implement 
coordination procedures between GWMA and the Design A/E and or contractor.  

 
 
 



 

19 
 

A flow chart of Simplus’ approach to achieve quality projects on time and within budget is illustrated 
below: 

 

Quality Project
On Time and

Within Budget

Master Project
Schedule

Master Project
Budget

Scope of
Work & QA/QC

Plan

Develop Manage Achieve

Tracking System Utilizing 
State-of-the-Art Management Software
Contractor's Cost-Loaded & Resource-
Loaded Schedule 
Efficient  Electronic Processing and
Prompt Response to Submittals
Requiring 4-Week Look-Ahead Schedule
Anticipate and Resolve Changes
Prompt Identification and Impact
Evaluation to Budgets/Schedule
Quick Resolution of  Issues
Strong Initiative to Value Engineering
Proactive Coordination with 
Design A-E Firms

 
 

Project Control 

Our project control system is based on the belief that comprehensive documentation of all aspects of the 
project will maintain accountability of the program/construction management team, the Design A/E 
firm(s), contractors and GWMA’s Project Managers.  Professional service-oriented program and 
construction managers know that comprehensive documentation on each project is the best technique 
available for avoiding and defending against change orders and claims, controlling time, cost and quality.  
Project controls will ensure that GWMA receives a successful project.   

Each GWMA assignment offered to Simplus will be tied to a remote server, which is backed up daily for 
security purposes.  The remote server hosts all project data and the project control software, Primavera 
Contract Manager, as well as standard reference material.  The remote server enables all project staff the 
ability to access all project data from any location that has an internet connection. 

By accessing the remote server, the project team has access to Contract Manager, the project control 
software that enables Simplus’ staff to document, track and log all project information.  The Simplus staff 
will access the following modules to control the project: 

• Project Information:  This module allows the documentation and tracking of the project number, 
project title, key parties, contract dates, contract information, critical project issues, and links to the 
CPM schedule. 

• Communication:  This module allows the documentation and tracking of transmittals, RFI’s, notices, 
non-compliance notices, letters, correspondence (sent and received), meeting minutes, telephone 
records and safety records. 

• Contracts:  This module allows the documentation and tracking of cost worksheets, budgets, purchase 
orders, payment requisitions, change management, proposals and change orders. 

• Logs:  This module allows the documentation and tracking of drawing sets, drawings, submittal 
packages and submittals, materials, daily reports, insurance certificates and punch lists.  



 

20 
 

Primavera P6 will be utilized for development, review and tracking of project CPM schedules.  The Simplus 
team strongly recommends GWMA’s future construction project specifications require the contractor to 
submit a cost-loaded and resource-loaded schedule.  This requirement urges the contractor to thoroughly 
plan the project and identify up front the manpower, equipment and material anticipated to be used in 
successfully completing the project as well as the associated costs.  The costs are then tied back to each 
bid item.  This requirement prevents the contractor from front loading bid items and helps defend against 
change orders and requests for time extensions by collecting, organizing and evaluating factual 
information. 

Establish Tracking Control Systems 

Our PM/CM team has developed and implemented a unique and efficient Management Information 
System (MIS) for contract administration and control on our past and current projects.  The systems 
proposed for these projects include the following documentation software and frequency of generating 
that documentation. 

 
Item Method Frequency 

Master Project Schedule Primavera P6 Monthly 

4-Week Look-Ahead Schedule Primavera P6 Weekly 

Correspondence Contract Manager/MS Word Daily 

Correspondence 
Backup & Retrieval 

Adobe Acrobat/ 
Contract Manager/Tapes Daily 

Submittals, RFI’s, RFP’s Contract Manager/MS Excel Logs Daily 

Meeting Minutes Contract Manager Each Meeting 

Master Project Budget Contract Manager/MS Excel Monthly 

Progress Payments Customized Contract Manager 
Forms Monthly 

Survey Request Log Indexed and Logged As Needed 

Change Order Processing Client Forms and Contract Manager Monthly 

Time & Material Work MS Excel T&M Logs Daily 

Daily Reports and Diary Contract Manager and Website Daily 

As-Built Drawings Reviewed and Logged Monthly 

Photo & Video Digital Cameras/Website 
Photo Daily/Video 

Existing Conditions & 
Critical Activities 

Contractor/Vendor/Visitors Logged and Documented Each Occurrence 

Labor Compliance Reports Logged and Tracked Weekly 
 



 

21 
 

Public Agency Experience  

Simplus’ experience in project management has been utilized by public agencies with projects similar to 
that of GWMA’s abridged list of projects in, or in close proximity to, the Gateway Region (Appendix H), 
including waterways, storm water control and public facilities projects.  Simplus will perform all required 
services with in-house staff.  This SOQ does not include the use of sub-consultants.  Simplus has been 
providing program and project management and oversight services as the owner’s representative on a 
regular basis in Southern California since 1996 and is very familiar with working conditions within 
Southern California municipalities, counties, special districts and agencies.  Simplus’ key staff has excellent 
knowledge of American Public Works Association Standards, Underground Construction Standards, 
NPDES, Greenbook, CalOSHA, environmental, safety and construction laws, and the California Manual on 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices.  Simplus understands GWMA’s member agencies permit requirements 
and has established working relationships with other public agencies that may have jurisdictional approval 
authority or input over GWMA’s projects, i.e., SCAQMD, RWQCB, and US Army Corps of Engineers.  

Simplus has sufficient staff available with the experience in all disciplines required for the discipline we 
are proposing.  Simplus has provided project management services for capital improvement projects 
exclusively for municipal agencies in Southern California.  Many of these projects are for the same clients.  
Repeat work with the same client clearly shows Simplus’ ability to perform the work, satisfy clients and 
exceed expectations on multiple projects similar in scope as outlined in GWMA’s Scope of Services. 



 

22 
 

Section 6 – Billing Rate Schedule 

Professional Classification $/Hour 

Principal-In-Charge $205 

Senior Project Manager $189 

Project Manager $178 

Senior Project Engineer $189 

Design Engineer Grade 3 $187 

Design Engineer Grade 2 $161 

Design Engineer Grade 1 $126 

Designer 1 $135 

Designer 2 $113 

Designer 3 $110 

CAD Manager $130 

CAD Lead Technician $115 

CAD Technician $95 

Lead Inspector $150 

Inspector  $134 

Scheduler $166 

Estimator $166 

Project Assistant/Administration $88 
 
Notes: 
1. These labor rates are all inclusive, including hourly base rate, fringe benefits, overhead, general and 

administrative and profit.  
2. The following items are included in the rates listed above: in-house reproduction, fax, home office 

supplies, travel between the home office and project site. 
3. Reimbursable expenses will be billed at a cost + 5% 
4. Deputy Inspector, Inspector and Assistant/Administrative rates will be increased for overtime as 

provided for in California Department of Industrial Relations. 
5. These rates will be valid for August 1, 2017 to July 31, 2020. 
 



 

 
16401 Paramount Boulevard 
Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax  

www.gatewaywater.org

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 

November 9, 2017 

SECTION NO. 9: DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR 
CATCH BASIN CLEANING 

SUMMARY: 

At the last GWMA Board Meeting on October 12, 2017, Ms. Kast reported to the Board that 
three (3) Notice Inviting Sealed Bids for Catch Basin Cleaning had been received.  The sealed 
bids were opened on September 21, 2017 at 12:00 p.m.  The three bids were from Ron’s 
Maintenance, Inc., United Storm Water, Inc. and Nationwide Environmental Services. 

A protest letter was received from United Storm regarding the types of licenses to conduct the 
work.  After thorough review by staff, legal counsel and engineers, it was recommended to the 
Board that all three bids be rejected in order to conduct the entire process again.  It was 
further recommended that the process for these services be conducted as a Request for 
Proposal (“RFP”) rather than a Notice Inviting Bids, since the work to be done was for 
cleaning services only. 

After discussion, the Board moved to accept Ms. Kast’s recommendation and to issue an RFP 
as a 10-day process and bring the results back to the Board for approval.  The RFP was 
issued on Tuesday, October 23, 2017, through well-known electronic media, as well as email 
and posting to GWMA’s website.  The deadline for questions was Wednesday, October 25th at 
5:00 pm.  Staff received one question from Ron’s Maintenance and the Question & Answer 
was posted through the same process as mentioned before, on October 25th.  The deadline 
to receive Proposals was Monday, October 30 at 11:00 AM. 

On October 30th, three (3) Proposals were received and opened at the GWMA headquarters 
by GWMA staff, which were from Nationwide Environmental Services, Ron’s Maintenance, 
and United Stormwater.  After careful review, 3 of 3 proposals were deemed responsive to 
GWMA’s requirements (see Willdan Engineering Proposal Analysis attached).   

Staff is recommending that the board authorize staff to receive and file the Proposals and to 
distribute the entire Request for Proposal package with Willdan Engineering’s Proposal 
Analysis to assist cities with their respective selection.  GWMA will not be making 
recommendations to Gateway Region Cities regarding proposals.     

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair • Kelli Tunnicliff (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Pico 

Water District · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9



 

 
 16401 Paramount Boulevard  

Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax  
 
 

www.gatewaywater.org 

 
 

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management  

Joint Powers Authority 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
None.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
a. Receive and File Proposals and direct staff to distribute the complete Request for 

Proposal Package to each of the Gateway Region Cities with no proposal 
recommendation. 

 
 
 

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair • Kelli Tunnicliff (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Pico 

Water District · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 
 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County 
 



MEMORANDUM

To: Ms. Toni Penn 

From: Elroy Kiepke 

Date: October 31, 2017 

Subject: Analysis of Proposals Received for the Catch Basin Cleaning 

Ms. Penn, as requested I have reviewed the three proposals submitted on October 30, 
2017 for the second request to obtain responses for Catch Basin Cleaning.  Proposals 
were submitted by Ron’s Maintenance, United Stormwater and Nationwide 
Environmental Services.  All proposals meet the qualifications required for the work and 
the proposals were reasonably grouped.  There were differences in the scopes of 
services as I will mention below. 

Ron’s Maintenance proposed $16 per modified catch basins and $13 for unmodified 
basins for a total proposal amount of $203,394.  Ron’s services are a manual cleaning 
of catch basins. The City is provided with a total weight for trash removed at the end of 
the cleaning. 

United Stormwater proposed $30 per catch basin modified or unmodified which came to 
a proposal amount of $400,140.  United’s proposal was based on a Vactor truck 
cleaning with all personnel trained in confined space entry.  United’s proposal did not 
include disposal of the removed trash, leaving that responsibility to the City unless their 
fee is adjusted to deal with trash disposal. 

Nationwide Environmental Services proposed a uniform $36 per catch basin modified or 
unmodified which came to a proposal amount of $480,168.  It was unclear if the basins 
were to be cleaned with Vactor equipment, because it was not stated in the proposal.   

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9



AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

















 

 

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair • Kelli Tunnicliff (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Pico 

Water District · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County

16401 Paramount Boulevard 
Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax

www.gatewaywater.org

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 

Catch Basin Maintenance 
Questions and Answers 

10/25/17 

Question – The Request for Proposal states “the Company shall immediately clean any 
catch basin sumps found to have a blocked screened inlet, screened outlet, or be at 
least forty (40%) full of trash debris.”  However, the Los Angeles MS4 Permit Order 
indicates that “any catch basin that is determined to be at least 25% full of trash shall be 
cleaned out” Please clarify which standard should be followed by the 
Contractor/Company. 

Answer – After review, please use the standards set forth in the Los Angeles 
MS4 Permit Order R4-2-12-0175 VI.9.h.iii, which states that “any catch basin that 
is determined to be at least 25% full of trash shall be cleaned out” when 
preparing your proposal. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9



AGENDA ITEM NO. 9



































AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

























AGENDA ITEM NO. 9





























 

 

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair • Kelli Tunnicliff (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Pico 

Water District · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County

16401 Paramount Boulevard 
Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax

www.gatewaywater.org

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 

ANNOUNCEMENT OF OPPORTUNITY TO ACCESS PROPOSAL PRICING FOR 
CATCH BASIN CLEANING 

To: Director of Public Works 

From: Grace J. Kast, Executive Officer 
GWMA 

Subject:  Municipal Storm Sewer Catch Basin Cleaning 

Date: November 9, 2017 

The Gateway Water Management Authority “GWMA” is a coalition of municipalities and 
water agencies responsible for the regional water planning needs of 2 million people in 
the Gateway Region of Southeast Los Angeles County.  While current membership is 29 
voting members comprised of cities and water agencies, the interests, activities and 
services of the GWMA expand to the entire region regardless of membership. 

Earlier this year, the GWMA Board directed staff to prepare and issue a Request for 
Proposal for catch basin cleaning.  The Board felt it was necessary and prudent to solicit 
competitive pricing on behalf of the entire region’s cities for retrofitted and non-retrofitted 
catch basin cleaning. GWMA’s role is limited to conducting the competitive proposal 
process with the Board accepting the proposers that meet the requirements.  GWMA is 
not the contracting agency.  But rather, it is presenting the results of the Request for 
Proposal process to all Gateway Region cities wishing to take advantage of the 
competitive pricing. In the event the city wishes to avail themselves of this process, each 
city is free to contact and/or to enter into contracts with any of the three proposers (see 
below). 

For purposes of the Catch Basin Cleaning proposal process and in order to take 
advantage of the pricing, eligibility is limited to the following Gateway regional cities: 

Artesia, Bell, Bell Gardens, Bellflower, Cerritos, Commerce, Compton, Cudahy, Downey, 
Hawaiian Gardens, Huntington Park, La Mirada, Lakewood, Long Beach, Lynwood, 
Maywood, Montebello, Norwalk, Paramount, Pico Rivera, Santa Fe Springs, Signal Hill, 
South Gate, Vernon, and Whittier. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9



 

 

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair • Kelli Tunnicliff (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Pico 

Water District · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 
 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County 
 

 16401 Paramount Boulevard  
Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax  
 
 

www.gatewaywater.org 

 
 

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management  

Joint Powers Authority 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To that end, the Board presents the following proposals.  All three proposers meet the 
proposal requirements as set forth in the documents enclosed herein: 
 
 
 

 
Ron's Maintenance, Inc. 

P.O. Box 4562 
Downey, CA 90241 

Phone:  562-861-2430 
Fax:  562-861-2418 

Email:  ronsmaintenance@aol.com 

  
   Catch Basin Cleaning Prices: 

 
   
 

ARS Catch Basins $16.00 per cleaning 

 
CPS Catch Basin $16.00 per cleaning 

 
ARS & CPS Catch Basin $16.00 per cleaning 

 
Non-retrofitted Catch Basins $13.00 per cleaning 

   
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair • Kelli Tunnicliff (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Pico 

Water District · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 
 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County 
 

 16401 Paramount Boulevard  
Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax  
 
 

www.gatewaywater.org 

 
 

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management  

Joint Powers Authority 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

United Storm Water, Inc. 
14000 E. Valley Blvd. 

City of Industry, CA 91746 
Phone:  626-961-9326 

Fax:  626-961-3166 
Email:  terry@unitedstormwater.com 

  
   

 
  

Catch Basin Cleaning Prices:   
  

 
  

  ARS Catch Basins $30.00 per cleaning 
  CPS Catch Basin $30.00 per cleaning 
  ARS & CPS Catch Basin $30.00 per cleaning 
  Non-retrofitted Catch Basins $30.00 per cleaning 
  

    
   

 
Nationwide Environmental Services 

11914 Front Street 
Norwalk, CA 90650 

Phone:  562-860-0604 
Fax:  562-868-5726 

Email:  ani@nes-sweeping.com 
  

   
 

  
Catch Basin Cleaning Prices:   
  

 
  

  ARS Catch Basins $36.00 per cleaning 
  CPS Catch Basin $36.00 per cleaning 
  ARS & CPS Catch Basin $36.00 per cleaning 
  Non-retrofitted Catch Basins $36.00 per cleaning 
  

    
   

mailto:terry@unitedstormwater.com


 

 

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair • Kelli Tunnicliff (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Pico 

Water District · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 
 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County 
 

 16401 Paramount Boulevard  
Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax  
 
 

www.gatewaywater.org 

 
 

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management  

Joint Powers Authority 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
In the list of documents below which can be found on our website, you will find a staff report to the 
GWMA Board dated November 9, 2017, which describes the proposal process.  In addition, the 
documents pertaining to the proposal process, including the description of work to be included in 
the pricing, can also be found on our website.  If your city wishes to utilize the competitive pricing 
from GWMA’s RFP process, please contact the proposer directly to enter into a contract with your 
city. 
 
We hope that you will find this type of service to our region’s cities helpful.   If you have any 
questions, or need more information, please do not hesitate to contact Bibi Weiss at 
bibiweiss.gateway@gmail.com.   
 
All Documents listed below can be found and downloaded from www.gatewaywater.org “Request 
for Proposal – Municipal Storm Sewer Catch Basin Cleaning”. 
 
 Staff Letter to GWMA Board regarding the proposal process 
 Proposal analysis 
 Request for Proposal 
 Description of Work 
 Instructions to Proposals 
 Q & A  
   Proposal from each responsive proposer (3 proposers) 

 
      
 
 
 

mailto:bibiweiss.gateway@gmail.com
http://www.gatewaywater.org/

	AGENDA - FINAL
	Section 5 - Lower LA River Revitalization Plan - Handout
	Section 6a - Minutes of October 12, 2017 - FINAL
	Thursday, October 12, 2017
	None.
	Director Vu entered the meeting at 12:08 PM.
	UITEM 5 – RESILIENCY AND STORM WATER FUNDING UPDATE PRESENTATION (RUSS BRYDEN)
	Mr. Russ Bryden, from the Los Angeles County Flood Control District, gave an oral presentation on the Resiliency and Storm Water Funding Plan.  He updated the Board on the County’s effort to reach out to the public and their anticipation of having th...
	Mr. Bryden said he would like to come back to the GWMA Board and give periodic updates.
	UITEM 6 – CONSENT CALENDAR
	Director Nila motioned to approve the consent calendar as presented. The motion was seconded by Director Delgadillo and was approved by the following voice vote:
	AYES: VU, O’GRADY, NILA, DIXON, STOWELL, VIVANTI, YOU, KOURI, CASH, DELGADILLO, BEACH, TUNNICLIFF, ARELLANO, SCHICKLING
	NOES: NONE
	ABSTAIN:  DOR, MOSTAHKAMI, PAGETT
	FIGUEROA (MINUTES ONLY)
	UITEM 7 – DISCUSSION GWMA’S DRAFT RESERVE POLICY
	Ms. Kast reported that the Reserve Policy had been presented at the September Board Meeting to solicit any input or questions from the Board.
	Ms. Kast stated that it was now the recommendation of the staff that the Board approve GWMA’s Reserve Policy as presented.
	Director Nila motioned to approve GWMA’s Reserve Policy as presented.  The motion was seconded by Director Figueroa and was approved by the following voice vote:
	AYES: DOR, PAGETT, VU, O’GRADY, NILA, MOSTAHKAMI, DIXON, STOWELL, VIVANTI, YOU, KOURI, FIGUEROA, CASH, DELGADILLO, BEACH, TUNNICLIFF, ARELLANO, SCHICKLING
	NOES: NONE
	ABSTAIN: NONE
	UITEM 8 – GWMA’S UPDATED ON-CALL CONSULTANT SERVICES LIST
	Ms. Kast reported that an ad hoc Committee consisting of Directors Stowell, Grajeda, and Vu along with GWMA staff, held a conference call on September 26PthP to discuss, rank, select and recommend consultants for GWMA’s updated list of pre-qualified ...
	Director Figueroa moved to approve GWMA’s updated On-Call Consultant List as directed, contingent upon Legal Counsel’s review of any requested changes on PSA.  The motion was seconded by Director Cash.  This motion failed due to lack of support.
	Director Mostahkami motioned to move the vote to the next scheduled GWMA Board meeting in November and include the SOQ’s received along with the PSA as attachments in the agenda packet.  The motion was seconded by Director Schickling and was approved...
	AYES: VU, MOSTAHKAMI, DIXON, YOU, KOURI, DELGADILLO, BEACH, ARELLANO, SCHICKLING
	NOES: PAGETT, O’GRADY, NILA, STOWELL, VIVANTI, FIGUEROA,
	CASH, TUNNICLIFF
	ABSTAIN: DOR
	UITEM 9 –CATCH BASIN CLEANING/MAINTENANCE BID PROCESS
	Ms. Kast reported that on August 28, 2017, GWMA released a Notice Inviting Bids for Catch Basin Cleaning/Maintenance Services.  She stated that the deadline to receive bids was set for September 21, 2017 at 12:00 PM.  Ms. Kast stated that these seale...
	Ms. Kast stated that after thorough review by staff, legal counsel and engineers, staff was now recommending that all of the bids be rejected in order to conduct the entire process again.  Ms. Kast stated that rather than a Notice Inviting Bids, staf...
	Director Stowell motioned to authorize the Executive Officer to issue a 10-day Request for Proposal for catch basin cleaning.  The motion was seconded by Director Schickling and was approved by the following voice vote:
	AYES: DOR, PAGETT, VU, O’GRADY, NILA, MOSTAHKAMI, DIXON, STOWELL, VIVANTI, YOU, KOURI, FIGUEROA, CASH, BEACH, TUNNICLIFF, ARELLANO, SCHICKLING
	NOES: NONE
	ABSTAIN: DELGADILLO
	UITEM 10 – GATEWAY IRWMP PLAN ORAL UPDATE
	Director Deras entered the meeting at 12:50 PM.
	Ms. Kast reported that the request to incorporate the Gateway IRWM Plan into the GLAC IRWM Plan and to expand the GLAC Boundary to include Catalina Island was approved on August 22, 2017 by the Department of Water Resources.
	UITEM 11 – GATEWAY REGION WATERSHED MANAGEMENT GROUPS ORAL UPDATES
	ULower Los Angeles River Upper Reach 2 Watershed Group
	Director Nila reported that the Prop 1 draft grant agreement had been sent back to the State Water Board with comments and they were now waiting on a response.
	Steve Dorsey, legal counsel for GWMA, stated that he was working on the subrecipient agreements.
	ULower Los Angeles River Watershed Group
	Director Deras reported that they would be having their bi-monthly meeting on October 23, 2017.
	ULos Cerritos Channel Watershed Group
	Director Vivanti reported that they were collecting data for their annual report.
	ULower San Gabriel River Watershed Group
	Director Figueroa stated that there was nothing to report and they would be meeting next week.
	Director Figueroa left the meeting at 1:08 PM.
	UITEM 12 – EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT
	Ms. Kast reported that there were still two cities that had not turned in their Resolutions for Appointing Board Members but were expected soon.  Ms. Kast also informed all new Board Members/Alternates that they would be receiving an email from the ...
	Ms. Kast updated the Board on the status of the GWMA Annual Membership Dues for FY2017/18, stating that two invoices were still outstanding.
	UITEM 13 – DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS/REPORT
	Director Cash welcomed GWMA’s new Secretary/Treasurer Kelli Tunnicliff, from the City of Signal Hill.
	Director Schickling recommended that GWMA Board Meetings be changed to meet bi-monthly instead of monthly.  This was discussed among the Board and Director Mostahkami recommended that the item be agendized and brought back to the board in November fo...
	Director Vivanti invited the board to a Sewer Summit in the City of Lakewood on November 1, 2017.
	The meeting was adjourned at 1:16 PM.


	Section 6b - board letter warrant list - FINAL
	Section 6ba- November Warrant List - draft
	Section 7 - board letter changing meetings to bi-monthly - ready for Grace to review
	Section 7 - RESOLUTION NO 2017-6 changing board meeting to bi-monthly - FINAL
	Section 8 - Board Letter Regarding GWMA's Updated On-Call Consultant Services List-FINAL
	Section 8a - On-Call Consulting Services List - GWMA - 2017 - FINAL
	Section 8b1 - PSA - Tetra Tech - FINAL
	Professional Services Agreement - Tetra Tech
	Consultant shall provide the services (the “Services”) described with each requested scope of services upon GWMA’s approval of cost, schedule and any other applicable terms.
	The term of this Agreement shall commence on the effective date of this Agreement and expire on November 9, 2022, unless earlier terminated in accordance with the terms of this Agreement or extended by the Project Manager or GWMA Chair.
	Consultant’s services shall be performed in accordance with generally accepted professional practices and principles and in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of Consultant’s profession currently pract...
	Upon delivery, the work product, including, without limitation, all original reports, writings, recordings, drawings, files, and detailed calculations developed under this Agreement (collectively “work product”) are GWMA’s property.  All copyrights th...
	GWMA shall pay Consultant, for the Services performed based on the proposal/quote received and accepted for each scope of work.
	Consultant is an independent contractor.  Neither Consultant nor any of Consultant’s officers, employees, agents or subconsultants, if any, shall be an employee of GWMA or its members by virtue of this Agreement or performance of the Services under th...
	Consultant and its officers, employees, associates and sub consultants, if any, shall comply with all applicable conflict of interest statutes of the State of California applicable to Consultant’s Services under this Agreement, including, the Politica...
	Indemnities.  Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless GWMA, and its officials, officers, attorneys, agents, employees, designated volunteers, successors and assigns in accordance with the terms of this Section 9.  Consultant’s covenant un...
	To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant hereby agrees, at its sole cost and expense, to protect, defend, hold harmless and indemnify GWMA, its officials, officers, attorneys, agents, employees, designated volunteers, successors, assigns and...
	The indemnity under this Section 9 is effective regardless of any prior, concurrent, or subsequent misconduct, negligent acts, errors or omissions of the Indemnitees and without reference to the existence or applicability of any insurance coverages th...

	Insurance Requirements.
	Consultant shall at all times during the term of this Agreement carry, maintain, and keep in full force and effect, the following policies of insurance with minimum limits as indicated below and issued by insurers with A.M. Best ratings of no less tha...
	“Occurrence Form” Comprehensive General Liability Insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 0001, covering liability on an occurrence basis) providing protection against bodily injury, including death, personal injury and property damage.  This insu...
	Professional liability (if Design/Build), with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, and $2,000,000 policy aggregate, with a five year tail from the completion of the project; and
	Workers’ compensation and Employer’s Liability:  Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and Employers’ Liability insurance with a limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury o...

	The automobile and comprehensive general liability insurance policies shall contain an endorsement naming GWMA and its officers, employees, officials and agents as additional insureds.  All insurance policies shall contain an endorsement providing tha...
	Consultant shall require all subconsultants or other third parties hired to perform services under this Agreement, to carry, maintain, and keep in full force and effect, insurance policies that meet the requirements of this Section 10, unless otherwis...
	Prior to performance of the Services under this Agreement, Consultant shall file a certificate or certificates of insurance, together with the required endorsements, with GWMA showing that the insurance policies are in effect in the required amounts.

	Termination by the Parties.
	Termination by GWMA.  The Project Manager or GWMA Chair may terminate this Agreement or any portion of this Agreement or the Services required under this Agreement for any reason on ten (10) calendar days’ written notice to Consultant.  Upon receipt o...
	Termination by Consultant.  Consultant may terminate this Agreement on thirty (30) calendar days’ written notice to GWMA only in the event of a material default by GWMA, which default GWMA has not been cured within thirty (30) days following receipt b...

	GWMA’s representative for administration of this Agreement, is the Grace Kast, or such other person designated in writing by the Executive Officer (“Project Manager”).  Consultant’s representative for administration of this Agreement is Oliver Galang ...
	Any routine administrative communication between the Project Manager and the Consultant’s representative required to be in writing may be made by personal delivery, first class U.S. mail, facsimile transmission or electronic mail.  Any other notices, ...
	No delay or omission to exercise any right, power or remedy accruing to GWMA under this Agreement shall impair any right, power, or remedy of GWMA, nor shall it be construed as a waiver of, or consent to any breach or default.  No waiver of any breach...
	In the event that either party to this Agreement shall commence any legal action or proceeding to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party in such action or proceeding shall be entitled to recover its costs of suit, ...
	This Agreement constitutes the final, complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement between the parties pertaining to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes all other prior or contemporaneous oral or written understanding...
	This Agreement may be supplemented, amended or modified only by a writing signed by Consultant and the Project Manager or GWMA Chair.

	Tetra Tech - SOQ -08 21 2017
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	GWMA On-Call SOQ_Tetra Tech_8-21 final.pdf
	2. Contents
	3. Company Qualification
	4. DISCIPLINE SPECIFIC EXPERIENCE
	Experience in the Scope of Services
	Demonstrated Project Experience

	5. Client References
	6. Project Team Staff and Project Organization
	7. Project Approach and Understanding
	Task 1. Feasibility Study and Project and/or Program Report Writing
	Task 2. Project Management
	Task 3. Watershed Projects
	Task 4. Project Bid Documents, Plans and Specifications
	Task 5. Regional Planning Grant and/or Other Opportunities and  Task 6. Grant Writing and/or Grant Implementation Management
	Task 7. Strategic Local and/or Regional Planning Efforts
	Task 8. GIS Mapping/Management
	Task 9. CEQA/NEPA Environmental Proceedings
	Task 10. IRWM Related Programs and Activities

	8. Billing Rate Schedule
	9. List of Sub-Consultants (If Any)



	Section 8b2 - PSA - Geosyntec Consultants - FINAL
	Professional Services Agreement - Geosyntec Consultants
	Geosyntec Consultants - SOQ

	Section 8b3 - PSA - GEI - FINAL
	Professional Services Agreement - GEI Consultant
	Consultant shall provide the services (the “Services”) described with each requested scope of services upon GWMA’s approval of cost, schedule and any other applicable terms.
	The term of this Agreement shall commence on the effective date of this Agreement and expire on November 9, 2022, unless earlier terminated in accordance with the terms of this Agreement or extended by the Project Manager or GWMA Chair.
	Consultant’s services shall be performed in accordance with generally accepted professional practices and principles and in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of Consultant’s profession currently pract...
	Upon delivery, the work product, including, without limitation, all original reports, writings, recordings, drawings, files, and detailed calculations developed under this Agreement (collectively “work product”) are GWMA’s property.  All copyrights th...
	GWMA shall pay Consultant, for the Services performed based on the proposal/quote received and accepted for each scope of work.
	Consultant is an independent contractor.  Neither Consultant nor any of Consultant’s officers, employees, agents or subconsultants, if any, shall be an employee of GWMA or its members by virtue of this Agreement or performance of the Services under th...
	Consultant and its officers, employees, associates and sub consultants, if any, shall comply with all applicable conflict of interest statutes of the State of California applicable to Consultant’s Services under this Agreement, including, the Politica...
	Indemnities.  Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless GWMA, and its officials, officers, attorneys, agents, employees, designated volunteers, successors and assigns in accordance with the terms of this Section 8.  Consultant’s covenant un...
	To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant hereby agrees, at its sole cost and expense, to protect, defend, hold harmless and indemnify GWMA, its officials, officers, attorneys, agents, employees, designated volunteers, successors, assigns and...
	The indemnity under this Section 8 is effective regardless of any prior, concurrent, or subsequent misconduct, negligent acts, errors or omissions of the Indemnitees and without reference to the existence or applicability of any insurance coverages th...

	Insurance Requirements.
	Consultant shall at all times during the term of this Agreement carry, maintain, and keep in full force and effect, the following policies of insurance with minimum limits as indicated below and issued by insurers with A.M. Best ratings of no less tha...
	“Occurrence Form” Comprehensive General Liability Insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 0001, covering liability on an occurrence basis) providing protection against bodily injury, including death, personal injury and property damage.  This insu...
	Professional liability (if Design/Build), with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, and $2,000,000 policy aggregate, with a five year tail from the completion of the project; and
	Workers’ compensation and Employer’s Liability:  Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and Employers’ Liability insurance with a limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury o...

	The automobile and comprehensive general liability insurance policies shall contain an endorsement naming GWMA and its officers, employees, officials and agents as additional insureds.  All insurance policies shall contain an endorsement providing tha...
	Consultant shall require all subconsultants or other third parties hired to perform services under this Agreement, to carry, maintain, and keep in full force and effect, insurance policies that meet the requirements of this Section 10, unless otherwis...
	Prior to performance of the Services under this Agreement, Consultant shall file a certificate or certificates of insurance, together with the required endorsements, with GWMA showing that the insurance policies are in effect in the required amounts.

	Termination by the Parties.
	Termination by GWMA.  The Project Manager or GWMA Chair may terminate this Agreement or any portion of this Agreement or the Services required under this Agreement for any reason on ten (10) calendar days’ written notice to Consultant.  Upon receipt o...
	Termination by Consultant.  Consultant may terminate this Agreement on thirty (30) calendar days’ written notice to GWMA only in the event of a material default by GWMA, which default GWMA has not been cured within thirty (30) days following receipt b...

	GWMA’s representative for administration of this Agreement, is the Grace Kast, or such other person designated in writing by the Executive Officer (“Project Manager”).  Consultant’s representative for administration of this Agreement is Bill Bennett (...
	Any routine administrative communication between the Project Manager and the Consultant’s representative required to be in writing may be made by personal delivery, first class U.S. mail, facsimile transmission or electronic mail.  Any other notices, ...
	No delay or omission to exercise any right, power or remedy accruing to GWMA under this Agreement shall impair any right, power, or remedy of GWMA, nor shall it be construed as a waiver of, or consent to any breach or default.  No waiver of any breach...
	In the event that either party to this Agreement shall commence any legal action or proceeding to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party in such action or proceeding shall be entitled to recover its costs of suit, ...
	This Agreement constitutes the final, complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement between the parties pertaining to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes all other prior or contemporaneous oral or written understanding...
	This Agreement may be supplemented, amended or modified only by a writing signed by Consultant and the Project Manager or GWMA Chair.

	GEI Consultants - SOQ

	Section 8b4 - PSA - Atkins - FINAL
	Professional Services Agreement - Adkins North America Inc.
	Consultant shall provide the services (the “Services”) described with each requested scope of services upon GWMA’s approval of cost, schedule and any other applicable terms.
	The term of this Agreement shall commence on the effective date of this Agreement and expire on November 9, 2022, unless earlier terminated in accordance with the terms of this Agreement or extended by the Project Manager or GWMA Chair.
	Consultant’s services shall be performed in accordance with generally accepted professional practices and principles and in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of Consultant’s profession currently pract...
	Upon delivery, the work product, including, without limitation, all original reports, writings, recordings, drawings, files, and detailed calculations developed under this Agreement (collectively “work product”) are GWMA’s property.  All copyrights th...
	GWMA shall pay Consultant, for the Services performed based on the proposal/quote received and accepted for each scope of work.
	Consultant is an independent contractor.  Neither Consultant nor any of Consultant’s officers, employees, agents or subconsultants, if any, shall be an employee of GWMA or its members by virtue of this Agreement or performance of the Services under th...
	Consultant and its officers, employees, associates and sub consultants, if any, shall comply with all applicable conflict of interest statutes of the State of California applicable to Consultant’s Services under this Agreement, including, the Politica...
	Indemnities.  Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless GWMA, and its officials, officers, attorneys, agents, employees, designated volunteers, successors and assigns in accordance with the terms of this Section 9.  Consultant’s covenant un...
	To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant hereby agrees, at its sole cost and expense, to protect, defend, hold harmless and indemnify GWMA, its officials, officers, attorneys, agents, employees, designated volunteers, successors, assigns and...
	The indemnity under this Section 9 is effective regardless of any prior, concurrent, or subsequent misconduct, negligent acts, errors or omissions of the Indemnitees and without reference to the existence or applicability of any insurance coverages th...

	Insurance Requirements.
	Consultant shall at all times during the term of this Agreement carry, maintain, and keep in full force and effect, the following policies of insurance with minimum limits as indicated below and issued by insurers with A.M. Best ratings of no less tha...
	“Occurrence Form” Comprehensive General Liability Insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 0001, covering liability on an occurrence basis) providing protection against bodily injury, including death, personal injury and property damage.  This insu...
	Professional liability (if Design/Build), with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, and $2,000,000 policy aggregate, with a five year tail from the completion of the project; and
	Workers’ compensation and Employer’s Liability:  Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and Employers’ Liability insurance with a limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury o...

	The automobile and comprehensive general liability insurance policies shall contain an endorsement naming GWMA and its officers, employees, officials and agents as additional insureds.  All insurance policies shall contain an endorsement providing tha...
	Consultant shall require all subconsultants or other third parties hired to perform services under this Agreement, to carry, maintain, and keep in full force and effect, insurance policies that meet the requirements of this Section 10, unless otherwis...
	Prior to performance of the Services under this Agreement, Consultant shall file a certificate or certificates of insurance, together with the required endorsements, with GWMA showing that the insurance policies are in effect in the required amounts.

	Termination by the Parties.
	Termination by GWMA.  The Project Manager or GWMA Chair may terminate this Agreement or any portion of this Agreement or the Services required under this Agreement for any reason on ten (10) calendar days’ written notice to Consultant.  Upon receipt o...
	Termination by Consultant.  Consultant may terminate this Agreement on thirty (30) calendar days’ written notice to GWMA only in the event of a material default by GWMA, which default GWMA has not been cured within thirty (30) days following receipt b...

	GWMA’s representative for administration of this Agreement, is the Grace Kast, or such other person designated in writing by the Executive Officer (“Project Manager”).  Consultant’s representative for administration of this Agreement is Alberto Aceved...
	Any routine administrative communication between the Project Manager and the Consultant’s representative required to be in writing may be made by personal delivery, first class U.S. mail, facsimile transmission or electronic mail.  Any other notices, ...
	No delay or omission to exercise any right, power or remedy accruing to GWMA under this Agreement shall impair any right, power, or remedy of GWMA, nor shall it be construed as a waiver of, or consent to any breach or default.  No waiver of any breach...
	In the event that either party to this Agreement shall commence any legal action or proceeding to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party in such action or proceeding shall be entitled to recover its costs of suit, ...
	This Agreement constitutes the final, complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement between the parties pertaining to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes all other prior or contemporaneous oral or written understanding...
	This Agreement may be supplemented, amended or modified only by a writing signed by Consultant and the Project Manager or GWMA Chair.

	Atkins_Gateway_GeneralOnCallSOQ_082117

	Section 8b5 - RRM Design Group - SOQ - FINAL
	Section 8b6 - Simplus Management - SOQ - FINAL
	DESILTING AND DETENTION BASINS
	DREDGING, WATER RECLAMATION AND MITIGATION
	WATER RESOURCES DESIGN PS&E
	WETLANDS RECLAMATION AND RECHARGE
	GIS MAPPING, MANAGEMENT AND 3D MODELING
	Simplus Organization Chart
	Qualifications Summary
	Representative Experience
	Project Control
	Our project control system is based on the belief that comprehensive documentation of all aspects of the project will maintain accountability of the program/construction management team, the Design A/E firm(s), contractors and GWMA’s Project Managers....



	Section No. 9 - Board Letter Regarding Request for Proposal Catch Basin Cleaning -FINAL
	Section No. 9a - analysis - FINAL
	Section No. 9b - RFP - Catch Basin Cleaning - FINAL
	RFP - Catch Basin Cleaning - 2017 p1
	RFP - Catch Basin Cleaning - 2017

	Section No. 9c - Catch Basin Q & A-10-25-17 - FINAL
	Section No. 9d - Request For Proposal - Nationwide Environmental Services - FINAL
	Section No. 9e - Request For Proposal - Ron's Maintenance - FINAL
	Section No. 9f- Request For Proposal - United Stormwater - FINAL
	Section No. 9g -Memo to Cities - ANNOUNCEMENT OF OPPORTUNITY TO ACCESS PROPOSAL PRICING- FINAL



